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GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS

The following are not technical definitions, bueyhare helpful for the reader’s understanding ofisterms used in
the notes to the consolidated financial statemeifitise Group.

Terms Definitions
/day Per day

AESA Albanesi Energia S..

AFIP Federal Administration of Public Rever

AJSA Alba Jet S.A

ASA Albanesi S.A.

AVRC Alto Valle Rio Colorado S./

BADCOR Adjusted BADLAR rat

BADLAR Interest rate paid by financial institutions on g on time deposits for over one million
pesos

BCRA Central Bank of the Argentine Reput

BDD Bodega deDesierto S.A
Compafiia Administradora del Mercado Mayorista EiéatS.A. (Wholesale Electricity Market

CAMMESA
Management Compar

CcC Combined cycl

IFRIC International Financial Reporting Interpretatioren@nittee

CNV National SecuritieCommissiol

CTE Central Térmica Ezeiza, located in Ezeiza, Buerioss

CTF Central Térmica Frias, located in Frias, Santiagddter

CTI Central Térmica Independencia, located in San Midaerucuman, Tucumi

CTLB Central Térmica La Banda, located in La Banda, i8gatdel Ester

CTMM Central Térmica Modesto Maranzana, located in RjcCiérdob:

CTR Central Térmica Roca S.

CTRIi Central Térmica Riojana, located in La Rioja, LajB

CVP Variable Production Ca

Damz: Cubic Decameter Volume equivalent to 1,000 (one@shad) cubic mete

DH Historical availability

DIGO Offered guaranteed Availabili

Availability Percentage of time in which the power plant or nvealy, as applicable, is in operation
(generating power) or available for power genertiut not called by CAMMES

DMC Minimum Availability Committec

DO Target availabilit

DR Registered availabili

The Groug Albanesi S.A. jointly with its subsidiaries and ethielated compani

ENARSA Energia Argentina S..

Energia Plu Plan created under ES Resolution No. 12¢&

ENRE National Electricity Regulatory Authori

EPEC Empresa Provincial de Energia de Cérd

FACPCE Argentine Federation of Professional CouncilEconomic Scienct

FONINVEMEM Fund for investments required to increase the mdegpwer supply in the WE

GE General Electri

GECEN Generacion Centro S.

GLSA Generacion Litoral S.A

GMSA Generacion Mediterranea S.
WEM agents classified according to their consunpiio: GUMAs, GUMEs, GUPAs and

Large Users GUDIs

GROSA Generacion Rosario S.,

GUDIs Large Demand from Distributors’ customers, withldesd or demanded supply of over 30C

GUMAs Major Large Usel
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GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS (Cont'd)

Terms Definitions

GUMAs Major Large Usel

GUMEs Minor Large User

GUPA:« Large User: Individuals

GW Gigawatt Unit of power equivalent to 1,000,0@DQvatts

GWh Gigawatt-hour Unit of energy equivalent to D@M0,000 watts hour
HRSG Heat recovery steam generator

IASB International Accounting Standards Board

IGJ Legal Entities Regulator

CPI Consumer Price Indi

WPI Wholesale Price Indt

kv Kilovolt Unit of electromotive force which is el to 1,000 (one thousand) volts
kw Kilowatt Unit of power equivalent to 1,000 watts

kwh Kilowatt hour Unit of energy equivalent to 1M®atts hour

The Company/The Albanesi S.A. and its subsidiaries

Group

LGS General Companies Law

LVFVD Sales liquidations with maturity date to tefined

MAPRO Major Scheduled Maintenance

MAT Futures market

WEM Wholesale Electric Market

MMm3 Million cubic meters

MVA Mega-volt ampere, unit of energy equivalentltgolt x 1 ampere x 106
MW Megawatt Unit of power equivalent to 1,000,00atis

MWh Megawatt hour Unit of energy equivalent to D@DO watts hour
ARG GAAP Argentine Generally Accepted AccountingnEiples

IAS International Accounting Standards

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

NAUDCO New Agreed Upon Date for Commercial Openatio

OoDSs Sustainable Development Objectives

ON Negotiable obligations

GDP Gross Domestic Product

PWPS Pratt & Whitney Power System Inc

RECPAM Gain/loss on purchasing power parity

Resolution No. 220/07

GR

RGA

Corporate social
responsibility
RT

SADI

ES

SEK

GSE

SHCT

TRASNOA S.A.

GU
CGU
usD

Regulatory framework for the sale of energy to CAESA through the "WEM Supply
Contracts" under Energy Secretariat Resolution220/07

General Resolution

Rafael G. Albanesi S.A.

Corporate social responsibility

Technical Pronouncements
Argentine Interconnection System
Energy Secretariat

Swedish crowns

Government Secretariat of Energy
Health, Safety and Hygiene at work

Empresa de Transporte de Energia Eléctrica porilision Troncal del Noroeste Argentino

S.A.

Generating unit

Cash Generating Unit
US dollars
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Annual Report for Fiscal Year 2019

To the Shareholders of ASA,

In compliance with current legal and regulatoryvismns, the Board of Directors submits for younsideration this
Annual Report, the Summary of Activity, the Finaalcstatements, Statements of Comprehensive Inc8tagements of
Changes in Equity, Statements of Cash Flows, ariddNo the Financial Statements for the year ebdmgmber 31, 2019.

1. ACTIVITY OF THE COMPANY

The Company was established in 1994 as investrmehtimancing company. Through its subsidiaries eatated entities,
ASA has invested in the energy market, in the payesreration and commercialization segment.

Grupo Albanesi, through ASA and its related compARBA, is engaged in the generation and sale ctridéy and has
focused on the gas transportation and sale businessgh RGA.

In recent years, the main strategy of Grupo Albanas been focused on achieving vertical integnativawing on its vast
experience and reputation in the natural gas sat&eh(obtained through RGA), with the subsequdditin of the electric

power generation business. This approach seelapitalize the value added from the purchase froxelgas producers
in all the basins in the country to its transforimaiand sale as electric power.

Below is a detail of the participation of ASA inalacompany.

. Country . L % participation
Companies of creation Main activity 12/31/2019 | 12/31/2018
CTR Argentine Electric power generatit 75% 75%
GECEN Argentine Electric power generatit 95% 95%
GLSA Argentine Electric power generatit 95% 95%
GMSA Argenting Electric power generatit 95% 95%
GROSA Argentine Electric power generatit 95% 95%
Solalban Energia S. Argenting Electric power generatit 42% 42%

Grupo Albanesi had at the date these separatecfalastatements were signed a total installed dgpa€ 1,520 MW,
representing 6.1% of the total installed thermdelecapacity in Argentina, it being expanded wéitiditional 283 MW
with all the new projects awarded and currentlyarmaay.

Nominal installed

Power Plant Company . Resolution Location
capacity

L. E.S. Nos. 220/07, 1281/06 Plus and , ,

Central Térmica Modesto Maranzana (CTMM) GMSA 350 MW Rio Cuarto, Cérdoba
SRRyME 01/2019

P . E.S. Nos. 220/07, 1281/06 Plus, SEE  gan Miguel de Tucuman,
Central Térmica Independencia (CTI) GMSA 220 MW 21/16 and SRRyME 01/2019 Tucuman
Central Térmica Frias (CTF) GMSA 60 MW E.S. Nos. 220/07 and SRRyME 01/2019 Frfas, Santiago del Estero
Central Térmica Riojana (CTRi) GMSA 90 MW E.S. Nos. 220/07 and SRRyME 01/2019 La Rioja, La Rioja
Central Térmica La Banda (CTLB) GMSA 30 MW SRRyME 01/2019 La Banda, Santiago del Estero
Central Térmica Ezeiza (CTE) GMSA 150 MW EES No. 21/16 Ezeiza, Buenos Aires
Central Térmica Roca (CTR) CTR 190 MW E.S. Nos. 220/07 and SRRyME 01/2019 Gral Roca, Rio Negro
Central Térmica Sorrento GROSA 140 MW SRRyME Resolution No. 01/2019 Rosario, Santa Fé
Solalban Energia S.A. 120 MW No0.1281/06 Plus Bahia Blanca, Buenos Aires
Total nominal installed capacity (Participation of ASA) 1,350 MW
Central Térmica Cogeneracién Timbues AESA 170 MW EES No. 21/16 Timbues, Santa Fé

Total nominal installed capacity Albanesi Group 1,520 MW
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Grupo Albanesi entered the electricity market i02With the purchase of the power plant Luis Pidslsana S.A. In this
way the development of the electricity market bee@me of the main purposes of the Group.

2009
Solalban 120MW 2018
) CTE 50MW
2008 Repair CTR 130MW CTI 50MW
Enlargement CTMM Acquisition CTLB 30MW CT Timbties 170 MW
120MW CTR 60MW
2011
2007 Cormmioy CTI 20MW 2017 )
Sale of interest in Refurbishment T
Piedra Buena GROSA S8oMW mm‘m%go ?;:N
CIRi oMW
and CTRi 4 CT1 50 MW
2005 ;:amcrs 100MW
Acquisition of CTMM 2010
70MW Enlargement CTMM
60MW 035
— Construction CTF 60MW
2004
Acquisition of share
package in Central Piedra
Buena 620MW

Variation in the installed capacity

620MW 690MW 690MW 70MW  190MW 310MW 370MW 610MW 770MW 830MW 830MW 890MW 890MW 1190MW 1520MW 1803MW

Capacity to be installed B New Capacity W Capacity

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018  2022E

Through EES Resolution No. 287/2017 dated May 0Q,/2the Electric Energy Secretariat instructed GQABBA to call
for tenders for new thermal generation of closuth® combined cycle technology and co-generatigtt the commitment
to be available to meet the demand in WEM. GMSAigipated in that call and was awarded two prgdot closure of
combined cycles through SEE Resolution 926 — E/2017

One of those projects is the closure of the contbiyele of the TG06 and TGO7 units at CTMM, locaitedRio Cuarto.
The project consists in the installation of a névNBW Siemens SGT800 gas turbine (with a guaranpesder of 47.5
MW) and the conversion into combined cycle of tireé gas turbines (3x1 configuration). For suatveosion, a recovery
boiler will be installed at the gas turbines ewihich will produce steam in two pressures to fee&&T-600 steam turbine
that will deliver a further 65 MW to the networlsa, the necessary infrastructure will be instafiedits operation and
maintenance. The project for the closure of CTMivhbined cycle will enable contributing a furthe213 MW to SADI.
The addition of a new gas turbine will cause anitaafthl demand for fuel to the system. The additid the turbo steam
machine will contribute 65 MW, without additionabrcsumption of fuel, with the complete cycle recogla specific
consumption of 1590 Kcal/kWh in the closure of tieenbined cycle.
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One of them is the closure of the combined cyclenits TG01, TG02 and TG03 of CTE, located in thevimce of Buenos
Aires. The project consists of: i) the installatioha fourth 50 MW Siemens SGT-800 gas turbine, igritie conversion
into combined cycle of the four gas turbines. Far ¢conversion into combined cycle, a recovery beiid be installed at
the gas turbines exit, which will produce steanmwn pressures to feed two steam turbines (2x1 gardtion), each of
them delivering 44 MW to the network. The projamtthe closure of CTE combined cycle will enablatcibuting a further
138 MW to Argentine Interconnection System (SADAthough the new gas turbine to be installed wolhsume additional
fuel, the inclusion of two steam turbines will cobtite a further 88 MW without additional fuel camsption, and the two
full cycles will have a specific consumption of @CBKcal/KWh.

On September 2, 2019, the SRRYME Resolution No2®@BJ was published whereby the generating agendsdad
projects under ESS Resolution No. 287/2017 wereosizied to extend the commercial authorization term

On October 2, 2019, the Company used the opticabksihed in the Resolution to formally state a Neate for the
Commercial Authorization Committed (NFHCC) undeeg thholesale demand agreements entered into indarooce with
ESS Resolution No. 287/2017 belonging to CTE anIT respectively.

For this purpose, the Company has stated as NFH&@mber 6, 2022, for both agreements.
Co-generation Project Arroyo Seco

Through Resolution SE 287/2017, the Secretari&rargy requested bids for the installation of getien projects by
closing open cycles and cogeneration. Within fi@mework, GECEN presented a cogeneration projeétrioyo Seco,
Province of Santa Fe, for 100 MW power.

The installation of three projects including thejpct presented by GECEN was awarded through Résol8E 820/2017
by the Energy Secretariat. The selected projeatgpbowith the criteria of installing efficient gersgion and/or improve
the thermal units of the current power generatitamgg. This means an economic benefit for thetetesystem in all
scenarios.

The project consists in the installation of two S8BT Siemens gas turbines with a nominal capaciy0ofMW and two
recovery steam boilers which will generate steamguexhaust fumes from the turbine. The Companytiils generate
(i) electricity that will be sold under a contraigned with CAMMESA within the framework of a publbidding under
EES Resolution No. 287/2017 and awarded under E&8IRion N0.820/2017 for a term of 15 years, andteam, to be
supplied to LDC Argentina S.A. for its plant in Ago Seco, by means of a steam and electric powarggon contract,
renewable and for a term of 15 years.

On August 9, 2017, a contract was signed with tippker Siemens for the purchase of the turbines ftal amount of
SEK 270,216,600 million. The contract is for theghase of two gas turbines SGT800 Siemens InduStribomachinery
AB, including whatever is necessary for their iflateon and start-up.

On January 12, 2018, a contract was signed witeupgplier Vogt Power International Inc. for the yision of two recovery
steam boilers for a total amount of USD 14,548,000.

In turn, on March 26, 2018, a contract was signild the supplier Siemens Ltda. for the purchasa steam turbine for a
total amount of USD 5,370,500. The contract conggsrihe purchase of an SST-300 steam turbine, imgjughatever is
necessary for its installation and start-up.

GECEN and CAMMESA signed the Wholesale Demand eshtvsn November 28, 2017.
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On September 2, 2019, the SRRYME Resolution No2@B was published whereby the generating agentsdaa
projects under ESS Resolution No. 287/2017 wereasizied to extend the commercial authorization term

On October 2, 2019, the Company used the opticabkshed in the Resolution to formally state a Neate for the
Commercial Authorization Committed (NFHCC) undeg thholesale demand agreements entered into inderooce with
ESS Resolution No. 287/2017.

For this purpose, the Company has stated as NFRGCQ1, 2022.

On November 5, 2019, through the minutes of ther@oé Directors’ Meeting, it was decided to setdasthe sale of the
Company’s assets in view of the NFHCC mentionethépreceding paragraph, and, accordingly, to @ealitnecessary
efforts to finance the thermal power co-generapaoject at Arroyo Seco. Such situation might giise to substantial
doubts as to the Company’s capacity to continueatipgy as a going concern in the event it is ndg &b obtain sufficient
financing to complete the project, even more sosi@ring the economic context in which the Compapgrates, as
described in Note 10.

Appointment of GECEN as Non-Restricted Subsidiary

On August 27, 2018, the board of ASA, the contnglicompany of GECEN, has appointed it as a Nonrigtd Subsidiary
under the terms of the Indenture under the Inteynakt Bond.

It should be mentioned that GECEN is a Non-Res&tti&ubsidiary of ASA under the terms of the intéomal bond, which
means that its creditors have no recourse agaiBst & its subsidiaries.

2. MACROECONOMIC CONTEXT

International context

According to IMF’'s World Economic Outlook reporsised in January 2020, global growth in 2019 has lestmated at
2.9%, despite the slowdown in some emerging econoarkets, particularly India.

A global growth of 3.3% and 3.4% is projected f62@ and 2021, respectively.

From a positive viewpoint, the behavior shown bykets has been stimulated by indications that taeufacturing activity
and international trade are reaching a turningtpbina general reorientation towards an accomnigalaionetary policy,
and by intermittently favorable news about comnaneegotiations between the United States and Chioaever, global
macroeconomic data have not yet shown visible sigtigrning points.

Regional context

In Latin America, growth is expected to recovernir®.1% estimated in 2019 to 1.6% and 2.3% in 20ad 2021,
respectively. Revisions are due to reduced growtlspects in Mexico in 2020 and 2021, among othesons, as a result
of the continuous weaknesses shown by investmehtaaignificant downward revision to the growthefoast for Chile,
which has been affected by social tension. Thegsioms are partly offset against an upward revismthe 2020 forecast
for Brazil, thanks to the better attitude followittye approval of the pension reform and the resmiutf stocks-related
problems in the mining sector.



Free translation from the original prepared in Sgafor publication in Argentina

Argentina

The cumulative economic activity for Argentina upNovember 2019 — measured by the EMAE (Monthly riecoic
Activity Estimator) — showed a 1.9% decrease wétljard to the cumulative economic activity for taee period of 2018.

According to the Level of Activity Progress Reppréepared by the INDEC, cumulative GDP for the fitsee quarters of
2019 showed a decrease of 1.7% compared with the pariod of 2018.

The macroeconomic evolution for the third quartfe2@l9 resulted in a -4.4% variation in global slypps-a-vis the same
period of the previous year, according to prelimynestimates and measured at 2004 prices as d oésull.7% decrease
in GDP and a -13.4% variation in real imports obds and services.

The global demand showed a 10.2% decrease in fixeslscapital formation, a 4.9% decrease in privaasumption, a
0.9% decrease in public consumption, and a 14.2%ase in real exports of goods and services.

In seasonally adjusted terms with respect to tloersk quarter of 2019, imports grew by 1.3%, prived@sumption
increased by 0.3%, public consumption fell by 0.3¥%6ss fixed capital formation maintained its lewethile exports grew
by 2.0%.

The industrial activity measured by the Manufactgrindustrial Production Index (Manufacturing IB8creased by 2.3%
in October 2019 compared with the same period &82Regarding the previous month, the originalesewith seasonality
records an increase of 9.7%. The cumulative foitéhemonth period of 2019 shows a decrease of t@¥pared to the
same period of 2018. In October 2019, the indexterseasonally adjusted series shows a positinvatiesm of 5.0% as
against the previous month, and the series trentbdgdex records a positive variation of 0.1% gaimst the previous
month.

According to the Consumer Price Index (IPC), prisleswed a cumulative increase of 53.8% in 2019 @GR

In the eleven-month period of 2019, exports rea&@®d02 billion dollars, and imports, 45.992 bitlidollars. International
trade (exports plus imports) decreased by 10.4%reached 105.694 billion dollars. The trade balaeggstered a trade
surplus of 13.710 billion dollars. In the elevenatio period of 2019, exports increased by 5.8% (B.2flion dollars)
compared with the same period of 2018, mainly dubé 13.3% increase in quantities resulting frbedrop in prices by
6.7%. Regarding large items, primary products,Sfaeld energy increased by 28.6%, 3.7% and 2.1%ecteely. In the
eleven-month period of 2019, imports decreased%$% compared with the same period of the previmss (-15.574
billion dollars). Prices dropped by 5.6%, and qiieest reduced by 20.9%. Imports of capital good#grmediate goods,
fuels and lubricants, parts and accessories fatadamods, consumer goods and passenger motoeclgstell by 31.5%,
15.6%, 33.1%, 16.3%, 27.0%, and 56.4%, respectively

The BCRA met its Monetary Base (MB) target for &tn2019. In late October, the average MB reache8i86 billion,
which accounted for an overcompliance of $4.9dll{0.4%). The target MB for October of $1.391ibill results from
applying a monthly variation of 2.5% to the oridita@rget for September ($1.411 billion) plus thepamt of net foreign
exchange transactions as from September 18 (-%iifiéch). For November, the Monetary Policy Councflthe BCRA
(COPOM) set a MB growth target of 2.5% comparedlie target set for October, in line with BCRA'e@mey demand
projections, adjusted by the effects of the readr@nge in the cash reserve ratio ($154 billionatoid an excessive
monetary contraction. Accordingly, the resulting NBget for early November 2019 is estimated a5&4 billion, which
will be adjusted based on net foreign exchangesaetions for the month.
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Structure of the energy sector

Energy demand and consumption in Argentina is eyt related to Gross Domestic Product (GDP), \whiteans that
the greater the economic growth, the greater thealmated demand for all energy products. In #st 59 years, energy
consumption has shown a historical annual averegethy of 2.7%, with an annual median of 0.8% si082.

The reduction in energy consumption recorded ir82id the weak recovery shown in 2019 take plaee imprecedented
context of almost 9 years of economic stagnatidth & reduced growth of primary energy consumptlarthe last four
years, this economic stagnation was also influerimethe strong gas and electricity rate rebuildimgcess. This rate
readjustment process has resulted in reduced grafnghergy consumption, a probably temporary effetil the country
resumes the path of sustained economic growth.

ENERGY CONSUMPTION AND GDP IN ARGENTINA

———  National energy consumption [right]

GOP Base 1960=100 (left)

PBI 1960=100
Millones TEP

100

The growth in energy consumption during severatyeéthe first decade of the 21st century resuitexh high economic

growth, which was driven mainly by the demand cérgy products from the Residential and Commereelss, and to a
lesser extent by the growth in Industrial sectanstonption, as shown by the levels of gas, gasaing in particular,

electricity consumption. The economic stagnatiothef Argentine economy since 2011 has reduced gr@msumption

growth rates, which had shown significant incread®sse the historical median between 2003 and 2444 ,as a result of
the low rates that proved to be unsustainablehl®®rgentine economy.

The elasticity of energy consumption in relation@DP in the last two political-economic cycles hagn lower than in
previous decades. The restrictions on energy demado insufficient supply and the need to imeortrgy to supplement
domestic supply had an impact on the economy, anthe Industrial sector in particular. If industridevelopment

effectively expands, there will be greater enengypdy needs.
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HISTORICAL- ENERGY ELASTICITY

ECONOMIC PERIOD ANNUAL GDP CONSUPTION ENERGY/GDP
1959-2018 2.4% 2.7% 113
1959-1969 4.6% 5.7% 1.24
1970-1981 1.6% 3.1% 1.94
1982-1989 -0.30% 1.7% 5.67
1990-2001 3.4% 3.1% 0.91
2002-2019 3.1% 0.8% 0.26

The restrictions on the supply of energy prodwsish as natural gas, in the last cycle of econgmuiath through to 2011
and the relatively moderate growth in energy demiangioad termsare due to problems in the supply of these energy
products, and to the growth in demand from the dRegtial-Commercial segment in a context of a sliglmhodest industrial
recovery rather than from large energy consumers.

ENERGY CONSUMPTION AND GDP BY HISTORICAL PERIOD

II' Il

1959-1969

6%

5%

4%

3%

2%

1%

0%

1959-2018 1970-1981 1982-1989 1990-2001 2002-2019 2%

B GDRllef B Energy consumption [left) @ Elasticity Energy/GDP {right)

Argentine primary energy consumption is depend@anuhydrocarbons, which accounted for 86.8% in 2@855% in
2017, and 85.8% in 2018. Few changes are estiniaiteaD19, probably, 84.6%, due to the increasesitewable energy
generation plants2. This percentage of fossil-foelrces has dropped slightly in the last yearsrasat of the obligation
imposed on fuel supplying refineries to incorpoliatgeasing ratios of biodiesel and bioethanohkirt production of fossil
fuels, such as diesel and gasoline.

1 From the analysis of a specific sector such adratiy, it may be observed that the demand grawath for this energy product is higher
than the GDP growth rate.

2 L atest official data for 2018. Estimate for 2049®&G Energy Consultants, expressed in million Toh©il Equivalent (TOE) for
Primary Energy Consumption.
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PRIMARY ENERGY CONSUMPTION IN ARGENTINA 2018 (75.5

million TOE)
Coal Henewshle Other
1.2 5.0 0.4 Hydroelectric
1.6% GI"% 0.5%
0il and
byproducts
23.4
31.0%
Matural Gas
40.2
53.2%
PRIMARY ENERGY CONSUMPTION IN ARGENTINA 2019 (76.6
million TOE)
Coal Renewable Other
0.8 6.2 0.4 Hydroelectric
8.1%
Oil and

byproducts
23.0
30.0%

Matural Gas

41.0
53.5%

Few countries show this structure of heavy reliaoneoil and natural gas byproducts, and typicaltyyahose with

significant oil and gas reserves. Although Argeatiioes not have large conventional oil and nagaslreserves in relation
to its domestic demand, it has relevant potemigims of unconventional gas and oil resources. tDuhe nature, features
and costs of the investments required, there #fieudiies in modifying the current energy primazgnsumption structure
in the short term; nevertheless, the governmenséiaambitious targets to increase the use of rablevenergies in power

supply.

The high reliance on natural gas — an estimate2963n 2018 — fluctuates annually based on impditsatural gas and
liquefied natural gas (LNG) and on local productiormeet the demand. Despite the increase in damgsduction that
was observed in the 2018 winter season and, pkntiguin 2019, and the imports of gas and LNG fr@wmlivia, the

potential demand of natural gas is partially ursdigtil in winter in the industrial segment and ir tthermoelectric
generation segment

3 In the absence of restrictions on gas demandstthee of this product in the primary matrix woutddven higher.
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SHARE OF NATURAL GAS IN DOMESTIC ENERGY CONSUMPTION

0%
RERIISGAESRNRRRRNARIRRARETEEES

The countries within the region do not have a stmgcso biased towards hydrocarbons, althoughdbeshow a bias in the
global average and in the USA.

PRIMARY ENERGY CONSUMPTION

ARG BRA PER CHL MEXICO VILA coL T&T EEUU. WORLD

: HYDROCARBONS : NATURAL GAS = coaL
HYDROELECTRIC NUCLEAR RENEWABLES

Final energy consumption in Argentina —net of Iessed transformation— is evenly distributed betwienindustrial and
residential/commercial segments. This distributeaimilar to that in other developing countrieshaa vast territory and
medium sized population.

ARGENTINA - FINAL ENERGY CONSUMPTION 2018 (Milllan TOE)

Other
Residential
Industry 3.2
5.7% 14.1

/25.2%

13.1
23.4%

Agriculture
and livestock Commercial

36 and Public
. Transportation
6.4% 4.6
17.3 8.3%
30.9%
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The characteristics of the Argentine energy supply demand are summarized below:

¢ An atypical breakdown featuring Oil and Gas agpiteglominant energy sources, typical only of largdrbcarbon
exporters such as countries in the Middle Eastsiugfrican LNG exporters, or Venezuela.

< In addition, between 53% and 54% of internal priynemergy consumption relies on natural gas withepating
consumption, despite restrictions to discouragema@l demand for this energy source in winter,cliiead to
substitution with alternate fuel sources for elieqtower generation, and to direct restrictionsrmtustrial demand
in certain branches of industry, surpassed by fewntries with significant excess natural gas prdidac

« The domestic energy supply shows a recovery tnetide with the ongoing stagnation of domestic dedhavhich
in 2018 and 2019 mitigated unmet demand issuese sire increase in investments in recent yearsvatldor an
improvement in the supply due to the greater doimespply.

« Both natural gas and electric energy demand isrdlaan the historical trend in some specific segsiesuch as
residential and commercial, due to significant atipent to the rates charged to consumers. Constiyuthe
growth rates of energy consumption in these segsrenet now lower than the historical rates due ¢ogiteater
relative weight in general consumption. The new gad electricity rate freeze imposed since Decerdbé®
might revert this trend again, bringing it closethat shown in 2002 and 2015.

ELECTRICITY DEMAND AND SUPPLY STRUCTURE

The electricity generation capacity in Argentina leolved unevenly over the years, with periodmofeased supply in
response to the prevailing policies aimed at mgetiactricity demand.

Although CAMMESA has reported there was a nomimalgr of 39,704 MW installed and commercially auibed in late
2019 — a net increase in nominal availability df6g MW or 3.0% with respect to 20184, represengifigctive available
power because most of the equipment is new, availaierating power in the 2019/2020 summer seastnalose to
33,000 MW, including a rotating reserve of approxiety 1,800 MW, according to estimates by G&G Egedtgnsultants.
The difference between nominal and effective poimetate 2019 was due to restrictions on certaintsunaused by
insufficient supply of fuel, difficulties in reaat the nominal yield, but mainly due to recurrergimbenance tasks or
technical limitations in some generating unitsnltst also be considered that renewable units doperate at their nominal
power at all times but rather respond to erratiapeeters.

Unlike 2017 and 2018, when a significant numbesroéll engine units5 and GT units were incorporaigeésponse to the
contracts entered into under Resolution 21/201@0it0, closing to combined cycle or ST units ingemeration cycles,
such as AESA's, started to be incorporated. In 2@MPunits of 159 MW only were incorporated comgianéth the 1,207
MW incorporated in 2018. In addition, 2010 MW wémeorporated at closing to combined cycle compavigd the 598
MW incorporated in 2018, and renewable units — igaivind — of 1,128 MW compared to the 709 MW incorgted in

2018. No nuclear power generation capacity wasrparated, and availability from hydroelectric povpdants improved
by 22 MW.

41,154 MW were incorporated in 2016, 2,210 MW, @12 and 2,357 MW, in 2018.

51n 2018, 201 MW from this type of units were witadn. In 2019, diesel engines of 155 MW and STsuoit198 MW were
withdrawn.
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NOMINAL ELECTRICITY GENERATION POWER IN ARGENTINA

2019 (Mw)
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The financial restrictions of the Government hanénapact on the rate of incorporation of hydroeleand nuclear power
plants as a result of the large investments reduaral the extended execution terms. The recuriscdlfcrises of the

Government result in delays and/or suspensionasfetiarge projects. Thus, successive governmewnesdmed to foster

the incorporation of thermoelectric generating siniquiring lower investments and shorter terméfilementation, even
though they use liquid and gas fuels. As productibthese fuels has had a predictable and incrgatgwelopment in

Argentina — as it now happens again after the omiation of the commercial exploitation of tight astthle gas —, its supply
has not necessarily implied a restriction in thetp&lowever, this thermoelectric generation poli@s encountered
increasing restrictions relating to the supplyaefdlly produced fossil fuels, in particular natugak.

Between 2016 and 2019, Macri’'s administration ldgucan aggressive program for hiring additionalegating power,
both from thermoelectric and renewable sources.ifi¢@poration of supply was achieved through poaweilability and
energy dispatch remuneration contracts in the oafigermal units, and available energy purchaseraots in the case of
wind, solar, biomass generation units and smallggastations.

Nominal Electricity Generation Capacity

The nominal installed capacity is concentratednamrhoelectric generation, although its unavailgbif relatively high in
relation to other sources of generation, excephémiear energy. An important number of thermoelegower generating
units show unavailability on a recurrent basisngainable to generate electricity in particularinigithe winter season,
when fuel restrictions cause a reduction in avilaiffective power.

CHANGES IN NOMINAL ELECTRICITY GENERATION CAPACITY
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NOMINAL ELECTRICITY GENERATION CAPACITY (MW)- MAY 2

019

9.0%

REGION sT_|er |cc |pl | THERMAL | NUCLEAR | HYDROELECTRIC | SOLAR | WIND | BIOGAS | TOTAL | %
cuYo 120 | 87 | 413| 40 660 0 1.129 104 1.983 5.0%
COMAHUE o | so1| 1487 81 2.069 0 4.769 153 6.991 | 17.6%
NORTH-WESTERN 261 | 999 | 1472| 363  3.005 0 220 185 58 5 3.56

CENTRAL 2 | 826 | 53| 45 1.407 648 918 61 86 7 3.121 7.9%
SREATER BA-LITORAL- 387 | a701| 7.039 82 16.43 1.107 945 504 32 10018 |  47.9%
NORTH-EASTERN 0 12 o | 304 316 0 2.745 3.061 7.7%
PATAGONIA o | 271 | 301| o 572 0 585 807 1.964 4.9%
MOBILE 0 0 0 0.0%
TOTAL 4253| 73907| 11.246 1653  24.549 1.755 11311 4ap 608L.| 44 30.707 | 100.0%
THERMAL % 17.3%| 30.1% 45.8% 6.7%  100.0%

TOTAL % 61.8% 4.4% 28.5% 11%| 419  0.1% 100.0

G&G Energy Consultants estimates that by the e 9, available effective power -which is loweaittdeclared nominal
power for the reasons explained above- reachedzippately 33,000 MW, including a rotating resenfel¢gB00 MW,
which was not necessary to be fully used due tgdondemand in 2019 as in 2018, and the fact thaitable power was
sufficient to meet demand. In February 2018, theated for power on a business day exceeded therib@dtoecord,
reaching 26,320 MW86, with no changes to date.

RECENT CHANGES IN ELECTRICITY CONSUMPTION RECORDS
PREVIOUS RECORDS CURRENT RECORDS
DAY VARIATION | MW
POWER (MW)

Saturday Feb-25-17 22.39 Dec-30-17 22543 0.7% 163
Sunday Dec-27-15 21.973 Feb-28-17 22.346 1.7% 373
\E’)Vaoyrk'”g Feb-24-17 25.628 Feb-08-18 26.32 2.7% 692

DAY ENERGY (GWh/d) VARIATION | GWh
Saturday Jan-18-14 477.9 Dec-30-17 478.4 0.1% a5
Sunday Dec-27-15 432.9 Feb-26-17 437.6 1.1% 47
\E’)Va";k'”g Feb-08-18 543.0 29-Jan-19 544.4 0.3% 14

In early 2020, maximum demand for electric powes hat yet exceeded the levels recorded in 2018&fzré is greater
excess generation capacity, with thermoelectriacip playing a leading role as it reached a maximuaf 16,337 MW,
compared with 17,023 MW when the highest level veashed, i.e. February 8, 2018

6 On January 29, 2019, the demand for power on inéssday exceeded the historical record, reacidgViWh.
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MAXIMUM ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLY
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Even in those winter seasons in which the avaitgtnf thermoelectric power is somehow affectedtuy lower availability
of gas, there might be a shortage in the electrezgy supply. However, during the 2019 winter saagovas evidenced
that the incorporation of new electric power, whittreased following the investment program in plsince 2016, changed
the existing situation. The proper remuneratiothefavailable power is a relevant factor for thigikability, which ensures
supply.

In addition, there was a reduction in the availgbibf thermal power improved, since generators enacvestments to
maintain the plant in good availability conditiomsd thus receive the related payments. Neverthetbss 20%
unavailability recorded in 2019 is likely to hawsached its floor.

TOTAL UNAVAILABILITY OF THERMAL POWER (%)

FHE T

The increase in effective available power improsigghificantly in the last three years, and will Gooe to improve in 2020
and 2021 with the power plants under constructidter increases in remuneration to electricity gatues, which sped up
the repair of units that were recurrently unavaddalin addition to the incorporations indicatedliear The companies
making up Grupo Albanesi continued to invest inisas power plants, with the incorporation of poweigeneral over
terms agreed with the new units about to be inaaed to the National Interconnected System irctiraing months.
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The new generation capacity incorporated in 20I®@esponds in a minimum portion to the internatiopalblic bidding
called under SEE Resolution No. 21/2016 of the Migiof Energy and Mining, in which Grupo Albanesis the awardee
of bids for 420 MW. All awards under SEE Resolutho. 21 have been completed. Grupo Albanesi agtipatticipated
in the bidding process with the following powermnika

» TheCTE owned by GMSA received commercial authorizatio®@ptember 2017, with two Siemens SGT800
turbines of 50 MW each, and in September 2018, waithird turbine of 50 MW.

e In August 2017, th€TIl owned by GMSA obtained authorization to operat&a &0 Siemens turbine of 50
MW, and in February 2018, authorization was obthifog a second turbine of the same capacity.

* In May 2017, theCTRi owned by GMSA obtained authorization to operatexa 8GT800 Siemens turbine of
50 MW, adding to the existing 40 MW.

e In July 2017, theCTMM owned by GMSA incorporated 100 MW of nominal powalding to the existing
250 MW.

« Theclosing to combined cycle was implementede@€fhRO, with the incorporation of a 60 MW steam turbine
to the existing 130 MW gas turbine. Commercial atitation was obtained in August 2018.

In addition, various companies making up Grupo Alx were awarded spot contracts with CAMMESA fepanding

their capacity in the coming years. Within the feamork of the international public bidding for clogito combined cycle
and co-generation projects called for under ES Résa No. 287-E/2017 of the Energy Secretariathe Ministry of

Energy and Mining, Grupo Albanesi was awarded thmegects to install 283 MW of new capacity whiate Zurrently

being added, as other units of different compaiisanesi participates with the following plants:

* Closing to cycle with 129 MW in the CTMM in Cérdoba
e Closing to cycle with 154 MW in the CTE in Buenoses.

INCREASE IN NOMINAL SUPPLY (MW) - NOMINAL DATA
DISTRIBUTION
WIND TOTAL | ACCORDING TO
PERIOD | THERMAL | HYDROELECTRIC [NUCLEAR |Biomass [ JIND | SOTAL | ACCORDING TS
REGIME
19922019 | 17.752 5.049 750 44 2048 | 25643
19922001 | 5.945 3.183 0 0 0 9.128 35.6%
2002-2015 |  6.948 1.734 750 0 195 9.627 37.5%
2012%1596pt' 4.859 132 0 44 1853 6.888 26.9%

Gross Electricity Demand — including losses in thensmission and distribution system, and the cayigaown
consumption at generating units in rotating gem@nathas shown a significant growth in thermal glegower supply in
recent decades, accompanied by a mild increase inytdroelectric power supply due to the incorgorapf the last stage
of the CH Yacyreta following the gradual increaé@&ogenerating quota as from 2006.
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CHANGES IN HISTORICAL GROSS SUPPLY OF ELECTRIC
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Between 2016 and 2019, the growth trend of elegiower demand showed a slowdown, aggravated in pati®y by
moderate winter temperatures. This long-term tresftects moderation in electricity demand in pesiaaf economic
downturn, such as 2016, 2018 and 2019, with an énpiatariff adjustments implemented to partiallygrove electricity
supply cost coverage.

The correlation between evolution of GDP and eieityr demand shows a significant dispersion; howgitemay be
concluded that when there is a significant reductio GDP, the electricity demand falls relativelpderately. It should
also be considered that, in a context of low ecao@rowth, electricity demand increases at ratghédr than GDP.
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CHANGES IN ELECTRIC POWER DEMAND AND GDP
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CAMMESA divides Argentina into regions with similaharacteristics from the demand point of viewywadl as on the
basis of the socio-economic characteristics andhtiegration of each electricity subsystem.

Demand is highly concentrated in CABA - Greater BagAires area-Litoral region, which accounts fbrd646 of the total

electricity demand of the country in 2019. Althougfowth rates in other regions, such as North-westeea, Comahue
and Patagonia are greater than in the remainirigme@f the country and the demand in CABA-GreBi#enos Aires area
is influenced by rate adjustments, the changesigrstructure are not expected to be materialerfature.

Gross energy demand -considering distribution aadsinission losses, own consumption of thermalraradear power,

and minor exports to Uruguay and Brazil- recordestight 0.5% increase in 2018, after a -2.4% falk017. In 2017, due
to the 2.8% economic expansion during the yeactrdity demand increased by 1.8% as a result efrétte adjustments,
and especially due to a mild 2016/2017 summer seasd higher-than-normal temperatures in the 20h8wseason. In
2019, an annual drop of -2.9% was recorded, whictsgned in winter months, since temperatures wéckaompared

with 2018; the higher temperatures recorded in28t%9 strengthened the increase in demand compaéttethte 2018. The
economic stagnation has an impact on the ratearéase in demand, together with rate adjustmentswiB rates are
expected to be similar to historical rates oncesttenomy returns to a path of sustained growth.

ELECTRICITY CONSUMPTION IN 2019 (MWh; net of losses)

Industrial/Large
commercial users Residential

36,424,173
28.3%

55,420,980

’,43.0%

Commercial/SMEs/Public lighting

37,034,914
28.7%

In 2019, there was a strong reduction of -2.9%mnimuel electricity demand. The residential eledyidemand segment fell
by -2.9% in 2019 following the 2.0% increase reearéh 2018 as a result of winter and summer tenpers In 2017,
electricity demand from this segment decreased2y% as a result of rate adjustments and modesatperatures in
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summer and winter, after 3.0% in 2016 compared 205, higher than 2.1% recorded in the recessya@t4 compared
to 2013, but lower than 7.7% recorded in 2015.

The commercial electricity demand segment grew 3298016 compared with 2015, a growth higher thaa ©.2%

recorded in 2014, and lower than the 3.8% recoim2@15. In 2017, this segment decreased by -@4d4in 2018 a further
-0.4%. In 2019, this trend increased to -3.1%. dleetricity tariff adjustments implemented in Fedmu2016, followed by
adjustments to natural gas in April 2016, partkeetf the demand of consumers.

The industrial activity stopped falling at the baging of 2017, and the activity growth lasted uattly 2018, when once
again, a significant slowdown began. An accelergteavth rate was observed in the last months of/dze. In 2016, the
Industrial segment had shown a -4.7% reductioneatecity demand after a modest +0.8% in 20132047, the industrial
reactivation showed a 2.0% increase in electridégnand, while 2018 ended at —1.3%, with very negatear-on-year
figures of -5.8% and -9.7% in November and Decen20d4i8. In 2019, the recessive trend grew untilfifs¢ half of the
year, with an annual contraction of -3.5% and avecy in some months.

INDUSTRIAL ELECTRICITY CONSUMPTION - YEAR-ON-YEAR VARIATION

-10%

-12%

The increasing electricity demand since 2000 hdiddea greater need for fuel supply for dispatdbethe thermal power
generating plant. The hourly demand for power tebdn impact on the available thermal power capéeiet to meet the
maximum demand during winter night hours or sumaf@rnoon hours. To minimize the risk of untimelytaffs to the

residential and commercial segment, the previouge@unent resorted to electricity supply cutoffsvioesly agreed upon
with large industries, as in the winters of 201@ &911— without reaching the extraordinary levdlshe 2007 winter—
which were not required in 2012. In 2013, reducianindustrial demand were necessary, mainly ineb@er, to meet
residential and commercial demand, as in Janualy.2Qeither in the summer nor in the winter of 2@ldye significant

restrictions to be applied to industrial consuntenmsmeet residential/commercial electricity demarmyever, forced cutoffs
occurred due to significant problems in the disttidin of electricity.

In February 2016, the growing electricity demane& do high temperatures led to planned and untirnetgffs which
CAMMESA estimated at 1,000 MW. In 2017, demand wmasnaged and did not exceed the availability okgstem since
there was more supply available and more modeeatpératures. In 2018, the power demand record watet in
February, and it was satisfied without greater fgois locally with no need for imports. At the begimg of 2019, a day of
high temperatures led to a higher demand for paviech was met with sufficient reserves.
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3. HIGHLIGHTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019

3.1 Environmental management

Corporate Environmental Management System

In CTMM, there is an Integrated Management Systemlace that meets ISO 9001:2015, ISO 14001:2085CGHHSAS
18001:2007 standards.

The ISO 14001:2015 certification, in particularaigilable with a corporate scope, integrating @ratbanesi operating
plants (GROSA, CTRO, AESA, and GMSA). Thermal popkants: CTMM, CTRi, CTI, CTLB, CTF, and CTE).

This shared methodology allows working in a unifead coordinated manner at all work sites, applyirggsame criteria
for determining the environmental aspects of theviyg, significant assessments and the operatiaoatrols adopted in
response to those matters. Supported by standdrdamimentation and implemented within a work frauoik based on
joint and cooperative performance between the gmriustained growth has been achieved over tingect to regular
performance reviews and ongoing improvement presess

The main benefits of the above may be noted inaspeich as:

. Environmental awareness and the involvement op#rsonnel in the fulfillment of the objectives set.

. The priority given to preventive management actions

. Absence of environmental incidents.

. Optimum order and cleaning conditions at the premis

. Efficient treatment of corrective actions as wellcd those derived from addressing risks and oppdres.

. Attention given in due time and manner to complijhviégal requirements.

. Improved management of environmental issues wiitigp attention to its life cycles and the intesastiated to
environmental sustainability.

. Efforts expended, with satisfactory results, to¢aee and aesthetic of natural spaces.

Important achievements have been obtained in thimtemance of the Quality and Occupational Safetgl &tealth
Management Systems.

During the period from October to November 2019ea external audit on the Corporate Integrated EEmdronmental
Management System was successfully completed bycehtification agency IRAM. As a result, the maimdace of
corporate systems for a new year, within the fraorevef the recertification duly obtained and effeetuntil 2021, was
approved.

3.2 Human Resources

Human Capital management

Under the motto “Work together and better”, anddgdi by our corporate values, the Group's Humant@lapenagement
is based on three pillargittract, Motivate and Retain. With the purpose of transforming the company imarket
reference, we are undergoing a change process whemmnbition is to convert every person in a vadding agent who
contributes to maximizing the results of the businand client satisfaction at each stage of theevethain.
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Below we describe the main actions undertaken duhie year by activity:

Structure of the organization

In 2019, the Internal Audit Corporate Managemens wi@ated, as part of the highest authorities efotiganization. The
major challenge is aimed at speeding up the fouaipletion of key processes as an additional stefhe path to the
development of a structure in line with the sizd &rture challenges of the Group.

Employment opportunities

The Group’s employment level decreased by 3% coetpatith the previous year as a consequence of@adse in the
level of automation of some processes.

Through our internal mobility program “MOBI”, 6 {gipositions were offered, with a total of 7 (seyerernal applicants,
and 35 (thirty five) external persons joined thenpany, mainly due to replacements and the newipnositreated in the
following areas: Reception Desk, Taxes, Audit, Aguing, Legal, Purchases and Foreign Trade, Teogyohnd
Information Systems, Gas, Operations and Maintemanc

Compensation and benefits

The evaluation of the 80 witness positions to deflre new salary structure for non-bargaining egess was completed.
It was led by HR with the support of Willis Toweéfgatson through its "Global Grading System" toole®ystem will be
applied to payment and compensation practices 2020.

Market practices continue to be monitored twicearythrough general market surveys with specifteofiufor the sector.

Five salary increases were granted in the yeanénwith the labor market practice.

The Corporate Benefits Program continues in plabéch combines a flexible work system known as XFleith discounts
agreed with Sport Club network of gyms and ClutNagién. Further, the “healthy snack” option wasmpoded.

Further benefits include access to Bodega del Biegieoducts and to loans at low interest rates.

The Performance Management Program to assess dffeirstterms of expected behavior and potentialstpport
development of capabilities is maintained.
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Training and development

As regards Training, 17,912 hours of training weffered to personnel, distributed as follows: 24fo@evelopment of
Leadership Skills, 23% on the Development of TecéinBkills and Job Position Training, 37% on Larggjal0% on
Compliance, 4% on SHCT, and 2% on Relationship@Gmaperation Skills.

Internal communication and HR information systems

JAM was launched within the Success Factors (SAW)@nment, which aims at becoming a channel fdlaborative
work and communication within the company.

The use of the SAP Central Employee Module was aataed, which manages the individual informatioineach
employee, as well as the organizational structure.

In the last quarter, the option of accessing taibéal pay slip through the Success Factors &atfwas incorporated, thus
saving management time for the employee and thep@oy As a result, pay slips may be consulted sécfirom any
device.

Work relations

The agreements for the generation activity werg siigihed with FATLYF and APUAYE. Conversations begaharmonize
the agreements signed with the Affiliate in Rosg@&ROSA), which still operates under the historggezement with the
union of Energy Workers (Luz y Fuerza) No. 36/ o establish a work plan for its implementatioming 2020.

Corporate social responsibility

As regards the CSR policy, the actions carriedvatttin the framework of Sustainable Development IG&DG) No. 4
were consolidated.

To incorporate other types of actions, we have ghdthe procedure in place and added two moreiSabta Development
Goals: SDG No. 6 “Clean Water and Sanitation” abds3No. 11 “Sustainable Cities and Communities”.sTdéliows us to

continue carrying out actions aimed at improving tommunities in which we operate.

3.3 Systems and Communications

During 2019, the Systems and Communications areatnced to provide maintenance, development, implgation,
innovation and solutions relating to applicatioteschnology, telecommunications, information andcpss security,
guaranteeing a suitable service level and covdhiegCompany’s business needs.

This area has policies and procedures in line witernational standards which are constantly supedvto ensure
compliance with the objectives of the sector, imaicontrols, as well as quality and ongoing imement.

The projects and objectives achieved during 20&@%ammarized below:

. The installation of the fire extinguishing systeon the corporate data center was completed.
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. The installation of a new air conditioning systesnthe corporate data center was completed.

. The installation of the Fiber Optic connectionte Timbues plant was completed.

. Several projects for the installation/extensiolC&fTV camera and monitoring systems were developed:
. Ezeiza: Extension

. Roca: New installation

. Timbues: New installation

. Tucuman: Extension

. The anylink satellite connectivity was set up aondfigured as a backup system for the SOTR.

. The implementation of the corporate departmeniatipg was completed.

. SAP implementation was completed to replace INF@RuUcuman, Timbues, and Rio IV.

. The implementation of the Corporate SAP-VIM projeets completed to improve the accounts payableegsc
. The improvement of the Rio IV data center was edrout.

. Timbues data center was migrated to the new plaildibg.

The new Systems and Information Technology Managémil continue in 2020, with the investment preses aimed at
improving productivity and efficiency of existingqresses, as well as adding innovative technolptfies allowing to
continue with the process to improve the actiomsi$ed on ensuring security, confidentiality, cortgriess and availability
of the information.

Projects for 2020 include the following:

. Incorporation of new servers to the corporate datder.

. Incorporation of better connectivity technologyttie corporate data center.

. Improvement of connectivity at the Tucuman planimtprove the CCTV camera system.
. Windows server and Windows 10 license renewal amehsion.

. Update of computers, laptops and cell phones.

. Expansion and improvement of the commercial andggnigilling systems.

3.3 Integrity Program

Through the Minutes of the Board of Directors’ Megtdated August 16, 2018, the Integrity ProgramGoupo Albanesi
Companies was approved, whereby the Code of Etics Conduct was strengthened, and different psligiere
implemented, including an Anti-corruption Policy,Palicy on the Submission of Tenders and Bids arféobicy on
Relationships with Government Officials.

In addition, a confidential, anonymous and publihi€s Line was implemented for the submission ofmptaints.
Subsequently, additional policies were developedh ss the Gifts Policy or the Policy on Confidality and Use of Work
Tools, and records of the following were kept:Gifts, (ii) Relationships with Government Officiadsd (iii) Conflicts of

Interest, of mandatory use for our employees.

The Code foresees the creation of an Ethics Comeitvhich was created on August 21, 2018 and wikighcharge of
investigating the complaints, reporting to the Bbar

In addition, a training plan was implemented timatuded mandatory classroom-based and online tigini
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Lastly, the Group's structure was reformed to idelthe Compliance function, in charge of Legal Mmment, which
became Corporate Legal and Compliance Management.

3.4 Financial Position

The table below includes a detail of the Compangissolidated indebtedness at December 31, 2019:

Borrower Principal Balances at Interest rate Curren Date of Maturity
12/31/2019 cy Issue date
(Pesos (%)
Loan agreeme
Cargill GMSA USD 15,000,00 976,718,61 LIBOR + 4.25% UsD 2/16/201¢ 1/29/202:
Credit Suisse AG London Brar GECEN USD 24,848,56 1,506,999,47 13.09% USsD 4/25/201¢ 3/20/202!
Credit Suisse AG London Brar GECEN USD 24,383,33 1,463,775,95 7.75% uUsD 4/25/201¢ 3/20/202:
Subtotal 3,947,494,042
Syndicated loa
ICBC / Hipotecario / Citibar GMSA $ 396,500,00 399,189,28 TM20 + 8.00% ARS 12/27/201! 12/27/202!
399,189,285
Debt securitie
International N( GMSA/CTR USD 336,000,00 20,927,319,31 9.625% USsD 71271201t 7/271202!
issi';‘:cs I Negotiable Obligation co ;o5 /TR USD 4,521,000 319,603,030 6.68% usD 10/11/2017  10/11/2020
. ofs'zizr:'c'\'eg"“ab'e Obligation - \isp/cTR USD 80,000,000 4,728,705,163 15.00% usD 8/5/2019 5/5/2023
8.00% until the first
Class Ill Negotiable Obligation amortization date
co-issuance GMSA/CTR USD 25,730,783 1,516,165,641 13.00% until the second usD 12/4/2019 4/12/2021
amortization date.
Class VI Negotiable Obligatio GMSA USD 6,640,27 401,513,51 8.00% usD 2/16/201° 2/16/202(
Class VIII Negotiable Obligation: GMSA $ 312,884,660 327,337,502 BADLAR + 5% ARS 8/28/2017 8/28/2021
8.50% until the first
amortization date, 10.50%
Class X Negotiable Obligations GMSA USD 28,148,340 1,668,374,17¢ until the second amortizatiol uUsD 12/4/2019 2/16/2021
date, and 13.00% until the
third amortization dat
Class Il Negotiable Obligatio CTR $ 108,000,00 109,334,75 BADLAR + 2% ARS 11/17/201! 11/17/2021
Class IVNegotiable Obligatior CTR $291,119,75 354,258,48 BADLAR + 5% ARS 71241201 7/241202:
Class Ill Negotiable Obligation ASA $ 255,826,34 270,110,18 BADLAR + 4.25% ARS 6/15/201 6/15/202:
Subtotal 30,622,721,771
Other liabilities
Supervielle loa GMSA USD 1,015,42 61,259,20 9.90% UsD 8/7/201¢ 2/4/202(
Banco Macro loa GMSA USD 3,333,33 200,672,52 9.00% UsD 8/30/201¢ 1/12/202:
Banco Chubut log GMSA USD 170,34 10,239,81 10.50% USsD 7/18/201¢ 1/18/202(
Banco Chubut log GMSA USD 672,85 40,454,88 11.00% UsD 10/18/201! 4/16/202(
Banco Chubut log GMSA USD 836,99 50,203,01 11.00% USsD 11/25/201! 5/25/202(
Banco Chubut log GMSA USD 1,000,00 60,034,39 11.00% UsD 12/23/201! 6/23/202(
Supervielle Loa GMSA $ 135,000,00 139,532,67 64.50% ARS 11/15/201! 2/7/202(
Banco Ciudad loe CTR USD 5,018,18 307,701,31 7.90% USsD 8/4/201% 8/4/202:
BAPRO loat CTR USD 10,600,00 655,705,25 4.00% UsD 1/3/201¢ 7/15/202(
ICBC loar CTR $ 74,725,00 75,250,25 TM20 + 8% spree ARS 12/27/201! 12/27/202!
Banco Macro loa CTR USD1,666,66 100,418,32 9.00% UsD 12/28/201! 12/12/202
Finance leas GMSA/CTR 133,794,22
Sub-total 1,835,265,877

Total financial debt

36,804,670,97¢
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1. Analysis of the results of operations:

In accordance with the provisions of CNV Generasdtation No. 368/01 and subsequent amendments regeimt
below an analysis of the results of operationslbBAesi S.A. (the Company) and its financial positwhich must be
read together with the attached interim condenseddlidated financial statements.

Fiscalyear ended December 31:

GW
2019 | | 2018 | | Variation | | Variation %

Sales by type of market
Sale of electricity Res. No. No. 95, . 243 233 10 1%
amended, plus sg
Energia Plus sales 566 673 (107) (16%)
Sale of electricity Resolution No. 22 1,421 803 618 7%
Sale of electricity Res. No. 21 580 193 387 201%

2,809 1,902 907 48%

The sales for each market (in millions of pesos)sirown below:

Fiscal yearendedDecember 31:
(in millions of pesos)

| 2019 2018 Variation Variation % |
Sales by type of market
Sale of electricity Res. No. No. 95, as 920.¢ 1,486 (565.3 (38%)
amended, plus sg
Energia Plus sal 2,355.( 2,640.: (285.3] (11%)
Sale of electricity Resolution No. 2 6,663.t 5,547.1 1,115.¢ 20%
Sale of electricity Res. No. 4,260.2 3,063.. 1,197.1 39%
Total 14,199.! 12,737.: 1,462.: 11%
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Results for the fiscal years ended December 319 20d 2018 (in millions of pesos):

Fiscal year ended
December 31

[ 2019 | 1 2018 Variation Variation % |
Sales of ener 14,199.! 12,737.. 1,462. 11%
Net sale 14,199.! 12,737.. 1,462. 11%
Cost of purchase of electric ene (1,531.1 (1,956.1 4250 (22%,;
ggiand diesel consumption at the (184.6) (627.2) 242 6 (71%)
Salaries and social security charge (507.2) (447.1) (60.1) 13%
Defined benefit plan (6.8) (8.8) 22.0 (76%)
Maintenance services (931.9) (794.7) (137.2) 17%
Depreciation of property, plant and o
equipmer (2,319.9) (2,078.8) (241.1) 12%
Insuranc (107.2 (99.6, (7.6, 8%
Sundn (153.2 (168.5 15.2 (9%)
Cost of sales (5,742.1) (6,201.0) 458.9 (7%)
Gross income/(loss) 8,457.4 6,536.2 1,921.2 29%
Rates and tax (89.5 (37.5 (52.0) 139%
Bad debt 0.1 0.1 0.2 (100%,
Provision for Turnover tax - (33.1) 33.1 100%
Selling expenses (89.6) (70.5) (19.1) 27%
Salaries and social security charge (80.5) (39.8) (40.7) 100%
Fees for professional services (434.6) (420.0) (14.6) 3%
Directors’ fee - (0.1 0.1 (100%
Travel and per diem (14.5) (7.2) (7.3) 101%
Rates and tax (14.9 (5.9 (9.0) 153%
Sundn (24.2 (36.6. 12.4 (34%);
Administrative expenses (568.7) (509.7) (59) 12%
Incomg/(Loss) from interest in (144.6) (447.9) 3033 (68%)
associate
Other operating income 10.8 391.7 (380.9) (97%)
Other operating expenses - (544.6) 544.6 (100%)
Operating income 7,665.1 5,355.. 2,310.: 43%
Commercial interest, net (232.1) 83.2 (315.3) (379%)
Interest on loans, net (3,461.5) (3,294.4) (167.1) 5%
Bank expenses and commissions (20.5) (36.8) 16.3 (44%)
Exchange differences, net (14,500.1) (22,754.5) 8,254.4 (36%)
Impairment / Recovery of assets (47.3) 3,230.2 (3,277.5) 100%
Gain/loss on purchasing power par o
(RECPAM 15,983.5 12,112.0 3,871.5 32%
Other financial results (355.0) 900.0 (1,255.0) (139%)
Financial results, net (2,633.1) (9,760.1) 7,127.0 (73%)
Pre-tax profit/(loss) 5,032.2 (4,404.9) 9,437.1 (214%)
Income tax (4,386.0) 7175 (5,103.5) (711%)
Net profit/(loss) for the year 646.2 (3,687.4) 4,333.6 (118%)
Other Comprehensive Income for
the year
Revaluation of property, plant and 2,671.1) 8,169.3 (10,840.4) (133%)
equipment in subsidiaries
Impact on income tax 669.8 (2,042.0) 2,711.8 (133%)
Defined benefit plan (8.2) (1.5) (6.7) 447%
Other comprehensive income for (2,009.4) 6,125.9 (8.135.3) (133%)
the year
Total comprehensive income for (1,363.3) 2.438.5 (3,801.8) (156%)

the year
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Sales:

Net sales for the year ended December 31, 2019 e to $14.199 billion, compared with $12.737idwlfor fiscal year
2018, showing an increase of $1.462 billion (11%).

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019)2BW of electricity were sold, thus accounting £48% increase
compared with the 1,902 GW sold in 2018.

Below is a description of the Company's main reesnand their variation during the year ended Déegr3l, 2019, as
against the previous year:

(i $2.355 billion from sales under Energia Plus, antiag for a decrease of 11% compared to the $2846n sold
in 2018.

(ii) $ 6.663 billion for sales of electricity in the feaird market to CAMMESA under the framework of Resioin No.
220/07, representing a 20% increase with regatide®5.547 billion for 2018. This variation is bzaly attributable to the
effect between an increase in the energy dispatchezito the closing to the combined cycle in tid&RE plant as from
August 4, 2018, a higher exchange rate and thdt resapplying SRRyME Resolution No. 01/2019 thatablishes new
remuneration mechanisms.

(iii) $920.8 million for sales of energy under Resolutim 95, as amended, plus Spot, accounting fol%a @8crease
with regard to the $1,486 billion for fiscal yed1B, as a result of the application of SRRyME Retsmh No. 01/2019 which
established new remuneration mechanisms.

(iv) $4.260 billion from sales under Resolution No. @4,39% from the $3.063 billion sold in fiscal yedr18. This
variation is explained by the greater sale of eieity, in GW.

Cost of sales:

The total cost of sales for the year ended Dece@beP019 reached $5.742 billion, compared witl2@6.billion for fiscal
year 2018, thus accounting for a decrease of $488li®&n (or 7%).

Below is a description of the main costs of safes® Company, in millions of pesos, and their perfance during fiscal year
2019.

0] $1.531 billion from purchases of electricity, whiabcounted for a 22% drop compared with the $11866n for
fiscal year 2018, due to lower sales of GW undear§ia Plus.

(ii) $184.6 million for gas and diesel consumption a& pant, representing a decrease of 71% as aghm$627.2
million recorded in fiscal 2018.

(iii) $931.9 million for maintenance services, a ris@ % compared with the $794.7 million recorded scéil year 2018.
This change was due to the variation in the dellahange rate and the start-up of new turbines.

(iv) $2.319 billion for depreciation of PP&E, up 12%rfrahe $2.078 billion recorded in fiscal year 201Bis variation
resulted mainly from the higher depreciation valueder the buildings, facilities and machinery hagdi due to their
revaluation in 2019 and 2018.

(v) $570.2 million for salaries and social security ttitnutions, up 13% from the $447.1 million recorded®018.
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Gross income/(loss):

Gross income for the year ended December 31, 2@K9$8.457 billion, compared with income of $6.588adm for fiscal
year 2018, accounting for an increase of 29%. Ehikle to the variation in the exchange rate amdep@nd energy income
from the new turbines authorized.

Selling expenses:

Selling expenses for the year ended December 3B &@ounted to $89.6 million, compared with the.$88illion for fiscal
year 2018, accounting for an increase of $19.1ianil{27%).

Administrative expenses:

Administrative expenses for the year ended Dece®ibe2019 amounted to $568.7 million, compared with$509.7 million
recorded in fiscal year 2018, accounting for ameéase of $59.0 million (12%).

The main components of the Company’s administraikfenses are listed below:

(i $434.6 million in fees and compensation for servi@ecounting for an increase of 3% compared wigh$420.0
million recorded in fiscal year 2018.

(ii) $14.9 million in rates and taxes, which accountedaf153% increase compared with the $5.9 millarfitcal year
2018.

Operating income/(loss):

Operating income for the year ended December 319 s $7.665 billion, compared with income of $5.Billion for the
year 2018, accounting for a 43% increase.

Financial results:

Financial results for the fiscal year ended Decanie 2019 amounted to a total loss of $2.633drillicompared with the
loss of $9.760 billion recorded in fiscal year 2pdBich accounted for a decrease of $7,127 hillion.

The most noticeable aspects of the variation are:

0] $3.461 billion loss corresponding to financial netst, up 5% from the $3.294 billion loss recorde@018 as a result
of an increase in the financial debt generatechibgstment projects.

(ii) $15.983 billion gain on PPP (RECPAM) as a resulthef application of adjustment for inflation, repeating an

increase of $3.871 billion compared with $12.11#idm gain for fiscal year 2018, as consequencéhefhigher inflation
recorded in 2019 compared with 2018.
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(i) $14.500 billion loss due to net exchange differeneecounting for a decrease of $8,254 billion careg with the
$22.754 billion loss recorded in the previous figear. Despite the exchange rate rise in fiscal #9019 compared with the
previous fiscal year, there is a decrease in hgldasults mainly due to the effects of the restatamf exchange gains/losses
for fiscal year 2018 by applying the CPI.

Pre-tax profit/(loss):

The Company reported pre-tax income of $5.032dmilfor the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019¢chvaccounted for a
$9.437 billion increase compared with the loss4#84 billion recorded in the previous fiscal year.

The income tax charge was a $4.386 billion losdtierfiscal year ended December 31, 2019, reprieseatloss of $5.103
billion compared with the 717.5 million income file previous fiscal year.

Net income/loss:

For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Compmoyded net income amounting to $646.2 millioncaating for an
increase of $4.333 billion considering the los$®%686 billion recorded in fiscal year 2018.

Comprehensive income:

Other comprehensive loss for fiscal year 2019 waidiw$2.009 billion, accounting for a 133% decreammpared with fiscal
year 2018, and included the revaluation of propgutant and equipment and its effect on incomeasxvell as the pension
plan.

Total comprehensive loss for the year amounted 1868 billion, representing a 156% decrease condp@reomprehensive
income of $2.438 billion recorded in fiscal yead 80

Adjusted EBITDA

Fiscal year ended
December 31:

2019

Adjusted EDITA in millions of pesos® ®
10,222.6

Adjusted EDITA in millions of US dollars @ @ 208.9

(1) Figures not covered by the Auditors’ Report
(2) Figures do not include the Group’s share in GECHEN:®sme/loss, which has been excluded from theutation, as mentioned
in paragrpah 7.
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2. Equity figures presented comparatively with the praious fiscal year:(in millions of pesos)

12312019 || 12312018 || 12312017 |
Nor-current Asse 51,849.( 48,005.° 26,387.0
Current asse 9,689.f 8,358.( 5,447.7
Total assets 61,538. 56,363." 31,834.7
Equity attributable to the own 8,319.( 10,095.( 6,207.6
Equity ofnor-controlling interes 881.1 964.1 324.6
Total equity 9,200.: 11,059.: 6,532.2
Nor-current liabilitie: 40,621 34,350 19,7205
Current liabilitie: 11,717 10,954.; 5,582.0
Total liabilities 52,338 45,304.( 25,302.!
Total equity and liabilities 61,538 56,363." 31,834.7

3. Income statement figures presented comparatively Wi the previous fiscal year:(in millions of pesos)

| 12312019 || 12312018 || 12312017 |
Ordinary operating profit/(loss) 7,665.: 5,355.; 2,500.2
Financial result (2,633.1 (9,760.1 (2,888.4)
Ordinary net income/(loss) 5,032.2 (4,404.9 (388.3)
Income tax (4,386.0 717.5 813.9
Incomel/loss for the year 646.2 (3,687.4 425.7
Other comprehensive income/(loss) (2,009.4 6,125.¢ (2.9)
Total comprehensive income (1,363.3 2,438.t 422.7

4. Cash flow figures presented comparatively with th@revious fiscal year:(in millions of pesos)

| 1231201 || 1231200 || 1231201 |
Cash flows provided by operatiactivities 5,895.. 1,447.¢ 5121t
Cash flows (used in) investment activities (2,899.3 (5,060.7 (10,016.0)
Cash flows (used in) / provided by financing attds (2,014.1 4,125.; 3,482.2
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 981.€ 512.% (1,412.3)

5. Ratios presented comparatively with the previous yag:

12312019 || 12312018 || 12.31.2017
Liquidity (1) 0.82 0.7€ 0.98
Creditworthiness (2) 0.1€ 0.22 0.25
Tied-up capital (3) 0.84 0.8t 0.83
Return on equity (4) 0.0€ (0.42) 0.11

(1) Current assets / Current liabilities

(2) Shareholders’ Equity / Total liabilities

(3) Non-current assets / Total assets

(4) Netincome/loss for the year (without other compredive income) / Average Shareholders’ Equity

28



Free translation from the original prepared in Sgafor publication in Argentina

4. OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE
The structure of the organization is shown in thifving table

30% 50% 20%

m Armando R. Carlos Bauzas
Loson

l

Albanesi S.A.

Central Térmica 75% |95% Generacion
Roca S.A. Mediterranea S.A.

Solalban 42%| 95% Generacion

Energia S.A. Rosario S.A.

Generacion Litoral  95%|95%  Generacion Centro
SA. SA.

Holen S.A., Armando Los6n y Catlos Bauzas hold the remaining 5% in GMSA, GROSA, GLSA, and GECEN.

Share Capital

At December 31, 2019, the Company's capital wasenupdof 64,451,745 ordinary, non-endorsable, batkyeshares of $1
par value each, and entitled to 1 vote per shastjlited as follows:

. Armando Roberto Losoén 50% (32,225,873 shares)
. Holen S.A. 30% (12,890,348 shares)
. Carlos Alfredo Bauzas 20% (19,335,524 shares)

Organization of the decision-making process

As indicated in the various sections of Annex I\éading 1V, of the Rules of the CNV that are attatteethis Annual Report
relating to the degree of compliance with the Cofd@orporate Governance, the Company’s policiesstiradegies are defined
by the Board of Directors to be executed by eacthefsectors under the supervision of the corredfipgnManagement
divisions and, ultimately, of the Board of Direcor

Decisions that are considered significant and/@vent in terms of their magnitude and/or amouwmbined relating to the
administration of the Company’s activities are melutectly by the Board of Directors in a meetingsially convened for this
purpose. When required in specific cases, the idecisill be made by a specially convened extraaadinShareholders’
Meeting. All the decisions by the Shareholders’ Negon the events that took place in 2019 have b@leen unanimously,
while those related to the Board have been tak@irgpthe majority as set forth in the Bylaws.
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Directors’ fees

The decisions made by the Company relating togks 6f the members of the Board of Directors amimnpliance with the
limits and guidelines envisaged in Article 261 @w.No. 19550, and Articles 1 to 7 of Chapter ligading Il, of the Rules
of the National Securities Commission.

5. OUTLOOK FOR THE YEAR 2020

5.1 Outlook for the Electricity Generation Market

The regulatory activity in 2018 remained almostharged until midyear, when the new Minister of Eyesubsequently the
Energy Government Secretariat, promoted flexiblestes for the direct hiring of natural gas by thedrgenerators, reducing
the reference price of natural gas that would begrized in the payments of electricity suppliedtegm.

Further, bidding systems were established by CAMMES the purchase of natural gas in the contexdavatrsupply of that
fuel, which reduced the average prices and théyanteficit.

However, with the change of administration thaktptace in December 2019, Resolution 12/19 repeRésblution 70/18 of
the former Government Secretariat of Energy offtimmer Ministry of Treasury, which allowed generatéo manage their
own fuel supply.

According to the Government, this change wouldltésihe saving of the subsidies paid by the AtgenTreasury, assuming
that the centralization of natural gas purchaséswable to obtain a lower price.

The availability of current generating units is paged by the addition of many new units acquiredar long-term contracts,
whether thermal or nuclear, as well as renewabits im2019 and 2020. This investment process twgeatith the moderate
growth in demand in the last three years has satlaquate level of generation reserves to meetegeemand.

Despite the significant reduction in value of theyéntine peso of over 50%, CAMMESA honored alldtsg-term contracts
meeting the economic and financial conditions, araking the payments at the free exchange ratericegpagreed upon in
dollars. The same occurred with the payments flxe®Resolution 1/2019 to generators without congrathe fact of having
strictly fulfilled the contractual conditions andade the payments in accordance with prevailinglegigms is not a minor
detail in such a complex year as 2019.

The Electricity Emergency declared by the Governnireearly 2016 ended on December 31, 2017. Howdkerelectricity
sector still requires that some outstanding tagksdmpleted to regularize operations, and wholgs@de increases need to
continue to provide economic sustainability witheubsidies to the sector.

The international financing restrictions on Argeatiwill delay the entry of new investments in dliedly generation units
compared with the pace of investments committe2i0ib6 to 2019, thus revaluing the existing plants g projects in the
process of final construction. The absence of atgrehydroelectric power supply over the next Srygaovides a favorable
outlook in terms of thermal unit dispatches, mitgghby the addition of new units for the generatibmenewable energy
sources in a context of potential growing demamdfectricity by 2020, once economic growth hasnbesumed, following
the impact in 2018 and 2019.
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The introduction of renewable energy plants poselsadienge to the system since they work uninteediy. The support to
be provided to these units by thermal units seesssrgial.

In February of this year, the current Secretarfidgrergy published Resolution No. 31/2020 that aép&esolution No. 1/19
issued by the previous administration. This nevoltg®n modifies the conditions for the remuneratmf generators who
have not executed contracts. Capacity and genergtioes are pesified, with a reduction of the res price, and monthly
updates will be made subject to changes in thea@@lthe IPIM. This change would represent a safdnthe Government in
terms of energy costs via subsidies.

After years of deterioration of the various Ene8gctor variables, the present scenario and theaku#lre auspicious despite
the difficult challenges in 2018 and the existiimiahcial restrictions. It is expected that the Goweent will issue policies
that complete the normalization of the electricctor, to maintain the operating conditions amarfcial health of the
generating sector.

5.2 Company outlook for the year 2020

Electricity

Company’s management expects to continue operatidgnormally maintaining the various generatingsutai maintain high
levels of availability in 2020. The fact of intnecing more efficient group machines to the EledtriSystem would imply
obtaining higher levels of dispatch, and thus,éasing the generation of electricity with fuel gomd by CAMMESA, and
in some cases with its own fuel.

Financial Position

During the current year, the Company's objectivenisuring financing to make progress with the itmest works described
according to the budgeted schedules. Meanwhile fittaacing structure will continue to be strengtéénensuring the
Company’s gradual debt reduction.

6. DISTRIBUTION OF INCOME/LOSS

In compliance with the prevailing legal provisiotise Board of Directors of the Company informs thabme of $646,187,502
has been recorded for the year. At December 319,20kumulated profits amount to $127,289,572,thadptional reserve
to $603,150,717. The General Shareholders’ Meeatiitigdiscuss and decide on the final destinatiorsath accumulated
profits.

7. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Board of Directors wishes to thank all the esgpes of the Company for their work during the y&ader review, which
has been essential to the achievement of the Corisp@chnical and economic results. Additionaltywishes to expressly
acknowledge the contribution of its clients and@igps, and of the banking entities and other dmltators, who have worked
toward better management of the business througheutear.

City of Buenos Aires, March 10, 2020

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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ALBANESI S.A.

REPLIES - EXHIBIT IV - Annual report for the fiscal year ended
12.31.19

A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. The Board of Directors has an ethical work culture and establishes the Company’s
vision, mission and values.

Central Térmica Roca S.A. (the “Company”) is controlled by Albanesi S.A., one of the companies of
Grupo Albanesi (the “Group”), engaged in the generation and sale of electric power. As a result, we
share the Group’s vision, mission and value.

On August 16, 2018, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the Group’s Integrity Program (the
“Program”) and policies, among others, the Code of Ethics and Conduct. In addition, the Company’s
Board of Directors is the body responsible for generating an ethical work culture by establishing the
pillars of the Group’s vision, mission and values, which can be accessed via web
www.albanesi.com.ar.

The Company offers a wide range of products and services that show the ability to develop and
execute new projects to strengthen its presence in the energy market, as well as to explore new
businesses generating constant growth. It also offers a proposal that adds value based on a
relationship of trust and quality with all its customers, providing not only an excellent product but also
a high-quality service based on its excellence standards.

The mission of the Company's Board of Directors is to provide reliable and sustainable access to
energy for both the industry and the national interconnected system, through the generation of
thermal and steam electricity, and the commercialization of gas. Thus, the Board understands and is
responsible for optimizing the energy needs of customers and seeks that the Company be chosen for
the value proposition that we offer.

Values serve as guiding principles of our behavior and rule our individual and group actions. They
are the Company’s DNA and govern day-to-day and short- and long-term decisions; we consider
ourselves guardians of values, such as respect, responsibility, transparency, proactivity, and
innovation. These values were consolidated in the Code of Ethics and Conduct approved through the
Minutes of the Board of Directors' Meeting dated August 16, 2018.

2. The Board of Directors devises the Company's general strategy and approves the
strategic plan developed by Management. In doing so, the Board of Directors takes
into account environmental, social and corporate governance factors. The Board of
Directors supervises its implementation by using key performance indicators and
taking into account the best interest of the Company and all its shareholders.

The Board of Directors, together with the different management divisions of the Company - structured
based on the relevant areas -, sets the goals and objectives, as well as the process to monitor
compliance with the Company’s policies and general strategies.
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The executive business management is entrusted to the Executive Officers and Managers, as
appropriate. In addition, the Board of Directors approves the investment and financing policies.

The participation of the management divisions is key when establishing the general strategy, since
they are directly and immediately aware of the specific needs of each sector.

The Company's general strategies are also established taking into account the vision and mission,
as well as internal and external risk factors. The Board of Directors is the body responsible for
monitoring compliance with and application of the strategy in accordance with the values that govern
the Company's business.

Usual practices include periodic work meetings of the members of the Board of Directors and the
Corporate Management, meetings of those responsible for the different areas reporting to the Board,
discussion by the Board of Directors of relevant and strategic issues.

3. The Board supervises the Management and ensures that it develops, implements,
and maintains an adequate internal control system with clear reporting lines.

The Company has various mechanisms to provide information to its Directors and Managers well in
advance, to keep them updated at the time of making a decision. The Board of Directors has worked
on the establishment of regular procedures for informative meetings in all the aforementioned aspects
to facilitate the decision-making of the management body, especially periodic meetings with the
Management Committee made up of the Corporate Managers of each area and also, the meetings
of the Board of Directors with the point persons of each area.

4. The Board of Directors designs the corporate governance structures and practices,
appoints the person responsible for their implementation, monitors their
effectiveness and suggests changes, if necessary.

The Board of Directors has led the development and creation process of the Integrity Program, which
was approved through the Minutes of the Board of Directors’ Meeting, dated August 16, 2018 ,and
which was initially based on the following pillars: (i) a Code of Ethics and Conduct (the “Code”), (ii)
an Anti-corruption Policy, (iii) a Policy on the Submission of Tenders and Bids, (iv) a Policy on
Relationships with Government Officials; and (v) an Ethics Line for anonymous reports from third
parties (the “Line”), managed by PricewaterhouseCoopers, and is constantly receiving advice on best
practices on this regard.

Among Corporate Governance Policies, the Corporate Governance Code is a resource that helps us
act ethically and responsibly in our daily activities. It is a guide to provide information on how to deal
with the most frequent problems related to business conduct. Good corporate governance is essential
to guarantee the growth and soundness of Grupo Albanesi, optimize its transparency, professionalize
administrative practices, and protect the rights of shareholders and investors. The main objective of
the Board of Directors is to ensure that the value delivered to shareholders and other stakeholders is
channeled through the growth of the organization and its business, as well as through an adequate
internal control framework.

To monitor compliance with existing policies, (i) the Human Resources Committee and (ii) the Ethics
Committee are in operation, the creation of which was established by the Code. These committees
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are made up of the Corporate Human Resources Manager, the Corporate Legal & Compliance
Manager and an advisor, independent from the shareholders; they both hold regular meetings that
are sufficient according to the current Company's structure.

5. The members of the Board of Directors have sufficient time to perform their duties in
a professional and efficient manner. The Board and its committees have clear and
formal rules for their operation and organization, which are disclosed through the
Company's website.

The Company's Board of Directors is the highest management body. Given the Company's structure,
all the members of the Board of Directors work full-time for the Company, so that they have sufficient
time to perform their duties. Regarding its operation, and considering the Company's structure, it is
governed in accordance with the Company's bylaws, management is entrusted to the Board of
Directors, which is made up of a minimum of five and a maximum of nine regular directors. The
Shareholders’ Meeting must elect at least one deputy director (up to the number it decides). Directors
will hold office for three fiscal years and must have the knowledge and competencies necessary to
clearly understand their responsibilities and functions within Corporate Governance, and act with the
loyalty and diligence of a good businessperson.

All members of the Board are fully in compliance with the provisions of article 7 of the Company's
Bylaws, regarding the Board membership and performance. For the adequate operation of the Board
of Directors, the General Shareholders’ Meeting determines the number of directors and appoints
them. Responsibilities of the Board include, among others, accounting and finance, internal control,
business evaluation, risk management, leadership, business vision and strategy.

The Board meets periodically in compliance with the legal provisions and whenever required by any
of the directors; furthermore, it is responsible for the general administration of the Company, making
all the necessary decisions for that purpose.

B) THE CHAIR OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE CORP ORATE
SECRETARIAT

6. The Chairman of the Board is responsible for the good organization of Board
meetings, prepares the agenda guaranteeing the collaboration of the other members
and ensures that they receive the necessary materials sufficiently in advance to
participate in the meetings in an informed and efficient manner. The chairpersons of
the committees have the same responsibilities for their meetings.

The business to be transacted at Board meetings is previously discussed in the meetings of the
relevant areas, be them with the Corporate Management or point persons and committees. The
members of the Board of Directors are previously informed of the business to be transacted at
meetings, and the calls to said meetings are coordinated through the Legal Department (responsible
for preparing the relevant minutes) and the secretariats of the Board, all under the supervision of the
Chairman of the Board of Directors.

The Chairman of the Board is the person who presides over the Company’s Board of Directors'
Meetings. Decisions are made after deliberation by all the members attending the meeting.
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Likewise, the Chairman ensures that the Shareholders' Meetings are called sufficiently in advance
and proposes the agenda.

7. The Chairman of the Board of Directors ensures the correct internal operation of the
Board of Directors by implementing formal annual evaluation processes.

As this is a closed entity, in which the Directors are executives who work full-time for the Company
and proportionally represent the shareholder families, we understand that an evaluation process
different from the one that applies to the rest of the payroll is not required.

8. The Chairman creates a positive and constructive workspace for all the members of
the Board of Directors and ensures that they receive continuous training to stay up-
to-date and to correctly fulfill their functions.

At Grupo Albanesi, we believe that a continuous training process is required to properly perform the
functions within the Board of Directors - directors must obtain the knowledge and skills that allow
them to efficiently and effectively manage the risks of the organization.

Bearing in mind the professional skills of the people who have served and are currently serving on
the Board of Directors, as part of the Company's regular management, the Board of Directors, at the
request of the Chairman, adopts update and general and/or particular training sessions depending
on the specific needs that may arise in the exercise of the functions and responsibilities of each of
the members of the Board of Directors or the executives.

9. The Corporate Secretariat provides support to the Chairman of the Board in the
effective administration of the Board and collaborates in the communication among
shareholders, Board of Directors and the Management.

Given the Company's structure, where all directors are executives, the function described in the
Corporate Secretariat regulations is performed by all the members of the Corporate Management that
make up the Management Committee. By meeting, they guarantee the efficiency and effectiveness
of the subsequent Board meetings, in which all attendees are informed, since they have already
participated in the previous meetings with the leaders of each area.

10. The Chairman of the Board ensures the participation of all its members in the
development and approval of a succession plan for the Managing Director of the
Company.

Given the Company's structure and way in which the Board of Directors acts (already explained in
the previous paragraphs), there is no specific position of Managing Director. Succession of the
Chairman is expressly regulated by the Company's bylaws.



Free trandation from the original prepared in Spanish for publication in Argentina

C) COMPOSITION, APPOINTMENT AND SUCCESSION OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS.

11. The Board of Directors has at least two members who are independent in
accordance with the current criteria established by the National Securities
Commission (CNV).

On the basis of its ownership structure, and as the Company does not make public offering of its
shares, the Company does not consider it necessary to have independent Directors.

12. The Company has a Nominations Committee that is made up of at least three (3)
members and is chaired by an independent director. If the Chairman of Board of
Directors is also the Chairman of the Nominations Committee, he/she will refrain
from participating in the discussions over the appointment of his/her own successor.

Notwithstanding the fact that at present, the Company does not have a Nominations Committee,
Directors are elected by the Shareholders' Meeting at the proposal of the acting Board members, and
according to suitability criteria, based on the Company’s needs, business and strategy.

13. The Board, through the Nominations Committee, develops a succession plan for its
members that rules the pre-selection process for candidates to fill vacancies, and
takes into account the non-binding recommendations made by its members, the
Managing Director and the shareholders.

As mentioned in point 12 of section c) hereof, and without prejudice to the fact that at present, the
Company does not have a Nominations Committee and a formal pre-selection process for candidates
for the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors may, based on its experience and knowledge of the
needs of the Company's management, propose candidates to fill the vacancies to the Shareholders’
Meeting, on a non-binding basis.

14. The Board implements a training program for its newly elected members.

Given that the Company is a closed entity and there have been no changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors, making it extremely stable, the implementation of a training program is not
considered necessary as long as this trend in the composition of the Board of Directors continues.

D) REMUNERATION.

15. The Company has a Remunerations Committee that is made up of at least three (3)
members. The members are entirely independent or non-executive.
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Considering its structure, the Company understands that the existence of a Compensation Committee
is not necessary, as most of the tasks set forth in the standard and related tasks are carried out by
Corporate Human Resources Management and the Human Resources Committee.

16. The Board, through the Remunerations Committee, establishes a remuneration
policy for the Managing Director and members of the Board.

As previously stated, the Board's remuneration policy does not differ from the parameters established
for the Group's payroll as a whole and is aligned with the provisions of the General Companies Law,
as appropriate.

E) CONTROL ENVIRONMENT.

17. The Board of Directors determines the Company's risk appetite and also supervises
and guarantees the existence of a comprehensive risk management system that
identifies, evaluates, decides the course of action and monitors the risks that the
Company faces, including, but not limited to, environmental, social and business
risks in the short and long term.

Both the Board of Directors and the different management divisions of the Company have vast
experience in the business. In periodic meetings with the Management, the managers disclose the
risks identified and Management determines the risk appetite.

The main risks of the activity are related to maintenance, hygiene, safety and environmental factors.
Work programs include the necessary measures to prevent and, where appropriate, mitigate these
risks. Performance results are evaluated by the Board of Directors, with the participation of the Plant
Management.

18. The Board of Directors monitors and reviews the effectiveness of the independent
internal audit and guarantees the resources for the implementation of an annual risk-
based audit plan and a direct report line to the Audit Committee.

The Company's Internal Audit Department reports to the Chairman of the Board of Directors, which
provides the independence necessary to perform its duties.

An annual risk-based audit plan is developed which is presented to the Board for approval.

The Board of Directors periodically monitors the evolution of the Plan and the effectiveness of the
work carried out.

19. The internal auditor or members of the Internal Audit Department are independent
and highly trained.

The members of the Internal Audit Department are university graduates, including Public
Accountants, Bachelors of Business Administration and of Information Technology. They have
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sufficient audit experience and business knowledge. An annual training plan is contemplated for team
members.

20. The Board of Directors has an Audit Committee that acts based upon regulations.
The committee is mostly made up of and chaired by independent directors and does
not include the Managing Director. Most of its members have professional
experience in financial and accounting areas.

The Company does not have an Audit Committee. The Board actively participates in matters
relating to:

- Financial reporting

- Fraud risks

- Independent internal audit

- Appointment of the external auditor

- Ethics and Compliance Program

21. The Board of Directors, following the opinion of the Audit Committee, approves a
policy for selecting and monitoring external auditors, which sets the indicators that
must be considered when making a recommendation to the Shareholders' Meeting
on the retention or replacement of the external auditor.

The Company does not have a rotation policy for the members of the Surveillance
Committee. Price Waterhouse & Co. SRL served as independent external auditor of the
Company during the last few fiscal years. The Company will adjust the rotation of the
External Auditor in due course, as established by current regulations.

F) ETHICS, INTEGRITY AND COMPLIANCE.

22. The Board of Directors approves a Code of Ethics and Conduct that reflects the
values and ethical principles of integrity, as well as the culture of the Company. The
Code of Ethics and Conduct is communicated and applicable to all Company
directors, managers and employees.

In February 2018, Grupo Albanesi began the process of strengthening its Code of Ethics as part of
the implementation of an Integrity Program to ensure its effectiveness in connection with the different
related risks. The new Integrity Program was approved through the Board of Directors’ Meeting dated
August 16, 2018, the date on which the new Code was also approved, which reflects the valuesand
culture of the Company and which applies to all shareholders, directors and employees in general in
all locations where Grupo Albanesi operates.
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23. The Board of Directors establishes and periodically reviews, based on the risks, size
and financial capacity, an Ethics and Integrity Program. Management supports the
plan in a clear and unequivocal manner, and appoints an internal manager to
develop, coordinate, supervise and evaluate periodically the program for its
effectiveness. The program sets forth: (i) periodic training for directors, managers
and employees on ethics, integrity and compliance; (ii) internal channels for reporting
irregularities, open to third parties and adequately disclosed; (iii) a policy to protect
whistleblowers from retaliation; and an internal investigation system that safeguards
the rights of the investigated persons and imposes effective sanctions for violations
of the Code of Ethics and Conduct; (iv) integrity policies relating to bidding
processes; (V) mechanisms for periodic risk analysis, monitoring and evaluation of
the Program; and (vi) procedures that verify the integrity and track record of third
parties or business partners (including due diligence to verify irregularities, illegal
acts or vulnerabilities during the processes of corporate transformation and
acquisitions), including suppliers, distributors, service providers, agents and
intermediaries.

The Board of Directors approves the reviews and proposals made by the Ethics Committee regarding
the Company's Integrity Program, implementing the pertinent modifications to the policies and
measures already in place, as well as reinforcing and creating new ones. All this considering the
related risks, as well as the size and economic capacity of the Company. Modifications are then
communicated to the Company's employees, directors and shareholders.

Regarding the aforementioned actions, and under the Integrity Program, the Company implemented
a Training Plan that began with the plant managers, trustees, directors, shareholders, department
managers and key employees, who received classroom-based courses.

In September 2019, the Group launched a mandatory e-learning to train all employees, guaranteeing
and facilitating access in all the country locations where the Company operates.

As previously stated, the Integrity Program created an Ethics Line for anonymous reports by
third parties, managed by PricewaterhouseCoopers. The four channels available may be
consulted in the following web site: http://www.albanesi.com.ar/linea-etica.php

The Code of Ethics establishes that whistleblowers should not be retaliated against, but protected,
and may remain anonymous, if they so decide.

Furthermore, the Company is implementing a Due Diligence process for third parties, which will
require the previous analysis of any third party willing to do business with the Company. In addition,
an Anti-corruption and Ethics clause was included in the bidding terms and conditions and in the
contracts to which the Company is a party.

24. The Board ensures the existence of formal mechanisms to prevent and manage
conflicts of interest. In the case of transactions between related parties, the Board of
Directors approves a policy that establishes the role of each corporate body and
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defines how to identify, manage and disclose transactions causing damage to the
Company or only to certain investors.

In compliance with the provisions of the Code, a mandatory registry of Conflicts of Interest was
created, which can be accessed by all members of the Company. The Ethics Committee reviews the
registry, analyzes the reported conflicts, and reports them to the Company’s Board of Directors.

G) PARTICIPATION OF SHAREHOLDERS AND STAKEHOLDERS.

25. The Company's website discloses financial and non-financial information, providing
timely and equal access to all Investors. The website has a specialized area for
dealing with inquiries from Investors.

In the website of Grupo Albanesi (www.albanesi.com.ar), the Company provides specific
information for investors. In the website, the Company provides detailed information, as required
by the CNV for each securities issue. The Company has developed a section within the website to
include not only corporate information but also information important for users in general.

Without prejudice to the fact that it does not have an Investor Relations Officer, the tasks detailed in
the regulation regarding contact with and information to investors are carried out by the Management
of Financial Structuring, and the Legal and Compliance Department updates the information related
to Corporate Governance Policies.

26. The Board of Directors must ensure that there is a procedure in place for identifying
and classifying stakeholders and a communication channel for them.

In the website of Grupo Albanesi (www.albanesi.com.ar), the Company has a communication
channel with stakeholders to clear all general doubts. Stakeholders may send an e-mail to
the Company at inversores@albanesi.com.ar, specifying the Company in connection with which
they are requiring information.

27. Prior to Shareholders’ Meetings, the Board of Directors sends to the shareholders a
"provisional information package" that allows them - through a formal communication
channel - to make non-binding comments and share dissenting opinions on the
recommendations made by the Board of Directors. When sending the final
information package, the Board must expressly reply to the comments received, as
it deems necessary.

The Board of Directors sends to the shareholders in advance all the information necessary to discuss
the relevant matters at the Shareholders’ Meeting. It is worth mentioning that, being a closed entity,
it is quite simple for the Company to send information and different reports, which is reflected in the
participation and unanimous decision of all resolutions made at Shareholders’ Meetings so far.
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28. Under the Company's by-laws, shareholders can receive information packages for
the Shareholders' Meeting through virtual means and participate in the meetings
through electronic means of communication that allow the simultaneous
transmission of sound, images and words, thus ensuring the principle of equal
treatment of all participants.

Since the Company does not make public offering of its shares, at present, it does not require the
implementation of electronic means of communication for the transmission of information. The
provision of information by the Board of Directors to the shareholders is guaranteed.

29. The Dividend Distribution Policy is aligned with the strategy and clearly establishes
the criteria, frequency and conditions under which dividend distribution will be
performed.

The Issuer does not have a specific policy on dividend distribution established by the bylaws and
approved by the Shareholders' Meeting. Article 10 of the Company's Bylaws establishes that
dividends must be paid in proportion to the shares paid-up within the year in which dividends are
approved.

Armando Losén (Jr.)
President

10
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Albanesi S.A.

Composition of the Board of Directors and SyndicsCommittee
at December 31, 2019

President
Armando Losén (Jr

1st Vice President
Guillermo G. Brun

2nd Vice President
Julian P Sart

Full Directors
Carlos A. Bauze
Sebastian A. Sanchez Rar
Oscar C. De Luis

Alternate Directors
José L. Sar
Juan G. Dal

Ricardo M. Lope

Romina S. Kelleyia

Full Syndics
Enrique O. Ruc
Francisco A. Land6
Marcelo P. Lerne

Alternate Syndics
Carlos I. Vela
Juan Cruz Nocciolino

Marcelo C. Barattie
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Corporate nam

Legal addres

Main business activit

Tax Registration Numbe

Albanesi S.A.

Consolidated financial statements

Albanesi S.A

Av. L.N. Alem 855, 14tHloor - City of Buenos Aire

Dates of registration with the Public Registry aim@merce

Bylaws or incorporation agreeme
Latest amendmet

Registration with the Legal Entities Regulator unde

number

Expiration of bylaws or incorporation agreem

June 28, 19¢
February 23, 201

30-6825041-5

Investing and financial activiti

6,216 of Book 115, Volume A (Corporation

June 28, 20¢

CAPITAL STATUS (see Note 14

Shares
Number of Subscribed, paid-
votes per in and registered
Number Type share 9
$
64,451,74 | Common, registeremnor-endorsable FV 1 64,451,74
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ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipm
Investments in associa
Investments in other compar
Deferred tax asse

Income tax credit balan
Other receivable

Trade receivable

Total non-current assets
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventorie:

Income tax credit balance,
Available-for-sale asse
Other receivable

Trade receivabl

Albanesi S.A.

Consolidated statement of financial position
At December 31, 2019 and 2018

Stated in pesos

Otherfinancial assets at fair value through profit as:

Cash and cash equivale
Total current assets
Total Asset:

Notes 12.31.201 12.31.201
7 51,348,463,5C 47,098,732,05
8 243,021,42 387,612,54

129,86: 199,76¢

23 190,18( 117,434,13

1,921,44¢ 2,351,90

11 255,231,00 173,816,03

12 - 225561,71
51,848,957,436  48,005,708,162

9 248,121,14 201,798,35

2,637,06. 603,90:

10 - 2,379,470,60

11 3,054,438,32 1,562,121,04

12 4,679,611,24 2,897,187,63

- 472,025,49

13 1,704,681,67 844,807,96
9,689,489,456 8,354,015,000

61,538,446,8¢

56,363,723,1€

The accompanying notes form an integral pathe$e consolidated financial statements.
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Albanesi S.A.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Condl)
At December 31, 2019 and 2018
Stated in pesos

Notes 12.31.2019 12.31.2018
EQUITY
Share Capiti 14 64,451,74 64,451,74
Capital Adjustmer 235,598,68 235,598,68
Legal reserv 32,651,83 32,651,83
Optional reserv 603,150,71 1,090,335,89
Special Reserve GR No. 777 3,742,263,12 3,907,836,58
Technical revaluation resel 3,532,641,05 5,653,270,67
Other comprehensive incol (19,044,371 (13,554,554
Unappropriated retained earnil 127,289,57 (87E,55€,713)
Equity attributable to the owners 8,319,002,358 10,095,034,147
Non-controlling interest 881,091,503 964,119,796
Total Equity 9,200,093,86 11,059,153,94
LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provision: 20 - 6,898,80!
Deferred tax liabilitie 23 7,540,697,51 3,957,112,32
Other liabilities 17 1,930,09 1,785,38.
Defined benefit pla 24 42,337,83 35,882,64
Loans 18 31,570,185,3¢ 28,555,603,4¢€
Trade payable 16 1,466,099,37 1,793,046,38
Total non-current liabilities 40,621,250,221 34,350,329,004
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other liabilities 17 661,99 48,058,61
Social security dek 21 108,241,25 81,674,46
Defined benefit pla 24 10,518,31 9,888,89.
Loans 18 5,234,485,58 6,160,486,37
Income tax, ne - 51,225,04
Tax payable 22 259,908,99 27,909,85
Trade payable 16 6,103,286,66 4,554,026,83
Total current liabilities 11,717,102,81 10,954,240,21
Total liabilities 52,338,353,03 45,304,569,21

Total liabilities and equity

61,538,446,892

56,363,723,162

The accompanying notes form an integral pathe$e consolidated financial statements.
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Albanesi S.A.

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the fiscal years ended December 31, 2019 ah8 20

Stated in pesos

Sales revent
Cost of sales

Gross income

Selling expenses
Administrative expens
Income from interests in associe
Other operating incon

Other operating exper
Operating income

Financial income

Financial expens

Other financial results
Financial results, net
Income//(Loss) before taxes
Income tax

Income/(Loss) for the year

Other Comprehensive Income

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Pension plar

Impact on income tax

Other comprehensive (loss) income for the
year

Comprehensive (loss)/income for the year

Income/(Loss) for the year attributable to:
Owners of the company
Non-controlling interest

Comprehensive (loss)/income for the year
attributable to:

Owners of the company

Non-controlling interest

Earnings/(Losses) per share attributable to
the owners of the company

Basic and diluted earnings per st

Notes 12.31.2019 12.31.2018
26 14,199,467,32 12,737,207,53
27 (5,742,072,790) (6,200,964,417)
8,457,394,544 6,536,243,114
28 (89,570,268) (70,469,714)
29 (568,708,75¢ (509,677,05:
8 (144,591,117 (447,927,011
30 10,781,39 391,692,26
31 - (544,630,52¢
7,665,305,793 5,355,231,073
32 278,506,041 167,301,466
32 (3,992,729,12: (3,415,217,12¢
32 1,081,076,649 (6,512,214,368)
(2,633,146,433) (9,760,130,031)
5,032,159,360 (4,404,898,958)
23 (4,385,971,858) 717,465,342
646,187,502 (3,687,433,616)
7 (2,671,089,664) 8,169,339,758
24 (8,16(,843) (1,493,21)
23 669,812,624 (2,041,961,641)
(2,009,437,883) 6,125,884,901
(1,363,250,381) 2,438,451,285
Notes 12.31.201 12.31.201
607,739,083 (3,290,962,036)
38,448,419 (396,471,580)
(1,288,846,609) 2,361,198,689
(74,403,772) 77,252,596
33 9.4: (51,06

The accompanying notes form an irgkgart of these consolidated financial statements.



Balances at December 31, 2017
Addition due to merger as from January 1, 2018

As resolved by the Ordinary Shareholders’ Meetialglh
on April 19, 2018:

- Legal reserve
- Optional reserve
Dividends attributable to the non-controlling irgst
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Loss for the year
Balances at December 31, 2018

As resolved by the Extraordinary Shareholders’ eget
held on March 7, 2019:

- Optional reserve
-Distribution of dividends
Dividends attributable to the non-controlling irgst

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Reversal of technical revaluation reserve
Income for the year

Balances at December 31, 2019

The accompanying notes form an integral
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Albanesi S.A.

For the fiscal years ended December 31, 2019 ahd 20

Stated in pesos
Attributable to Shareholders

Shareholders'
contributions

Retained earnings

Non-controlling

Share Cai ) . Technical Other Retained earnings/ interest Total equity
capital _apltal Legal Optional Special Reserve revaluation comprehensive (Accumulated Total
(Note 14) adjustment reserve reserve GR No. 777/18 reserve income/(loss) losses)
62,455,160 226,686,585 12,418,935 286,308,945 3,907,836,58¢ (12,444,609) 1,724,334,76¢  6,207,596,37C 324,631,951 6,532,228,320
1,996,585 8,912,095 906,953 22,182,943 1,492,240,51z 1,526,239,088 564,437,88. 2,090,676,972
- - 19,325,948 - (19,325,948, -
R - - 781,844,009 (781,844,009, -
- - - - (2,202,634 (2,202,634)
- - - - 5,653,270,67( (1,109,945) 5,652,160,72& 473,724,17"  6,125,884,901
- - - - (3,290,962,036, (3,290,962,036) (396,471,580 (3,687,433,616)
64,451,745 235,598,680 32,651,836 1,090,335,897 3,907,836,58€ 5,653,270,67( (13,554,554) (875,556,713, 10,095,034,147 964,119,79' 11,059,153,943
R - - (487,185,180) 487,185,18( -
- - R - (487,185,180, (487,185,180) (487,185,180)
R - - - - (8,624,521 (8,624,521)
- - - - (1,891,095,875) (5,489,817, (1,896,585,692) (112,852,191 (2,009,437,883)
- - - - (165,573,457) (229,533,745, 395,107,202 -
- - - - 607,739,082 607,739,083 38,448,41 646,187,502
64,451,745 235,598,680 32,651,836 603,150,717 3,742,263,12¢ 3,532,641,05( (19,044,371, 127,289,57: 8,319,002,35€ 881,091,503  9,200,093,861

part adehmonsolidated financial statements.
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Albanesi S.A.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the fiscal years ended December 31, 2019 ah8 20
Stated in pesos
Notes 12.31.2019 12.31.2018

Cash flow provided by operating activities:
Income/(loss) for the ye 646,187,50: (3,687,433,61¢
Adjustments to arrive at net cash flows provided byperating activities:

Income tax 4,385,971,85! (717,465,34z
Income from investments in associ 8 144,591,117 447,927,01:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipn 7 and 27 2,319,911,74( 2,078,823,55:
Present value of receivables and d 57,876,65( 76,010,11¢
Decrease in provisio 20 (5,829,605 (4,492,595
Impairment / Recovery of ass 32 47,333,30: (3,230,230,12:
Income/(loss) from changes in the fair value oéfinial instrumen 32 92,765,48( (1,271,519,31¢
Interest and exchange differences and « 18,081,348,40 27,157,931,06!
RECPANM 32 (15,983,546,69- (12,112,014,32:
Waiver of dek 30 - (385,058,122
Accrual of benefit plar 24 and 27 6,845,68¢ 28,845,337
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) in trade receivab (1,165,375,14: (83,799,801
(Increase)/decrease in other receivable (1,985,908,37! 97,442,621
(Increase) in inventorit (116,940,487 (68,774,15E
(Decrease) in trade payak (667,035,92¢ (6,453,219,13¢
(Decrease) in Defined benefit pli (2,601,387 (2,683,565
(Decrease) in other liabiliti (81,164,754 (369,241,62¢
Increase / (Decrease) in social security chargddaare: 135,516,19: (22,262,45¢
Payment of income t; (14,824,72¢ (30,983,31C
Cash flows provided by operating activities 5,895,120,84 1,447,802,216
Cash flows provided by investment activities:
Cash added as a result of the me - 220,957,93"
Collection of dividend - 13,239,48¢
Payments for acquisition of property, plant andigepen 7 (2,788,809,277 (3,804,010,43:
Payments for purchases of assets for - (1,469,391,54«
Subscription of mutual fun (67,053,24C -
Redemption of mutual fun - 48,238,76%
Loans grante 34 (43,393,50C (69,743,607
Cash flows (used in) investment activities (2,899,256,017 (5,060,709,392)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Collection of financial instrumer 278,118,73¢ 1,092,668,36!
Payment of loar 18 (5,251,622,34: (9,763,549,71:
Payment of interes 18 (3,5612,817,21! (3,095,007,09:
Borrowings 18 6,472,214,45! 15,891,135,37.
Cash flows (used in) / provided by financing activies (2,014,106,358 4,125,246,936
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 981,758,47 512,339,760
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning o 844,807,96¢ 223,257,60(
RECPAM (295,633,70C (72,045,287
Financial results of cash and cash equiva 173,748,93° 181,255,89¢
Cash and cash equivalents at yeal 13 1,704,681,67! 844,807,96¢
981,758,47 512,339,760

The accompanying notes form an integral part e§¢hconsolidated financial statements.

(1) Includes prepayments to suppliers for the purcldgeoperty, plant and equipment for $2,460,114,400 $338,490,381 at December 31, 2019 and
2018, respectively.
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Albanesi S.A.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Cont’d)
For the fiscal years ended December 31, 2019 ah8 20
Stated in pesos

Material transactions not entailing changes in cash

Notes 12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Transfers to property, plant and equipment of adseld for sal 7 (1,716,293,60! (87,594,62¢
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment finaddy suppliet 7 (1,765,890,69¢ -
Advances to suppliers applied to the acquisitioproperty, plant and
equipment 7 - (39,505,401)
Decrease/(Increase) resulting from technical rextadu 2,003,317,24¢ (6,127,004,815%)
Defined benefit pla 6,120,63! 1,119,91.
Acquisition of assets held for sale financed bypdieps - (148,231,79:
Financial costs capitalized in property, plant eqdipmer 7 (2,845,799,67: (1,406,234,67:
Issue of negotiable obligations paid up in | 18 3,229,308,90« -
Directors’ fees offset against other receiva 34 (57,710,00€ (50,134,68E
Dividends applied to the n-controlling interest anoffset 8,624,521 2,202,63¢
Addition of balances as a result of the merger
Asset
Property, plant and equipmi - 4,123,262,08i
Deferred tax asse - 1,790,12¢
Other receivable - 434,392,13¢
Inventorie: - 31,263,01:
Other financial assets at fair value through profitos: - 45,652,651
Income tax credit balance, | - 1,688,611
Trade receivable - 492,271,66:
Total asse - 5,130,320,29°
Liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities, n: - (298,528,33¢
Loans - (3,624,299,532)
Other liabilities - (8,175,534
Tax payable - (10,232,72&
Social security deb - (3,002,687

Trade payable -

(428,480,01¢

Total liabilities -

(4,372,718,83:

Equity attributable to the owne -
Nor-controlling interes -

(654,784,587
(255,981,38¢

Cash added as a result of the me -

(153,164,50¢

The accompanying notes form an integral part cdeéhmnsolidated financial statements.
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NOTE 1: GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was established in 1994 as investrmehtimancing company. Through its subsidiaries eatdted entities,
ASA has invested in the energy market, in the payesreration and commercialization segment.

Albanesi Group, through ASA and its related compARgA, is engaged in the generation and sale atrdéy and has
focused on the gas transportation and sale businessgh RGA.

In recent years, the main strategy of Albanesi @Groas been focused on achieving vertical integnaticawing on its vast
experience and reputation in the natural gas sat&eh(obtained through RGA), with the subsequdditin of the electric

power generation business. This approach seelapitatize the value added from the purchase frogelgas producers
in all the basins in the country to its transforioatand sale as electric power.

Below is a detail of the participation of ASA inalacompany.

% participation
: Country . .
Companies : Main activity
of creation 12.31.2019 12.31.2018
CTR Argentina Electric power generation 75% 75%
GECEN Argentina Electric power generation 95% 95%
GLSA Argentina Electric power generation 95% 95%
GMSA Argentina Electric power generation 95% 95%
GROSA Argentina Electric power generation 95% 95%
Solalban Energia S.A. Argentina Electric power generation 42% 42%

Grupo Albanesi had at the date these consolidateddial statements were signed a total instalégzhcity of 1,520 MW,
representing 6.1% of the total installed thermadelecapacity in Argentina, it being expanded waditiditional 283 MW
with all the new projects awarded and currentlyarmaay.

Nominal
Power Plant Company installed Resolution Location
capacity
L E.S. Nos. 220/07, 1281/06 Plusand ,
Central Térmica Modesto Maranzana (CTMM) GMSA 350 MW SRRyME 01/2019 Rio Cuarto, Cérdoba
| Térmi d denci E.S. Nos. 220/07, 1281/06 Plus, iouel d , ,
Central Térmica Independencia (CTI) GMSA 220 MW SEE 21/16 and SRRyME, 01/2019 San Miguel de Tucuman, Tucuman
. E.S. Nos. 220/07 and SRRyME .

Central Térmica Frias (CTF) GMSA 60 MW 01/2019 Frias, Santiago del Estero

Central Térmica Riojana (CTRi) GMSA 90 MW 51721(\)1;); 220/07 and SRRyME La Rioja, La Rioja

Central Térmica La Banda (CTLB) GMSA 30 MW SRRyME 01/2019 La Banda, Santiago del Estero

Central Térmica Ezeiza (CTE) GMSA 150 MW EES No. 21/16 Ezeiza, Buenos Aires

Central Térmica Roca (CTR) CTR 190 MW 51721(\)1;); 220/07 and SRRyME Gral Roca, Rio Negro

Central Térmica Sorrento GROSA 140 MW SRRyME Resolution No. 01/2019  Rosario, Santa Fé

Solalban Energia S.A. 120 MW No.1281/06 Plus Bahia Blanca, Buenos Aires

Total nominal installed capacity (Participation of ASA) 1,350 MW

Central Térmica Cogeneracién Timbues AESA 170 MW EES No. 21/16 Timbues, Santa Fé

Total nominal installed capacity Albanesi Group 1,520 MW
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NOTE 1: GENERAL INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Albanesi Group entered the electricity market i02With the purchase of the power plant Luis Pidslrana S.A. In this
way the development of the electricity market beeame of the main purposes of the Group.

2013

2009 Refurbishment of
Construction CT GROSA 60MW -
201
Solalban 120MW e
2012 CTE 50MW
2008 Repair CTR 130MW CTI 50MW
Enlargement CTMM Acquisition CTLB 30MW CT Timbiies 170 MW
120MW CTR 60MW
2011
2007 Construction CTI 20MW 2017
Sale of interest in Refurbishment Enlargements:
Pigdra Buena GROSA 8oMW CTRi 50MW
and CTRi 40MW CTMM 100MW
CTI 50 MW
2005 Construetion: CTE 100MW
Acquisition of CTMM 2010
7OMW Enlargement CTMM
60MW 2015
i Construction CTF 606MW
2004
Acquisition of share
package in Central Piedra
Buena 620MW

Variation in the installed capacity

G20MW GOOMW GOOMW TOMW  130MW 310MW  370MW G10MW  T7OMW S30MW S30MW  B00MW  BO0MW 1190MW 1520MW 1803MW

Capacity to be installed B New Capacity B Capacity

+330
+300
-7
+/0 = +

1 1 240
| | i)

- ]

+120
2004 2005 2008 2007 2008 2008 2014 2015 2018 217 2018 2020

180
2010 201 012
Through EES Resolution No. 287/2017 dated May 0Q/2the Electric Energy Secretariat instructed GABSA to call
for tenders for new thermal generation of clostrtke combined cycle technology and co-generatigih, the commitment
to be available to meet the demand in WEM. GMSAigpated in that call and was awarded two prgdot closure of
combined cycles through SEE Resolution 926 — E/2017

One of those projects is the closure of the contbiele of the TG06 and TGO7 units at CTMM, locaitedRio Cuarto.
The project consists in the installation of a nedvNBW Siemens SGT800 gas turbine (with a guaranpeeeer of 47.5
MW) and the conversion into combined cycle of tir@é gas turbines (3x1 configuration). For suahvession, a recovery
boiler will be installed at the gas turbines ewihich will produce steam in two pressures to fe&5a-600 steam turbine
that will deliver a further 65 MW to the networlsa, the necessary infrastructure will be instafiedits operation and
maintenance. The project for the closure of CTMivhbined cycle will enable contributing a furthe13 MW to SADI.
The addition of a new gas turbine will cause anitamithl demand for fuel to the system. The additxd the turbo steam
machine will contribute 65 MW, without additionabresumption of fuel, with the complete cycle recogdia specific
consumption of 1,590 Kcal/KWh in the closure of twenbined cycle.
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NOTE 1: GENERAL INFORMATION (Cont'd)

One of them is the closure of the combined cyclenits TG01, TG02 and TGO03 of CTE, located in thevmce of Buenos
Aires. The project consists of: i) the installatiofha fourth 50 MW Siemens SGT-800 gas turbine, igrnttie conversion
into combined cycle of the four gas turbines. Far ¢onversion into combined cycle, a recovery boid be installed at
the gas turbines exit, which will produce steantwo pressures to feed two steam turbines (2x1 gardtion), each of
them delivering 44 MW to the network. The projemtthe closure of CTE combined cycle will enablatcibuting a further
138 MW to Argentine Interconnection System (SADAthough the new gas turbine to be installed eahsume additional
fuel, the inclusion of two steam turbines will cobtite a further 88 MW without additional fuel camsption, and the two
full cycles will have a specific consumption of A(bKcal/KWh.

On September 2, 2019, the SRRYME Resolution No2@BJ was published whereby the generating agentsdaad
projects under ESS Resolution No. 287/2017 wereagized to extend the commercial authorization term

On October 2, 2019, the Company used the opticabkshied in the Resolution to formally state a Neate for the
Commercial Authorization Committed (NFHCC) undeg thholesale demand agreements entered into indarooe with
ESS Resolution No. 287/2017 belonging to CTE antIT respectively.

For this purpose, the Company has stated as NFH&@mber 6, 2022, for both agreements.
Co-generation Project Arroyo Seco

Through Resolution SE 287/2017, the Secretaridrargy requested bids for the installation of gatien projects by
closing open cycles and cogeneration. Within ttamework, GECEN presented a cogeneration projeétrioyo Seco,
Province of Santa Fe, for 100 MW power.

Through ES Resolution No. 820/2017, the Energy &adat awarded the implementation of three prejeatciuding the
one in relation to which GECEN made a bid. Thegxty selected meet the criteria of installing éfit generation capacity
and/or improving the efficiency of the thermal snitf the current generation facilities. This elstan economic benefit
for the electric system in every scenario.

The project consists in the installation of two S8BT Siemens gas turbines, with a nominal capa€is0dMW each, and
two boilers which will generate steam through tee of exhaust gases of the turbine. The Compariyhuis generate (i)
electricity that will be sold under a contract grwith CAMMESA within the framework of a publicdding under EES
Resolution No. 287/2017 and awarded under EES RiolNo. 820/2017 for a term of 15 years, andgi@am, to be
supplied to LDC Argentina S.A. for its plant in Ago Seco, by means of a steam and electric powerggon contract
for an extendable term of 15 years.

On August 9, 2017, the contract for the purchagbefurbines with Siemens was entered into for 6,216,600 million.
The contract is for the purchase of two SGT800 8igsrindustrial Turbomachinery AB gas turbines,udalg whatever
is necessary for their installation and start-up.

On January 12, 2018, a contract was signed witlstipplier Vogt Power International Inc. for the yigion of two steam
boilers for a total amount of USD 14,548,000.

On March 26, 2018, a contract was signed with thgpler Siemens Ltda. for the purchase of a steabirte for a total
amount of USD 5,370,500. The contract comprisespiltehase of an SST-300 steam turbine, includingtewer is
necessary for its installation and start-up.

GECEN and CAMMESA signed the Wholesale Demand eshtvsh November 28, 2017.

10
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NOTE 1: GENERAL INFORMATION (Cont'd)
Co-generation Project Arroyo Seco (Cont'd)

On September 2, 2019, the SRRYME Resolution No2@B was published whereby the generating agentsdaad
projects under ESS Resolution No. 287/2017 werbaaasized to extend the commercial authorization tefime date
scheduled by GECEN for commercial authorizatioduily 11, 2022.

On November 5, 2019, through the minutes of ther@o#& Directors’ Meeting, it was decided to setdasihe sale of the
Company’s assets in view of the NFHCC mentionethépreceding paragraph, and, accordingly, to deathtnecessary
efforts to finance the thermal power co-generagimsject at Arroyo Seco. This situation, added ®dhonomic context in
which the company operates described in Note 4fdagenerate a substantial doubt about the enéhjlgy to continue
as a going concern in the event it failed to obtaenecessary financing to complete the project.

Designation of GECEN as Non-restricted Subsidiary

On August 27, 2017, the Board of Directors of ApArent company of GECEN, designated the Compahypasrestricted
Subsidiary under the terms of the Indenture withenframework of the international bond.

GECEN is a Non-restricted Subsidiary of ASA undher terms of the international bond, which meansrislitors have no
recourse against ASA or any of its subsidiaries.

NOTE 2: REGULATORY ASPECTS RELATED TO ELECTRICITY G ENERATION

The Group’s revenue from electricity generationvitgt derives from sales to Large Users on the FeovdvMarket, for
surplus demand for energy (ES Resolution 1281/6in sales to CAMMESA (Compafiia Administradora Mgrcado
Mayorista Eléctrico S.A.) under ES Resolution 2Z0/nd from sales under ES Resolutions 21/16 afid0ln addition,
the excess electricity generated under the moelsliti ES Resolutions No. 1281/06 and 220/07 is@olidhe Spot Market,
in accordance with the regulations in force in\Wieolesale Electricity Market (WEM) administered BAMMESA.

a) Regulations on Energia Plus, Resolution No. 81

It provides that the existing energy sold on thet3parket follows these priorities:

(1) Demand lower than 300 KW,

(2) Demand over 300 KW, with contracts; and

(3) Demand over 300 KW, without contracts.

It also establishes certain restrictions on the e&klectric power and implements the “EnergiagsPéervice, which allows
generating agents to offer the available additigealeration. They must fulfill the following reqaments: (i) they must be
WEM agents whose generating units shall have betfoazed for commercial operation after Septenth&006; and (ii)
they must have fuel supply and transportation eaitst

The regulation establishes that:

« Large Users with demand over 300 KW (“GU300")\ei¢ authorized to enter into contract for theimaed of electricity

in the forward market with the generating agenistarg in the WEM at the moment, only for the etaxity consumption
in 2005 (“Basic Demand”).

11
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NOTE 2: REGULATORY ASPECTS RELATED TO ELECTRICITY G ENERATION (Cont'd)
a) Regulations on Energia Plus, Resolution No. A#B(Cont'd)

* The electricity consumed by GU300 above theiri@Bemand must be contracted with new generatioeia Plus) at
a price agreed upon by the parties. This may no¢ek 50% of the actual demand.

* New Agents entering the system must contract 5%ueir total demand under the Energia Plus servimder the
conditions described above.

At the date of these consolidated financial statémelmost all the nominal power of 135MW avaitald under contract.
The duration of these contracts is from1 to 2 years

b) WEM Supply Contract (Resolution No. 220/07)

In January 2007, the ES issued Resolution No. 2@tich authorized the execution of Supply Contradmtsween
CAMMESA and the generating agents that would likénstall new generation capacity and related gnergthis regard,
the execution of Supply Contracts was foreseemathar way to generate incentives for the developroé additional
energy projects.

These Supply Contracts were entered into betweeargtng agents and CAMMESA, with a duration ofyHars or a
shorter term that may exceptionally be establisfibé. valuable consideration for availability of gestion and the related
electricity was established in each contract bawsethe costs accepted by the ES. The contractseslsdlish that the
machines and power plants used to cover the Supgiyracts will generate energy as they are dispatbly CAMMESA.

Sales under this modality are denominated in doléard are paid by CAMMESA under a take or pay €aarsd the
generated surplus is sold to the Spot Market, @untsto regulations in effect in the WEM administebyy CAMMESA.

GMSA and CAMMESA entered into several WEM supplytacts: For CTMM it agreed a power of 45 MW fag3 and
for a term of 10 years counted as from October 2ah@ 89.9 MW for TG6 and 7 and a duration of 18rgecounted as
from July 2017; for CTI it agreed a power of 100 MdWd a duration of 10 years counted as from Nove®€l; for CTF
it agreed a power of 55.5 MW and a duration of @arg counted as from December 2015, and for CT&jrited a power
of 42 MW and a duration of 10 years counted as fiktey 2017.

Further, CTR and CAMMESA entered into a WEM supgintract for 116.7 MW, for a term of 10 years cedhas from
June 2012. On October 14, 2015, a new WEM suppiyract for 53.59 MW was signed with CAMMESA forear of 10
years counted as from the date of authorizatiowdonmercial operation of the agreed upon turbime [atter contract will
be supported by the conversion of the gas turbite & combined cycle The TVO01 contract began onuatug, 2018,
starting from the conversion of the current gabithe generator into a combined cycle. To this eqdjpment was installed
so that the exhaust fume recovery of the presentughine generates an amount of steam such theat ekpanded through
a steam turbine, additional power of up to 60-MWyrha generated.

12
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NOTE 2: REGULATORY ASPECTS RELATED TO ELECTRICITY G ENERATION (Cont'd)
b) Supply Contract with WEM (Resolution No. 220/@Zpnt’'d)
The agreements set forth a remuneration made &gomponents:

i) a fixed charge for hired power, affected by montihgrage availability; the remunerated price is:

Power Plant Fixed charge for power hired Hired power

plants USD/MW-month MW
CTMM TGS UsD 16,13 45
CTITG1and. UsD 17,15! 10C
CTF USD 19,27z 55.t
CTMM TG 6 and’ USD 15,93 89.¢
CTRI TG 2¢ UsD 16,79 42
CTR TGO! USD 12,541 116.7
CTR TVO1 UsSD 31,91 53.5¢

ii)  the fixed charge recognizes transportation cosis gther costs inherent to the generating agents;
iii) the variable charge associated with the energyalgtprovided under the contract and whose purpsde
remunerate the operation and maintenance of thePBlant;

Power Plant Variable charge in USD/MWh
plants Gas Diesel
CTMM TG & USD 7.8 UsD 8.3.
CTITG 1and UsSD 7.5: UsSD 7.9°
CTF UsD 10.8: USD 11.6:
CTMM TG 6 and’ USD 8.0( USD 10.5
CTRI TG 2¢ USD 11.44 USD 15.3
CTR TGO! USD 10.2¢ USD 14.1!
CTR TVO1 USD 5.3t USD 5.3t

iv)  avariable charge for repayment of fuel costspalhem at reference price; and

v) adiscount for penalties. These penalties arageapf the hours in which 92% of the agreed upomgrdias not
been reached and are valued on a daily basis amddittg to the operating condition of the machind ¢he
market situation.

c) Sales under ES Resolution No. 21/2016
Through ES Resolution No. 21/2016 dated March 2@&résted generating, co-generating and self-géngragents are

called for to offer new thermal generation capaaitg associated energy production, with the comenitrto be available
at WEM during the summer periods of (2016/2017 20@i7/2018) and for the winter season of 2017.

13
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NOTE 2: REGULATORY ASPECTS RELATED TO ELECTRICITY G ENERATION (Cont'd)
c) Sales under ES Resolution No. 21/2016 (Cont'd)

Through ES Note No. 161/2016 the Energy Secretariatie public the bidding process whereby 1000 MW of
thermoelectric power was expected to be instaledver to be installed should arise from new geimrairojects. Bids
could not commit, at each connection point proppsegeneration capacity lower than 40 MW total @andurn, the net
power of each generating unit forming the offerlfaration may not be lower than 10 MW. Equipmennadtted in the
offers should have dual capacity of fuel consummptooperate interchangeably and specific consumstiould not exceed
2,500 kilocalories per kwh.

Finally, through ES Resolution No. 155/2016 thstfpprojects awarded by ES Resolution No. 217201@ veported among
which were CTE and the enlargement of CTI.

These Supply Contracts were entered into betweeargtng agents and CAMMESA for a term of 10 yeah® valuable
consideration for availability of power and eneggnerated was established in each contract basi dwids made by the
generators and awarded by the ES. Sales undentdality are denominated in US dollars and paicCByVIMESA.

The agreements set forth a remuneration made Ggofmponents:

i) a fixed charge for hired power, affected by montilgrage availability; the remunerated price is:

Power plant Fixed charge for power hired Hired power
USD/MW-month MW
CTETG 2 and USD 21,901 93
CTETG ! USD 20,44 4€
CTITGE USD 21,901 4€
CTITG 4 USD 20,44 4€

i)  the fixed charge recognizes transportation cosis gther costs inherent to the generating agents;
iii) the variable charge associated with the energyalgtprovided under the contract and whose purpsde
remunerate the operation and maintenance of thePBlant;

Power Plant Variable charge in USD/MWh
plants Gas Diese
CTETG1,2and USD 8.5( USD 10.0
CTITG3and. USD 8.5( USD 10.0

iv) a variable charge for repayment of fuel costspfalhem at reference price; and

v) adiscount for penalties. These penalties are egbjpdi the hours in which 92% of the agreed upongudwas not
been reached and are valued on a daily basis addittg to the operating condition of the machind ¢he
market situation.
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NOTE 2: REGULATORY ASPECTS RELATED TO ELECTRICITY G ENERATION (Cont'd)

d) Sales under SRRyME Resolution No. 01/2019

SRRyME Resolution No. 01/19 was published on Fahrie8, 2019, replacing EES Resolution No. 19/201Ws
resolution establishes new remuneration mechanfemthe generators, co-generators and self-gensraiothe WEM
which do not have WEM Supply Contracts.

The resolution maintains a remuneration comprisangayment for minimum power or basis for generatoitbout
availability commitments and another per availépilof guaranteed power reducing the values estadisby EES
Resolution No. 19/2017.

The following table shows the Base Price for thev®gp according to the technology and scale (PrezBas:

TECHNOLOGY/SCALE PrecBasePot
[USS/MW-month]
CC large P > 150 MW 3,050
CC small P<150MW 3,400
TV large P >100 MW 4,350
TV small P < 100MW 5,200
TG large P >50 MW 3,550
TG small P < 50MW 4,600
Internal combustion engines 5,200

The following table shows the Price for AvailalyltDIGO):

Period PrecPotDIGO
[USSMW-month]
Summer: 7,000
December January- Februar
Winter: 7,000
June- July - Augus
Rest of the year: 5,500
March- April - May - Septembe- October- Novembe

These two prices are affected by the Use Factachnik the relation between the energy actuallyegated each year and
the actual energy available at the power planth@uit forced unavailability or maintenance).

Variable costs of non-fuels of 4 USD/MWh for natugas and 7 USD/MWh for diesel or fuel oil -at thest- are recognized
per type of fuel consumed by the power plant fae@ #nergy actually generated for conventional thérpuaver
generation. Only 50% of non-fuel variable costh ke remunerated for the Energy Generated in egsewer plant that
has opted to get its own fuel for power generatdors not have the fuel required for such generatioen called for
dispatch. Lastly, generators receive a monthlyursenation for the Energy Operated, representechéyirttegration of
hourly powers in the period, valued at 1.4 USD/MWhany type of fuel.
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NOTE 2: REGULATORY ASPECTS RELATED TO ELECTRICITY G ENERATION (Cont'd)
d) Sales under SRRyME Resolution No. 01/2019 (dpnt'

Section 8 of SRRYME Resolution provides that CAMME®ill convert the dollar-denominated prices intog&ntine
pesos, applying the “A” 3500 (Wholesale) ExchangdeRn effect on the day preceding the due datiefeconomic
transactions.

SRRyME Resolution No. 01/2019 was enforced on Mar,c2019.
NOTE 3: BASIS FOR PRESENTATION

The presentation in the statement of financialtimssegregates current and non-current assetsdildies. Current assets
and liabilities are those which are expected toebevered or settled within twelve months followthg end of the reporting
period. In addition, the Group reports on the d&shis from operating activities using the indireeséthod. The fiscal year
commences on January 1 and ends December 31 ofeachEconomic and financial results are preseotetthe basis of
the fiscal year.

The preparation of these consolidated financialestants in accordance with IFRS requires makingnests and
assessments that affect the reported amountsetbas®d liabilities, the disclosure of contingesgets and liabilities at the
date of issue of these consolidated financial statgs, as well as the income and expenses recordee fiscal year. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgment or derity, or areas where assumptions and estimagesignificant to the
financial statements are disclosed in Note 6.

These consolidated financial statements were appréer issuance by the Company's Board of Direadordarch 10,
2020.

Comparative information

Balances at December 31, 2018 disclosed for cortipanaurposes arise from financial statements att date, restated in
constant currency at December 31, 2019. Certailagsifications have been included in the finanstatement figures
presented for comparative purposes to conform tioeiime current year presentation.

Financial reporting in hyperinflationary economies

IAS 29 “Financial Reporting in hyperinflationary@wmies” requires that the financial statementaroéntity that reports
in the currency of a highly inflationary economy $@ted in terms of the measuring unit currentatdlosing of the

reporting period, irrespective of whether theylzaeed on the historical cost or current cost methbd this end, in general
terms, the inflation rate should be computed innbie-monetary items as from the acquisition datinerevaluation date,
as applicable. These requirements also includedhgarative information of the financial statements

To determine the existence of a hyperinflationagr®my under the terms of IAS 29, the standardlidetaeries of factors

to be considered, including a cumulative inflatiate over three years that is close to or exce@d%1 For this reason, as
set forth by IAS 29, the Argentine economy mustehbgen considered as highly inflationary as frotp I1u2018.
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Financial reporting in hyperinflationary economies(Cont’d)

In turn, Law No. 27468 (Official Gazette December2018) amended Section 10 of Law No. 23928 as detkrand
provided that the repeal of the all regulationst stablish or authorize index-adjustment, monetastatement, cost
variation or any other way of restatement of defatses, prices or tariffs of goods, works or sexgjadoes not apply to the
financial statements, to which the provisions oftteam 62 in fine of General Companies Law No. 19%3®84 restated
text), as amended, shall continue to apply. Funtibee, the same law repealed Decree No. 1269/200alpfl6, 2002 as
amended, and delegated to the National Executiaadsr, through its control agencies, the fixinghef tlate as from which
the provisions mentioned in relation to the finahstatements will become effective. Thereforeytigh General Resolution
No. 777/2018 (Official Gazette 12/28/2018), theiblal Securities Commission (CNV) established ikstiing entities
subject to its inspection must apply the methodréstatement of financial statements in constameagy for financial
statements, annual, interim or for special periotissing as from December 31, 2018 inclusive, ésbished by IAS 29.
Therefore, these consolidated financial statememded December 31, 2019 have been restated.

According to IAS 29, the financial statements dfites reporting in the currency of a hyperinflatary economy shall be
stated in terms of the measuring unit current @tdéte of the financial statements. Statemennahfiial position amounts
not already expressed in terms of the measuringaumient at the date of the financial statemehtdl e restated by
applying a general price index. All items in thatstent of income shall be expressed in termseaindasuring unit current
at the date of the financial statements by appl¥freggchange in the general price index from theglathen the items of
income and expenses were initially recorded irfitrencial statements.

The adjustment for inflation applied to openingamales was calculated based on the indexes estblighthe Argentine
Federation of Professional Councils in EconomieBcés (FACPCE), based on price indexes publishetidoyational
Institute of Statistics and Census (INDEC).

Below are the main procedures to be applied foattjastment for inflation mentioned above:

- Monetary assets and liabilities recorded at tlomatary unit current at year end are not restatethey are already
expressed in terms of the monetary unit curretiteatiate of the financial statements;

- Non-monetary assets and liabilities accountecatdheir acquisition cost at the balance sheet dat equity items are
restated by applying the corresponding index adjasts;

-All items in the statement of income are adjusig@pplying the relevant conversion factors;

- The effect of inflation on the Group’s net momgtposition shall be included in the statemeniabime within Financial

result, under RECPAM; and

- Comparative amounts have been inflation-adjukiBowing the same procedure explained above.

In the first period of application of this standattie equity accounts were restated as follows:

- Capital was restated as from the date of sultsmnijpr the date of the last accounting adjustni@ninflation, whichever
happened later. The resulting amount was includede “Capital Adjustment” account;

- Other comprehensive income items were restatéaseach date of accounting allocation; and

- Other reserves were not restated in the firsliegtfpn of the standard.

17



Free translation from the original prepared in $gafor publication in Argentina

Albanesi S.A.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Ctd)

NOTE 3: BASIS FOR PRESENTATION (Cont'd)

Tax inflation adjustment

To determine the net taxable income, an adjustrfivenbflation computed according to Sections 9®&of Income Tax
Law must be deducted from or added to the tax resuhe fiscal period being calculated. This vii# applicable in the
fiscal year in which the variation percentage & @eneral Consumer Price Index (CPI) accumulated the 36 months
prior to the year end is higher than 100%. Theseipions are applicable for fiscal years commenacngr after January
1, 2018. For the first, second and third fiscargdollowing its effective date, it will be appdisle when the index variation,
calculated from the beginning to the end of eaddr yexceeds 55%, 30% and 15% in the first, secondttsird year of
application, respectively. The inflation adjustrhfar the fiscal year under calculation will haviéeet either as a negative
or positive adjustment; 1/6 will be allocated ir televant fiscal period and the remaining 5/6wio equal parts, in the
two immediately following fiscal years.

The company estimated that by December 31, 201By&Rtion will exceed the index mentioned in geeagraph above;
accordingly, the Company included this adjustmenhée determination of the taxable income for theent year.

NOTE 4: ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The main accounting policies used in the prepanaiichese consolidated financial statements gpéa@ed below.
4.1 Changes in accounting policies

4.1.1 New accounting standards, amendments and impgetations issued by IASB effective at December 312019
adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards aralteendments for the first time as from Janua3019:
- IFRS 16 Leaseqissued in January 2016)
- IFRIC 23 -Uncertainty over income tax treatmefissued in June 2017)
- IFRS 9 -Financial Instrumentgapplication guide amended in October 2017).
- IAS 28 -Investment in associates and joint ventyesended in October 2017).
- Annual improvements to IFRS - Cycle 2015-2018uyéexl in December 2017)
- IAS 19 -Employee benefitamended in February 2018)

Below is a detail of the impact of the initial ajgation of IFRS 16 to the Group’s results of opierat and financial position
as from January 1, 2019.

The application of the remaining standards, amemdsra interpretations did not generate any impa¢he Group’s results
of operations or financial position.
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NOTE 4: ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
4.1 Changes in accounting policies (Cont'd)

4.1.1 New accounting standards, amendments and inpeetations issued by IASB effective at December 32019
adopted by the Group (Cont'd)

IFRS 16 application impacts

The Group opted for the application of IFRS 16aspectively and using a simplified approach, iatieh to leases identified as
such under IAS 17, thus, recognizing the accumdla#ect of the application as adjustment to thempg balance of
accumulated profits as from January 1, 2019, withestating the comparative information.

Until December 31, 2018, the Group only capitalilease leases classified as financial under IASHat, is, those leases that
substantially transfer all risks and rewards inotdéto ownership of the leased property to theuprdt the commencement of
the finance lease, the Group recognized financeteas assets and liabilities equal to the fairevaf the leased property or, if
lower, the present value of the minimum lease paysméertinent rent obligations -net of financerglea- were included in Other
Liabilities. Each lease payment was allocated betwepital and financial cost. The financial coaswallocated to results during
the lease term so as to produce a constant peretdiof interest on the remaining balance ofitiality for each period. Property,

plant and equipment acquired under finance leases depreciated during the useful life of the asssf lower, the lease term.

Leases that do not transfer substantially all risid rewards incidental to ownership to the Grougpddassified as operating

leases. Payments made under operating leased émstimcentives received from the lessor), are@éto the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Management has reviewed its lease contracts itedfed has recognized an asset for rights of usel¢ded under Property,
plant and equipment) for a total of $34.8 millidor, liabilities from leases at the adoption datgujgalent to the present value of
payments for remaining leases).

The rest of lease commitments identified are rdl&tecontracts ending within 12 months as from déidoapand which continue
to be recognized on a straight-line basis by theu@r

At the adoption date, the Group kept the carryimgpant of assets for rights of use and liabilitiesleases classified as finance
leases under IAS 17.

Finally, no transition adjustments have been madésfises in which the Group acts as lessor.

Accordingly, the Group did not recognize any adpestt to retained earnings/accumulated losses abdfmning due to the
initial application of IFRS 16.
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NOTE 4: ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
4.1 Changes in accounting policies (Cont'd)

4.1.2 New accounting standards, modifications and interpetations issued by the IASB not yet effective ancoh early
adopted by the Group

» IFRS 17 4nsurance contractsissued in May 2017. It replaces IFRS 4, introduas a provisional standard in 2004
to account for insurance contracts using the nati@tcounting standards, and resulting in multigjgolication
approaches. IFRS 17 establishes the principlebéarecognition, measurement, presentation antbdis® of insurance
contracts and is applicable for annual reportingogs beginning on or after January 1, 2021. Eadjgplication is
permitted if both IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 have also kmgplied. The Company estimates that the applicatiereof will
not have a significant impact on the results ofrapiens or the financial position of the Company.

Conceptual framework: in March 2018, IASB publiskzeteviewed conceptual framework that will replétoe current
framework. However, the framework will not be catesied as a standard will replace any existent arandoncepts
from the reviewed conceptual framework are considién the issue of future standards by IASB andrpretations
Committee immediately. Those preparing financiatesnents under IFRS will consider the reviewed ephel

framework to develop accounting policies on issueisaddressed specifically by IFRS in annual répgrperiods as
from January 1, 2020.

* IFRS 3 -Business combinationamended in October 2018. It clarifies the deifanitof business and establishes
guides to determine whether a transaction mustbeumted for as a business combination or an atiquisf assets. It
applies to acquisition transactions as from Jantia020. Earlier application is permitted.

» |AS 1 -Presentation of financial statemertsd IAS 8 -Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estéaand
Errors: amended in October 2018. They clarify the defimitiof materiality and add the concept of “obscuring
information” when there is a similar effect to tlshiomitting or misstating information. It appliea a prospective basis
to annual reporting periods as from January 1, 2B2@ier application is permitted.

* Amendments to IFRS Binancial InstrumentslAS 39 Financial instrumentsPresentationand IFRS 7inancial
Instruments:Disclosures adds temporary exemptions in case of hedgingioak directly affected by interest rate
benchmark reform, pursuant to recommendations shexdi by the Financial Stability Board (FSB) in J2§14.
Amendments are applicable for annual reportinggaisribeginning on or after January 1, 2020. Easpalication is
permitted.

4.2 Consolidation

The financial statements include the Company'sisnglibsidiaries’ financial statements. Subsidgéee all entities over
which the Company exerts control, generally accaorigzhby an interest of more than 50% of availaltng rights. The
Company controls an entity when the entity is exposr has the right to variable returns for itsolrement in the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns by @garg its power over the entity. In determiningetier the Company
controls an entity, the existence and the effeqtasisible exercisable or convertible voting rigdrts considered.

The Company also evaluates the existence of cowtieh it does not hold more than 50% of the votigbts but it may
direct the operating and financial policies throagfactual control. Factual control may exist ircaimstances where the
relative size of the group's voting rights in ridatto the number and dispersion of the other $taders gives the Group
the power to direct the operating and financialgies, etc. Subsidiaries are consolidated as flwrdate when control is
transferred to the Group and are excluded when sotrol ceases.
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NOTE 4: ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
4.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)
The main consolidation adjustments are as follows:

i. Elimination of reciprocal balances for asset aadility accounts between the Group companies, thattthe financial
statements only disclose the balances held witd grarties and uncontrolled related parties;

ii. Elimination of intercompany transactions, such thatfinancial statements only disclose those &etisns carried out
with third parties and uncontrolled related parties

iii. Elimination of the equity interests and resultsdach fiscal year of the subsidiaries as a whole.

The accounting policies of the subsidiaries hawntsmmended, where applicable, to ensure consisteitityhe accounting
policies adopted by the Company.

ASA performs its business activities through selasbsidiaries. Unless otherwise provided, the isiidrses detailed below
have a share capital made up of ordinary shargs which are directly in the possession of the @rand the proportion
of shares held is equal to the Group's voting sighihe country of incorporation or registratiorliso their principal place
of business. Below is a detail of subsidiaries.

% of participation
Companies o?grljer:trii/) n Main activity in
12.31.2019 12.31.201§

CTR Argentine Electric power generatit 75% 75%
GECEN® Argentiné Electric power generatic 95% 95%
GMSA Argentine Electric power generatit 95% 95%
GROS# Argenting Electric power generatit 95% 95%
GLSA Argentine Electric power generatit 95% 95%

(1) On August 27, 2018, ASA's board of directors hgsoaged GECEN as a Non-Restricted Subsidiary utiieterms of the Indenture
under the International Bond guaranteed by the Gmyjand issued by GMSA and CTR, which means teatréditors have no right of
recourse against ASA or its subsidiaries.

4.3 Revenue recognition
a) Sale of electric power

Revenue is calculated at fair value of the consitlen received or to be collected, consideringeabtmated amount of
discounts, thus determining net amounts.

The criterion for recognizing revenue from the &ieqower business, which is the main businessigcbf the Group, is
to recognize revenue from electricity generatioraaraccrual basis, comprising the energy and poveste available for
consumption and the generated energy.

Ordinary revenue was recognized when each and tiledollowing conditions were satisfied:

the entity has transferred to the buyer the sigaifi risks and rewards;

the amount of revenue was measured reliably;

it is probable that the economic benefits assodiaféh the transaction will flow to the entity; and
the costs incurred or to be incurred in respetheftransaction were measured reliably.

oo ow
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NOTE 4: ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

4.3 Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

b) Sale of services

Sale of services is recognized in the period theyrendered, based on the degree of completion.
¢) Interestincome

Interest income is recognized applying the effectivterest rate method. This income is registered temporary basis,
considering principal and the effective tax rate.

Such income is recognized when it is likely that émtity will receive the economic benefits assedavith the transaction
and the transaction amount can be measured reliably

4.4 Effects of the foreign exchange rate fluctuatits

a) Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are predgémipesos (legal currency in Argentina for all tompanies domiciled
in this country), which is also the Group’s funciéd currency. The functional currency is the cuckenf the primary
economic environment in which the Group operates.

b) Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currency are translated thie functional and presentation currency usireg ékchange rates
prevailing at the date of the transaction or ofateation, when the items are restated. Exchanges gaid losses generated
by each transaction and resulting from the traiwsiaif monetary items stated in foreign currencyestr end are recognized
in the statement of comprehensive income, exceghbamounts that are capitalized.

The exchange rates used are: buying exchange catadnetary assets, selling exchange rate for raondibilities,
average exchange rate for balances with related, mach prevailing at year end, as published c8#&acion, and one-
off exchange rate for transactions in foreign cocye

4.5 Property, plant and equipment

In general, property, plant and equipment, exclgdand, buildings, facilities, machinery and tudsnare recognized at
cost restated in constant currency net of accumdildépreciation and/or accumulated impairment &séany.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment bggimen it is available for use. Repair and maimeaaexpenses of
property, plant and equipment are recognized inrtb@me statement during the financial year in \Wwhiwey are incurred.

Works in progress are valued based on the degrpeogfess. Works in progress are stated at cotdteesin constant
currency less impairment losses, if any. Depremiatif these assets begins when it is availableder
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NOTE 4: ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
4.5 Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

Buildings, facilities, machinery and turbines areasured at their fair value less accumulated deggiee and impairment
losses recognized at the date of revaluation,)if hand is measured at fair value and is not deared. Revaluations are
made frequently enough to ensure that the fairevafia revalued asset does not differ significafndyn its carrying amount.

At December 31, 2019, the Group revalued land, peaperty, facilities and machinery, for there hdeen important
changes in the fair values of those assets caysethbroeconomic fluctuations.

Effective September 30, 2018, the Group decidedddify the method for determining the fair valuenfra “cost approach”
to an “income approach” for the valuation of fa@ and machinery. The income approach consistalo&tion techniques
that convert future amounts (e.g. cash flows ooine and expenses) into a single present valuediseounted). Fair value
measurement is determined based on the value tadibg current market expectations of those fuamneunts. The Group
considers that the income approach more relialflgats the true value of these assets.

The appraiser used a valuation method based @tautited cash flow model, in view of the absenamofparable market
information due to the nature of those assets,ishatcombination of Level 3 market inputs hasnbesed.

External appraisers participate in the appraisaghofe assets. The participation of external apersiis decided by the
Board of Directors. The criteria for the selectiminappraisers include attributes, such as markewledge, reputation,
independence and whether they meet professional atds.

Fair value was determined using the income approslbith reflects current market expectations okthtuture amounts.
This means that the revalued amounts are basedesan value techniques which convert future incameunts into a
single present value, that is, discounted.

In measuring the facilities and machinery accordimghe fair value revaluation model, the presealte technique was
used, as this technique better allows to capturibates of the use of the asset and the existngrgies with the rest of
the Group's assets and liabilities.

If an asset’s carrying amount is increased asudtrafsa revaluation, the increase shall be recogphin other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heagfingvaluation surplus. However, the increase dbaltecognized in
profit or loss to the extent that it reverses aheation decrease of the same asset previouslgmnée in profit or loss. If
an asset's carrying amount is decreased as a i&saltrevaluation, the decrease shall be recognizgaofit or loss.
However, the decrease shall be recognized in atraprehensive income to the extent of any crediriz® existing in the
revaluation surplus in respect of that asset.

At the time of sale of the revalued assets, angltgtion surplus related to this asset is transfeto retained earnings.
However, some of the revaluation surplus may besfeared to retained earnings as the asset ishys#ite company. In
such a case, the amount of the surplus transfeveedd be the difference between depreciation basethe revalued
carrying amount of the asset and depreciation basede asset’s original cost.
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4.5 Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

According to IAS 23 “Borrowing costs”, financial sts must be capitalized in the cost of an assenvtlig in the process
of production, construction, assembly or finishiagd those processes are not interrupted dueitddhg-term nature; the
term for production, construction, assembly ordfiring does not exceed the period technically requithe activities

needed for the asset to be ready for its intendedou sale are not substantially complete; an@dslset is not in condition
to be used in the production of other assets areplanto service, according to the purpose ofritglpction, construction,
assembly or finishing. Financial costs capitalizethe carrying amount of property, plant and eqept during the fiscal
years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 totaledB45,799,672 and $ 1,406,234,674, respectively. dverage

capitalization rates used for fiscal year 2019 2048 were 32.31% and 68%, respectively.

Subsequently to initial recognition, costs areudeld in the carrying amount of that asset or relzeghas a separate asset,
as applicable, only when it is probable that thtare economic benefits associated to those asdéflow to the Company
and their cost can be determined reliably. In theecof replacements, the carrying amounts of thtaced part is
derecognized from accounting. Other repair and tenance costs are recognized as an expense irfibd ; which they
are incurred.

If all types of property, plant and equipment hadfmeasured at cost, the carrying amounts woutkltheen the following:

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Cos 44,874,655,85 37,107,271,1¢
Accumulated depreciati (6,503,926,73: (4,862,692,411
Residual value 38,370,729,10: 32,244,578,775

4.6 Investments in associates and other companies

Investments in associates

Associates are all entities over which ASA hagyaificant influence but not exerts control, genlgreg¢presented by a 20-
50% holding of the voting rights of the entity. Bstments in associates are accounted for usingqihi¢y value method.
According to this method, the investment is infjialecognized at cost, and the carrying value iases or decreases to
recognize the investor's interest on the incomgfdthe associate after the acquisition date.

Investments in other companies

All the investments in equity instruments are meadiat fair value through profit and loss. The faitue of the unlisted
ordinary shares of TJISM and TMB was estimated uaingpdel of discounted cash flows.
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NOTE 4: ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
4.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

For assets subject to depreciation, an impairnestig performed whenever facts or circumstanoggesi that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment Issed¢ognized for the amount in which the carryimgpant of the asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. The value in ube iotal amount of the net discounted cash flexgected to be derived
from the use of the assets and from their evemtispbsal. To this purpose, the assumptions thaesept management’s
best estimate of the range of economic conditibaswill exist over the remaining useful life oktlasset are considered,
among other elements. The recoverable amount akset is the higher of the fair value less costetioor value in use.
To assess impairment losses, assets are groupesllatvest level for which cash flows can be idéedi separately (cash-
generating units).

The possible reversal of impairment losses of noarcial assets is reviewed at every date thahéimh information is
presented.

At March 31, 2019, the fair values of revalued fmyp, plant and equipment amounted to $31,442,889 &presenting a
decrease in their value for $155,960,485 which nrgasrded in Other comprehensive income.

The Company performed an analysis of the recoveraalue of property, plant and equipment at June2829 and
concluded that due to the macroeconomic variationgflation and the US dollar exchange rate, assetcreased by
$3,581,453,940 and recognized its effect in Otlenmrehensive income.

At December 31, 2019, the Company performed arysisabf the variables that are considered for tleutation of the
recoverable value of property, plant and equipmimis obtaining an increase in their value for 6&,824,761 with its
effects being recognized in Other comprehensiverme Fair values of Property, plant and equipmesrewevalued at
$39.266.954.012.

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Group considiradthe carrying amount of land, buildings, fiieis, machinery
and turbines does not exceed their recoverablevalu
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4.8 Financial assets

4.8.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in tHWdng categories: assets subsequently measurdr atalue and assets
measured at amortized cost. This classificatioreddp on whether the financial asset is an investmendebt or equity
instrument. For the asset to be measured at amdrtinst, the two conditions described below mustulfdled. The
remaining financial assets are measured at fairevdFRS 9 Financial instrumentsequires that all the investments in
equity instruments are measured at fair value.

a) Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets are measured at amortized cibet fbllowing conditions are met:

- the business model of the Company is aimed at kgehe assets to obtain contractual cash flows;

- contractual conditions give rise on specified dédesash flows that are only payments of the ppakand interest
on the principal.

b) Financial assets at fair value
If any of the conditions above is not fulfillednéincial assets are measured at fair value throrafh pr loss.
All the investments in equity instruments are meadat fair value. The Company may irrevocablyaiphitial recognition

of investments not held for trading to disclose ¢hanges in fair value under other comprehensieene. The Company
has decided to recognize the changes in fair vialirecome.

4.8.2 Recognition and measurement
Regular purchases and sales of financial assetee@wgnized on the trade date, when the Compangrtaies to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are de-recadjmiben the rights to receive cash flows from itwesits have expired or

have been transferred and the Company has traedfeunbstantially all the risks and rewards of owhigr.

Financial assets are initially recognized at failue plus, in the case of financial assets thahateneasured at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs direetiyibutable to the purchase of those financia¢sss
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NOTE 4: ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

4.8 Financial assets
4.8.3 Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets at amortized cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reportiraglpeinether there is objective evidence that anfoia asset or a group
of financial assets may have suffered impairmesgds. A financial asset or a group of financia¢tsis impaired, and an
impairment loss is incurred if, and only if, théseobjective evidence of the impairment of valueassult of one or more
events that have occurred after the initial rectigmiof the asset, and such an event (or eventsirg the loss has (have)
an impact on the estimated future cash flows frbefinancial asset or group of financial assetsckwimay be reliably
estimated.

The Group uses the following criteria for determ@ivhether there is objective evidence of an immpairt loss:

- Significant financial difficulties of the debtor;
- breach of contractual clauses, such as late payofiémterest or principal; and
- and probability that the debtor will enter into keuptcy or other financial reorganization.

The amount of the impairment is measured as therdiice between the asset’s carrying amount andréreent value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future dréaéses that have not been incurred), discoungiguhe original

effective interest rate. The carrying amount ofakset is reduced and the amount of the impairfosstis recognized in
the statement of comprehensive income. If the fifdrasset bears a variable interest rate, the@digaate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interate under the contract. As a useful measueeGtioup may calculate
the value of impairment based on the fair valutheffinancial asset using an observable markegpric

If in future fiscal years the amount of the impaémh loss declines and that decline may be objdgtagsociated with an

event subsequent to the recognition of impairmemtlf as the improvement in a debtor's credit ratihg reversal of the
impairment loss previously recorded is recognizethée statement of comprehensive income.

4.8.4 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, arebpnted net on the statement of financial positidren there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amotartd,an intention to settle the net amount, ommkaneously realize the
asset and settle the liability.

4.9 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of acquisitiost restated in constant currency tor net redizaslue.

Since inventories of the Group are not for saleirthalue is calculated based on the purchase,pnigeort duties (if any)

and other taxes (non-refundable taxes by the tthodties), transportation, storage and other cdsectly attributable to
the purchase of those assets. Cost is determirpyiragp the weighted average cost method.
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NOTE 4: ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
4.9 Inventories (Cont'd)

The Group classified inventories into current and-gurrent depending on their final allocation #melterm during which
they are expected to be used, whether for maintenammprovement of present assets. The non-dyscetion of materials
and spare parts is disclosed under Property, plaahequipment. The value of inventories as a wHobs not exceed their
recoverable value at the end of each fiscal year.

4.10 Trade receivables and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customerbuginess sales made by the Company in the oydowrrse of
business. If collection is expected within one yealess, receivables are classified under cumsséts. Otherwise, they
are classified as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are initially recogtiaefair value and subsequently measured at aradrtiost, using the
effective interest rate method and, where appragradjusted at the time value of money.

The Group sets up bad debt allowances when thetgéstive evidence that it will not be able toleot all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivablEssed on an individual analysis of historical perfance of accounts
receivable to assess the recoverability of theicpaditfolio.

The Group has applied the revised IFRS 9 retrogdgtas from January 1, 2018, with the practiesaurces allowed by
the standard, without restatement of the compargteriods.

The Group has reviewed the financial assets cuyremtasured and classified at fair value througdfipor loss or at
amortized cost, and it has concluded that the timmdito maintain this classification are fulfilletierefore, initial adoption
of IFRS 9 has not affected the classification amdsurement of financial assets.

Further, in connection with the new hedge accogmiodel, the Group has not opted for designatiryghaalge relationship
at the date of initial adoption of the revised IFR$herefore, this adoption did not have an imgacthe Group’s financial
position or the results of its operations.

Lastly, in relation to the change in methodology thee calculation of impairment of financial assk&sed on expected
credit losses, the Company has applied the siradlidipproach of IFRS 9 for trade receivables andraticeivables with
similar risk characteristics. To measure expecteditlosses, receivables are grouped by segmeriheobasis of shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past dfterdate.

Expected losses at January 1, 2019 were deterrbstl on the following ratios calculated for thenbers of days past
due:

RATIO PCE Not yet due 30 days 60 days 90 days 120 days 150 days 180 days +180 days

CAMMESA

Interco

Other debtors - - - - - - - 9%

Trade receivables are derecognized when there isasmnable expectation of their recovery. The Gompunderstands
that these are indicators of defaulted paymentedyganization proceedings, bankruptcy or litigatio) a situation of
insolvency implying a high degree of impossibildf collection, and iii) unpaid balances for a pdrmver 180 business
days since the original due date of the invoice.
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NOTE 4: ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
4.10 Trade receivables and other receivables (Conlf

In addition, in the face of contextual and/or exaeml situations, the Company’s Management magfied the amounts
to be covered by an allowance, always sustainimigpaoviding the rationale for the criteria applied.

For the application of the expected loss modekgands trade receivables, no impairment allowadgestment has been
made at January 1, 2019 as against the allowanoedex] at December 31, 2018. Further, in the y@a® 2no impairment
allowance has been set up.

At December 31, 2019, the Company has set up asppavfor trade receivables of $2,750,107.

4.11 Advances to suppliers

The Group has adopted as accounting policy to aischdvances to suppliers under other currentvaddes, until the
assets are received. Advances to suppliers mafdeeilgn currency are recorded under the cost madeélare not subject
to revaluation or recognition of the effects of thehange rate.

4.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hartd, déposits in banks and other short-term higlguid investments
originally falling due within three months or leasd subject to low material risk of changes in gaBank overdrafts, if
any, are disclosed under cash and cash equivdlerte cash flow statement since they are parhefGroup's cash
management.

4.13 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for good®nrices acquired from suppliers in the ordinanyrse of business. Trade
payables are classified as current liabilitiesafments fall due within one year or less. Otherwisey are classified as

non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are initially recognizethia value and subsequently valued at amortizest applying the
effective interest rate method.

4.14 Loans

Loans are initially recognized at fair value, lelsect transaction costs incurred. They are submsty measured at
amortized cost, and any difference between thesfuackeived (net of transaction costs) and the atpmayable at due date
is recognized in the statement of income over ¢h tof the loan, applying the effective interesenmethod. The Group
analyzes loan renegotiation terms to determins H &esult of the quantitative and qualitative geanto their conditions,
they should be considered as amended or settled.

4.15 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acdids, construction or production of qualifying ats, i.e. those that
necessarily take a substantial period of time taegdy for their intended use or sale, are cap@dlas part of the cost of
those assets until the moment they are ready &r tise or sale.

Other borrowing costs are recognized as expengée iperiod in which they are incurred.
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4.16 Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially repuzed at fair value on the date when the conisaekecuted. Subsequent
to initial recognition, they are again measurethatvalue.

The method for recognizing the resulting loss @fipdepends on whether the derivative has beeiguaated as a hedging
instrument and, if so, on the nature of the iteim d@vering. The Group has executed derivativéraots in foreign currency
to hedge the next installment payments falling itlueonnection with principal and interest on itars in US dollars and
reduce the exchange rate risk. However, the Grasmbt applied hedge accounting; therefore, theggsin its value are
recognized in profit or loss, in the caption Changgfair value of financial instruments, under @tfinancial results.

Fair values of derivative financial instrumentstthee traded in active markets are recorded aaugrdi quoted market
prices. Fair values of derivative financial instiemis that are not traded in active markets aremé@ted by using valuation
techniques. The Group applies critical judgmergetect the most appropriate methods and to deteragsumptions that
are based mainly on the market conditions exisdirthe end of each year.

4.17 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has @prebligation, whether legal or implicit, as aule®f past events; a
resource outflow will likely be necessary to setilat obligation; and the amount of the obligatian be measured reliably.

The amount recorded as provisions was the bestastiof the resource outflow necessary to settgthsent obligation,
at the end of the reporting period, consideringgbginent risks and uncertainties and the opimibthe Group's legal
counsel. When a provision is measured using thmatd cash outflow for settling the present olti@g the amount
recorded represents the present value of thatftzagh

4.18 Income tax and minimum notional income tax
a) Current and deferred income taxes
The income tax charge for the year comprises ctteerand deferred tax. Income tax is recognizeddéome.

The current income tax expense is calculated ablsted by the tax laws enacted or to be enadtdebalosing balance
sheet date. Management regularly assesses thépsdin the tax returns regarding situations wlileeeapplicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation and, if esxary, sets out provisions based on the amougtblgato the tax
authorities.

Deferred tax is recognized according to the ligbithethod, for the temporary differences arisingneen the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amoumthe statement of financial position. However deferred tax liability is
recognized if the differences arise from the ihitecognition of goodwill, or from the initial regaition of assets and
liabilities in a transaction (different from a bagss combination) that did not affect accountingpime nor tax income at
the moment of being performed.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to thenetttet it is likely that the company has future tacome against which
to offset the temporary differences.
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NOTE 4: ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

4.18 Income tax and minimum notional income tax

a) Current and deferred income taxes (Cont'd))

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset wtame is a legally enforceable right to offsetogtized amounts and if
deferred tax assets and liabilities derive fronmome tax levied by the same taxation authority dhneeithe same taxable
entity or different taxable entities where therarisintention to settle the balances on a net basis

Current and deferred income tax assets and ligsilitave not been discounted and are stated ahabwailue.

b) Minimum notional income tax

The Group determines minimum notional income tarjpylying the current 1% rate on computable asgatsar end. This
tax is supplementary to income tax; the Companyi&ility is to coincide in each fiscal year withe higher of the two
taxes. However, if the tax on minimum notionaldnee were to exceed income tax in a given fiscat,y@e&ch excess may
be computed as a payment on account of the incax® tbe generated in any of the next ten fiscatye

The Group has recognized the tax on minimum notiom@me accrued in the year and paid in prior yess a credit,
considering that it will be offset against futureays' taxable profits.

Minimum notional income tax assets and liabiliteesve not been discounted and are stated at nowahed.
4.19 Balances with related parties

Debts and receivables with related parties hava bakied based on the terms agreed upon betwegatties.
4.20 Leases

As mentioned in Note 4.1.1 to the Financial Statetsiethe Group adopted IFRS 1&easesand applied the following
options established by the standard:

- For leases classified as financial due to thdiegupn of IAS 17 and IFRIC 4, carrying amountsreszeomputed for
assets for rights of use and lease liabilitiesrpaathe initial application of IFRS 16, as provitfer by item 11 of
the Appendix C of the standard. Those values a@atied under Property, plant and equipment andd.oa

- Finance charges generated for lease liabilitiesiessclosed under Loan interest in Note 32.

- The rest of lease commitments identified areteelléo contracts ending within 12 months as frowpéidn and which
continue to be recognized on a straight-line blagithe Company.

Consequently, the Group did not change the acaoyifidir assets recorded for operating and finanaseke as a result of
the adoption of IFRS 16.

4.21 Defined benefit plan
GMSA, CTR and GROSA grant defined benefit planaudlly, defined benefit plans define an amount ofgi@n benefit

that an employee will receive on retirement, gelhedependent on one or more factors such as agasyof service and
compensation.
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NOTE 4: ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

4.21 Defined benefit plan (Cont'd)

The liability recorded in the statement of finahgasition in relation to defined benefit plansth® present value of the
obligation from defined benefit plans at the clgsdate. The obligation from defined benefit plamsalculated annually
by independent actuaries in accordance with thgegied unit credit method. The current value of dedined benefit
obligation is determined by discounting the futaash outflows estimated using actuarial assumptiased on the
demographic and financial variables that have #ndnce in determining the amount of those benefits

Actuarial gains and losses arising from adjustmefus to the experience and changes of actuariahgg®ns are
recognized in Other comprehensive income in the yédeen they occur. The costs for past servicesiraraediately
recognized in the income statement.

4.22 Equity accounts

Movements in this item have been accounted focaoalance with the pertinent decisions of sharedreldneetings and
legal or regulatory provisions.

a) Share Capital

Share capital represents the capital issued, caedpo$ the contributions that were committed andfade by the
shareholders and represented by shares that cenguristanding shares at nominal value. Ordinaryeshare classified
under equity.

b) Legal reserve

Pursuant to Companies Law No. 19550, 5% of theitpreforted in the statement of comprehensive iredon the year,
net of prior year adjustments, transfers of otlmngrehensive income to unappropriated retainedregsrand prior year
accumulated losses, is to be allocated to the kegalve, until it reaches 20% of the capital stock

c) Optional reserve

Corresponds to the allocation decided by the Coryipa@hareholders' Meeting whereby a specific am@auapplied to
meet the needs for funds required by the projeaissguations relating to the Company policy.

d) Technical revaluation reserve

Corresponds to the technical revaluation resenthesubsidiary companies and associates accotalithg percentage of
interest, as a result of applying the revaluatiadet for property, plant and equipment.

e) Other comprehensive income/(loss)

Corresponds to actuarial gains and losses froraloailation of liabilities for defined benefit pleand their tax effects.
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4.22 Equity accounts (Cont'd)Unappropriated retaing earnings

Retained earnings comprise accumulated profitsosses without a specific appropriation; positivenges can be
distributable by the decision of the Shareholdktséting, as long as they are not subject to lezatictions. These earnings
comprise prior year earnings that were not distatdwand prior year adjustments derived from apfitioaof the accounting
standards.

In case of existence of unappropriated losses thberbed at the end of the year under considarbyighe shareholders'
meeting, the following order for appropriation @l&nces must be followed:

(i) Reserved profits
- Optional reserves
- Reserves provided for by Company bylaws
- Legal reserve
(i) Capital contributions
(iii) Additional paid-in capital
(iv) Other equity instruments (if feasible from the leggad corporate point of view)
(v) Capital adjustment

g) Distribution of dividends

The distribution of dividends among the sharehdddithe Company is recognized as a liability ia financial statements
for the period in which dividends are approvedHtry ineeting of shareholders.

h) Special Reserve

It relates to the positive difference between thigsl balance of unappropriated retained earniigslosed in the financial
statements of the first closing for the year of &&pplication to GISA merged company due to meager the closing
balance of unappropriated retained earnings atltdsing of the last year under prior accountingngéads.

This reserve may not be reversed to perform digiohs in cash or in kind among the shareholdemaorers of the entity
and may only be reversed for capitalization or bscab possible losses of the account “Unapprogriattained

earnings/accumulated losses”, a decision to be tatlee Shareholders’ Meeting which considers tharfcial statements
at year end.

i) Special Reserve GR No. 777/18

Following the mechanism established in GR No. 70¥&of the CNV, in the transition year in which timélation
adjustment is disclosed, the Company has set ygeeiad reserve for an amount equivalent to theluatimn balance
determined by its nominal value transferred in aoting to unappropriated retained earnings. Théxisph reserve may be
reversed following the mechanism provided for bylmable accounting standards. The reserve witldieip ad referendum
of the next Annual Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting.
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NOTE 5: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
5.1 Financial risk factors

Financial risk management is encompassed withiglitigal policies of the Group, which are focusedt@muncertainty of
the financial markets and are aimed at minimizhnggotential adverse effects on its financial yi€lithancial risks are the
risks associated with financial instruments to wahize Group is exposed during or at the end of &achl year. Financial
risks comprise market risk (including the foreigttieange risk, price risk and interest rate riskgdit risk and liquidity

risk.

This section includes a description of the maimficial risks and uncertainties that could have terzd adverse effect on
the Group'’s strategy, performance, results of dfera and financial condition.

Financial risk management is controlled by the RgeaDivision of the Group, which identifies, asgssand covers the
financial risks. The financial risk management giels and systems are reviewed regularly to refleetchanges in the
market conditions and in the Group's businessitiegv

a) Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

Sales made under Resolutions No. 1281/06 (Enetg&, No. 220/07 and No. SE 21/16 are denominatgzbsos at the
exchange rate fixed in BCRA Communication A 350Ch@Mésale) prevailing on the business day priohtoexpiration
date of CAMMESA invoice. Furthermore, the finandaigbt is mainly denominated in that currency andricial debt is
allocated to the investment in the cycle closumgemts stated in US Dollars, which means that thgness has a genuine
hedge against exchange rate fluctuations. HowekierGroup constantly monitors the exchange ratifations of the
main world currencies to define foreign exchangatsgies.

The following table shows the Group's exposureht® foreign exchange risk associated with the assadsliabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functionalency of the Group.
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a) Market risks (Cont'd)

Foreign exchange risk (Cont'd)
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12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Foreign currency
Captions Class Amount Exchang(% rate use Amount recorded in pesos Amount recorded in pesos
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents ug 22,926,657 59.69 ,368,492,198 97,276,394
Trade receivable usb 76,331,59 59.690 4,556,232,85 2,596,010,67!
Total current assets ,984,725,049 ,693,287,064
Total Assets ,984,725,049 ,693,287,064
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
Trade payables usq 24,479,869 59.89 ,466,099,378 ,211,319,75
Trade payabl¢ SEK - - - 521,726,63(
Loans usD 506,981,881 59.89 363,144,890 280,049,224
Total non-current liabilities 829,244,268 @83,095,61(
Current liabilities
Trade payables usq 39,950,579 59.89 ,392,639,826 372,934,221
Intercompany trade payab | USD 41,884,02: 59.790 2,504,245,63; 919,486,08¢
Trade payables SEK 72,470,579 6.46! 468,493,263 ,774,984,421
Loans uUsD 78,967,74. 59.890 4,729,378,05! 5,274,721,27.
Total Current Liabilities 094,756,780 ,382,126,009
Total Liabilities 924,001,048 825,221,619
Assets and liabilities, net (899,275,999 (331,934,555

(1) Exchange rates prevailing at year end, asighdd by Banco Nacién. An average exchange ratggbied to balances with related parties.

Information required by Exhibit G, in compliancethvBection 1, Chapter I, Title IV of the restatect by the CNV.

The Company considers that, if all variables ren@instant, a devaluation of 1% of US dollar and d@sfte Crown
compared to the Argentine peso would increaseftosthe year in the following way:

Argentine peso

Net asset / (liability) position 12.31.2019 12.31.2018

US dollar: (355,307,827 (320,352,23¢

Swedish crowr (4,684,933 (22,967,111

Euros - -
(359,992,76 (343,319,346)
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NOTE 5: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
5.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
a) Market risks (Cont'd)

Price risk

Group revenue rely, to a lesser extent, on salefemader Resolution 31/20, which replaced ES Résald/19. This
resolution adapts certain remuneration criteriedmnomic conditions that are reasonable, foreseeata efficient, through
medium-term commitments. The Group may suffer thpact of any material amendment or repeal of anygeof the
Resolution and such repeal or amendment may camgeoa adverse effect on its business, financiaitmm and results of
operations (see Note 46).

If for any reason not attributable to the Groupyére no longer eligible to participate in the EyiarPlus Program (ES
Resolution No. 1281/06), Resolution No. 220/07 an&S Resolution No. 21/16, or if these resolutiosese repealed or
substantially amended, and the Group were obligesglt all the power generated in the Spot Markehe sales price were
limited, the results of the Group could be badfeeted.

Additionally, the Group's investments in listed italinstruments are susceptible to the marketeprigk deriving from the
uncertainties on the future value of these instmisiéConsidering the minor importance of investra@mequity instruments
vis-a-vis the net position of assets/liabilitids Group is not significantly exposed to riskstiafato price instruments.

In addition, the Group is not exposed to the rawemnias price risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the Group's delbating rate. Indebtedness at floating rate expalse Group to interest rate
risk on their cash flows. At December 31, 2019t portion of the loans in effect had been takahat floating rates,

mainly BADLAR (plus an applicable margin).

The Group analyzes its exposure to interest rgkamia dynamic manner. Hypothetical situationssimeulated considering

the positions relating to refinancing, renewal ofrent positions, alternative financing and hedgiBgsed on these

scenarios, the Group estimates the impact on gofiiss of a definite variation in interest rat8gnulation is only made
in relation to obligations representing the maisifions that accrue interest.

The following table shows the Group's loans brottewn by interest rate:

12.31.201 12.31.201
Fixed rate 34,158,677,6€ 27,673,984,52
34,158,677,66! 27,673,984,520
Floating rate 2,645,993,31 7,042,105,32
2,645,993,31( 7,042,105,321
36,804,670,97 34,716,089,84
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NOTE 5: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
5.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

a) Market risks (Cont’d)

Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

Based on simulations run with all the other vaeatiept constant, an increase/(decrease) of 18¢ ivatriable interest rates
would (decrease)/increase the profit or loss fentbar as follows:

12.31.201 12.31.201
Floating rate 26,459,93: 70,421,05:
Impact on the profit/(loss) for the yeal 26,459,93: 70,421,05:

b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalel®gosits with banks and financial institutions, &mn the exposure to
credit of customers, including the outstanding beds of accounts receivable and arranged transactio

Our credit analysis division assesses privatelgtitelporate customers’ payment ability, taking dmsis their financial
statements, financial position, market reportgphical behavior towards the Company and othemfaied creditworthiness
factors. Credit limits are set on the basis ofititicators described above and are regularly moedtdy the respective
area.

The electricity generators with sales to the spatk®et, per Resolution No. 1/19 which replaced ESoRgion No. 19/17,
and generators with contracts under Resolutions RR&07 and ES No. 21/16 receive through CAMMEB@& payments
for making available the power and energy supplieithe system.

In the last quarter of 2019, CAMMESA paid its pdsé obligations, recognizing interest and exchatifference as agreed
in the pertinent contracts.
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NOTE 5: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
5.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
¢) Liquidity risk

The Management of the Group monitors the updategbgions on liquidity requirements to ensure tiet Group has
enough cash to cover the operational needs whiletaiaing an adequate level of credit facilitieaéable. In this way, the
Group is expected to meet its commitments requased result of the financial debt arising from angdit facility. The
projections take into account payment plans ofGbmpany's debts, compliance with external regwatequirements and
legal requirements.

Temporary cash surpluses are prudently managedl thetf are used for debt servicing purposes anésiment in
enlargement projects currently in progress. Theu@ttas worked in the medium and long term finansingcture, having,
in addition, available credit lines and loans taiguntee compliance with commitments.

The following table shows an analysis of the Grsdipiancial liabilities classified according to ttae dates, considering
the remaining period from the respective balan@estate to their contractual due date. The amahuwn in the table
are the non-discounted contractual cash flows.

Less than 3 Between 3 months Between 1 and 2 More than 2 Total
At December 31, 2019 months and 1 year years years
Trade and other payab 5,059,817,95 1,044,130,70 1,230,064,45 237,965,02 7,571,978,13
Loan: 4,346,556,93 6,096,998,28 10,165,345,3¢ 32,887,319,24 53,496,219,8C
Total 9,406,374,88¢ 7,141,128,98¢ 11,395,409,80¢ 33,125,284,26¢ 61,068,197,942
At December 31, 2018 Less than 3 Between 3 months Between 1 and 2 More than 2 Total
months and 1 year years years
Trade and other payab 2,503,615,55 2,098,469,90 1,421,527,38 373,304,38 6,396,917,22
Loans 4,392,466,35 5,659,952,76 8,605,249,05 31,592,327,9C 50,249,996,07
Total 6,896,081,90 7,758,422,66 10,026,776,43 31,965,632,2¢ 56,646,913,2¢

5.2 Capital risk management

The objectives of the Group when it administersiteh@are to secure the correct operation of theu@r@o encourage its
growth, to meet the financial commitments takenaod produce yields to its shareholders, keepingmimum capital
structure.

Consistently with the industry, the Group monitisscapital based on the Consolidated Debt to Adpu&EBITDA ratio.
This ratio is calculated dividing the net loansHBITDA. Net borrowings correspond to total borrogén(including current
and non-current borrowings) less cash and caslvaguis. Adjusted EBITDA is defined as operatingpime less operating
expenses (including selling and administrative esps, provided that they are included under opeyakpenses) plus
amortization, depreciation and any other non-caglereses (provided that they are included underatiper expenses).
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NOTE 5: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
5.2 Capital risk management (Cont'd)

In the year ended December 31, 2019, the Companyrad long-term indebtedness mainly through théssoe of NO
GMSA-CTR Class Il for an amount of USD 80,000,000.

This issue has allowed improvements in the indetetesl profile, by extending the due dates. Congeliddebt to adjusted
EBITDA ratios at December 31, 2019 and 2018 wer®lisys:

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Total loans (*) 36,804,670,975 34,716,089,841
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (1,704,681,676) (844,807,968)
Net debt 35,099,989,299 33,871,281,873
EBITDA (1) 10,129,808,650 7,881,981,637
Net debt/EBITDA 3.47 4.30

(1) Amount not covered by the Audit Report.
NOTE 6: CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The estimates made and accounting judgments appkedontinually evaluated and are based on histiogkperience and
other factors that are believed to be reasonaldernuhe circumstances.

The preparation of the financial statements reghiaéthe Group makes estimates and carries oluatians relating to the
future. Actual future results may differ from thassgtimates and assessments made at the date timssdidated financial
statements were prepared. The estimates that haigmificant risk of causing an adjustment to therging amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next fiscal yaeg detailed below:

a) Fair value of property, plant and equipment

The Group has opted to value land, real propeatyilifies, machinery and turbines at fair value lgimg discounted cash
flows or comparable techniques.

The fair value calculated by means of the discalictesh flow was used to value facilities, machirearg turbines. This
cash flow was prepared on the basis of estimatés ani approach to consider different scenarios rdatg to their
probability of occurrence.

The following variables have been taken into act@umelation to the estimates made: (i) excharage fluctuations; (ii)
availability and dispatch of turbines associatethwliemand projections according to vegetative gnoii) operating and
maintenance cost; (iv) number of employees; (vialist rate used, among others. Each of these soermamtemplate
different assumptions regarding the critical vaeahused.

The discounted cash flows at December 31, 2019identvo scenarios (pessimistic and basic scenawidh different

probabilities of occurrence. The two scenarioseafiem current rate schedules and are combined diftérent turbine
dispatch alternatives.
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NOTE 6: CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (Cont'd)
a) Fair value of property, plant and equipment (Cort'd)

The criteria considered in each scenario are thewimg:

1. Base scenario: in this case the Group consieistorical average availability and an expedisgatch according
to projections of the demand for energy with a vatjee growth. Probability of occurrence: 70%.

2. Pessimistic scenario: in this case the Grouysiders a historical average availability and galich of less than
expected of the demand for energy. Probabilityaafuorence: 30%.

In all scenarios a discount rate in dollars of agpnately 11.51% was used, which contemplatesuhed scenarios.

The percentages of probability of occurrence asslgare mainly based on the occurrence of diffepast events
(experience).

Actual results may differ from estimates, so thgjgeted cash flows may be adversely affected ifafilee above-mentioned
factors change in the near future.

The Group cannot assure that the future behavitinasfe variables will be in line with projectiomsd differences might
arise between the estimated cash flows and therea#g obtained.

The fair value determination of property, plant agiipment is significantly affected by the doleacchange rate. This
situation, valuation processes and results areisiscl and approved by the Board of the Companleasttonce a year.

However, if the discounted cash flow differs by 16%m Management estimates, the Group will need:

To increase the fair value of land, buildings, lities and machinery by $ 3,926 million, if it wefi@vorable; or
To reduce the fair value of land, buildings, faigk and machinery by $ 3,926 million, if it weret fiavorable.

b) Impairment of assets

Long-lived assets are tested for impairment atdhest levels for which there are separately idetttie cash flows (cash-
generating units or CGUs).

Electricity production plants of ASA’s subsidiariesassociates constitute a cash generating urggdy representing the
lowest level of separation of assets that genémdtspendent cash flows.

Assets that are subject to amortization are tdsteidhpairment whenever events or circumstancesatd that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable.
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NOTE 6: CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (Cont'd)
b) Impairment of assets (Cont'd)

In evaluating whether there is any indication thatcash generating unit could be affected, intexnd external sources of
information are analyzed. Specific events and airstances are considered, which in general inclueleiscount rate used
in the projections of cash flows of each of the C&udl the business condition in terms of marketegsahomic factors,
such as the cost of raw materials, the regulat@mnéwork of the energy industry, projected capmtgdenditure and the
evolution of energy demand. An impairment loseognized when the asset’s carrying value excégdscoverable value.
The recoverable value is the higher of an assai’s/lue less costs to sell and value in use. impairment loss will be
distributed (to reduce the carrying value of theeés of the CGU) as follows:

a) First, to reduce the carrying value of goodwilbakted to the cash generating unit, and

b) Then, reduce the carrying amounts of the othentasdehe unit (or group of units) pro rata on tesis of the
carrying amount of each asset of the unit (or grafumits). The carrying amount of an asset shaolthe reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costsabés and its value in use, or zero.

c) The amount of the impairment loss that cannot heretise allocated to the asset shall be allocatedata to the
other assets of the CGU.

Judgment is required from Management at the timestifnating the future cash flows. Actual cash 8and values may
significantly vary from expected future cash floared the related values obtained through discoehnigues.

¢) Current and deferred income tax/Minimum notional income tax

The Group recognizes income taxes applying thergefdax method. Consequently, the deferred taatassd liabilities
are recognized according to the future tax consempgeattributable to the differences between theyiog amount of
existing assets and liabilities and the respedtixebases. Deferred tax assets and liabilitievaleed at the approved tax
rates that should theoretically be applied on éxalble income in the years in which the temporéfgrgnces are expected
to be settled. A high degree of judgment is regufcedetermine the provision for income tax sincanlsigement regularly
assesses the positions on the tax returns regasdiragions where the applicable tax regulatiosuigject to interpretation
and, if necessary, sets out provisions based oartimints payable to the tax authorities. Whenitied butcome of these
matters is different from the initially recognizathounts, such differences will have an impact aorime tax and deferred
taxes in the fiscal year in which they are detegdin

There are many transactions and calculations atmptd which the latest tax determination is uraiert The Company
early recognizes tax liabilities based on the estiim as to whether additional taxes must be paideiriuture. When the
final tax result differs from the amounts initiallgcognized, any such differences will have an ichpa the current and
deferred income tax assets and liabilities in theqal in which such determination was made.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at every repodttg and reduced according to the probability shsafficient tax base
might be available to allow recovering these assetghole or in part. Deferred assets and liaki#itare not discounted.
When assessing the realizability of deferred teetds Management considers it probable that somal),deferred tax

assets are not realizable.
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NOTE 6: CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (Cont'd)

¢) Current and deferred income tax/Minimum Notional Income Tax (Cont’d)

Whether deferred tax assets are realizable deganthe generation of future taxable income forgagods in which these
temporary differences are deductible. In making #isessment, Management takes into account tedwdet reversal of
deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxalsleome and tax planning strategies.

d) Provisions

Provisions cover contingencies arising in the aadircourse of business and other sundry riskscthatl create obligations
for the Group. In estimating the amounts and proiias of occurrence, the opinion of the Grouggdl advisors has been
considered.

At the date of issue of these consolidated findrst&ements, the Management of the Group undelstinat there are no
elements which may determine the existence of atbetingencies that could materialize and havegative impact on
these consolidated financial statements.

e) Allowance for bad debts

The allowance for bad debts has been set up basadhigtorical analysis of accounts receivablestesas the recoverability
of the credit portfolio.

The allowance for bad debts amounted to $ 2,750ahd7$ 4,230,557 at December 31, 2019 and 20l8:ctgely.

For more information on the balance of the alloveafuz bad debts, see Note 19 to these consolidiatacial statements.
f) Defined benefit plans

GMSA, CTR and GROSA determine the liabilities rethto accumulated bonuses for service length atitetemployee
benefits plans mentioned, considering all the ggtuicrued by the beneficiaries until period endetlan an actuarial study

performed by an independent professional at that d&e actuarial method applied by the Compathei$rojected Benefit
Unit method.
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ORIGINAL VALUE DEPRECIATION NET VALUE
Cantions Value at beginnin| Addition as a Increases (1) Decreases/ |Revaluation of (Impairment) | Value at the end Accumulated at | Addition as a For the year Raivc"ﬂumzﬁ:g?egf (Impairment)/| Accumulated at th 12.31.2019 12.31.2018
P of year result of merge| transfers (2) |original value: Recovery of year beginning of year|result of merger y depreciation Recovery end of the year o o

Land 953,807,58 g 11,986,83] g E - 965,794,41 g E - - 965,794,41] 953,807,58]
Buildings 1,924,261,94 g - 23,176,16( (55,458,01( 1,891,980,09 12,545,29 E 42,912,71 (55,458,01{1) | - 1,891,980,09 1,911,716,64
Facilities 4,946,355,91 g 6,614,141 4,015,06] (518,256,05 4,438,729,07| 77,857,42, E 276,583,44] (354,440,86p) | - 4,438,729,07 4,868,498,49
Machinery and turbings 36,866,449,5] g 38,186,39, 4,857,19Y(4,939,042,68} 31,970,450,42 717,559,31] - 1,714,208,89 (2,431,768,21p) | -31,970,450,42| 36,148,890,19

eqi?;npg'r:?f and office 62,553,20) 1 430818 : - 66,861,38 40,59,00] - 9,417,85| - 49,936,94|  16,924.44|  22,034,11
Vehicles 41,486,10| g 284,49( g E 41,770,59| 20,784,78 E 4,72775] - 25,512,53] 16,258,06 20,701,32
Tools 38,876,07 g 9,479,30 2,8798] E i 51,230,45 18,691,47 10,719,17 - 29,410,64] 21,819,80; 20,184,60)
Furniture and fixtures 3,770,50 g - 21,674 E 3,792,17] 2,933,32 E 346,86/ - 3,280,18 511,99 837,17
Works in progress 2,367,207,9Q -| 6,320,847,28 (35,444,217 E 8,652,610,97| - | i - | " 8.652,610,97 2,367,207,94
Civil constructions on !

kthird party propert 149,057.49 I 169,58 2,03083 ’ 151,257,72 99,213,91 1 2091944 : 12013335 3712437]  49,843,54
Installations on third

arty property 862,433,97 1 280939 (34,833 ’ 865,208,53 606,641,00 | 10826251 : 714,9035Y  150,305,01)  255,792,97
Machinery and turbings

on third party propert 596,045,55 R ) 13,987,80 ’ 610,033,35 319,930,97 |  131,813,09) ) 451,744,07 158,289,28|  276,114,57|

| Leasehold 2,098,12] | 858,129,82] 1,704,051,77 2,688,219,32 - - - 2,688,219,32 2,098,12

improvements in progre| 123,939,60 -
Inputs and spare part: 201,004,78 - 147,684,21 (3,242,794 E 345,446,21 - E | - 345,446,21 201,004,78

ITotal at 12.31.2019 49,015,408,65 -| 7,400,499,64 1,716,293,60(5,512,756,75( 123.939.60) 52,743,384,7¢ 1,916,676,5¢ - 2,319,911,74 (2,841,667,08p) - 1,394,921,25 51,348,463,5(]

[Total at 12.31.2018 26,168,814,8837,094,963,09 6,810,425,96 (1,473,080,83¢ 6,402,177,16| 4,012,107,372 49,015,408,652 818,562,77 4,575,608 2,078,823,55 (1,767,162,589) 781,877,247  1,916,676,598 - 47,098,732,Qp4

1)
@)

Includes the acquisition of assets of the projectte start-up and enlargement of the electripégeration plant.
At December 31, 2019, it includes transfers of adseld for sale have at December 31, 2018 (Noe 10
Information required by Appendix A, in compliancéwSection 1, Chapter lll, Title IV of the restdteext of the CNV.

See our report

dated

March 10, 202

PRICE WATERHOUSE & CO. S.R.L.

(Partner

Marcelo P. Lerne
for the Syndics’ Committee

C.P.CECABA.V.1F.1
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NOTE 8: INFORMATION ON SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES
a) Information on subsidiaries

The Group carries its business through variousatipgy subsidiaries. See composition of the EconoBrisup, equity
interest percentages, materiality criteria and otékevant information on the Group subsidiariedlote 4.2.

GROSA

On April 27, 2011 the Ordinary Shareholders' Megtii Central Térmica Sorrento S.A. unanimously appd the lease
contract with GROSA, the purpose of the agreememo irent both the building and the assets addeldetd®ower Plant,
including the generator, equipment and other abkdléixed assets and spare parts. The contracteffestively valid as
from November 15, 2010 (with a 9-month grace pgraodl has a set term of 10 years, with a renew@mfor 7 additional
years. The first fee installment was invoiced orgést 1, 2011.

Additionally, the parties agreed that GROSA shomdke payments on behalf of Central Térmica Sorré. in
connection with expenses and taxes arising pribtaeember 1, 2010, for up to $4,000,000, accruomensatory interest
at an annual nominal rate of 18%. The repaymetiiesge concepts (debt plus compensatory intereshemgral Térmica
Sorrento S.A. shall be made in 42 monthly and caunsee installments. Finally, and in view of tha$e contract mentioned
above, the parties agreed offsetting the reciproakinces.

At the date of issuance of these consolidated &i@hstatements, the first 35 installments of theve mentioned agreement
are effectively offset, with balances correspondmthe fixed installments invoiced by Central Té&aSorrento S.A. from
August 2011 to June 2014 inclusive, with a remagbalance of $715,565 to be offset. If the lastdidinstallment of the
lease agreement corresponding to July 2014 andatti@ble installments of the periods between Au@@di4 and January
2015 had been invoiced, the balances to be offsehése concepts would have been partially deedeas

On December 23, 2015 the reorganization proceeafi@gntral Térmica Sorrento S.A. was initiated.sT$ituation does not
affect the lease agreement mentioned above olléhtie power generation business.

On November 10, 2016, a mediation hearing was dlesthout reaching an agreement in connection titheviction of
the property under a lease agreement mentiondetipreceding paragraph. GROSA estimates thahigfdy unlikely that
the eviction will take place as Central Térmicar8oto S.A. has no right to be granted this order.

In the case “Central Térmica Sorrento S.A. ¢/ Gatién Rosario S.A. s/Medidas Precautorias” ("Céféamica Sorrento
S.A.v. Generacién Rosario S.A. on precautionargsuees), an attachment was levied on the fundCEtMESA should
settle with GROSA for $ 13,816,696, plus interest$ 6,900,000, which was recorded by CAMMESA ia gettlement
dated December 12, 2017. In reply to this resafytim April 17, 2018 the attachment decreed ag@RSDSA was replaced
with a bond insurance policy. The sums subjech#odourt-ordered attachment were returned to thepgaay on June 28,
2018.

Furthermore, payment of monthly rentals throughgiadl consignment was requested in re. “GeneraBlorario S.A. c/
Central Térmica Sorrento s/ Consignacion” (“Genéra®osario S.A. v. Central Térmica Sorrento on Sigmment”).
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NOTE 8: INFORMATION ON SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES (Cont'd)
a) Information on subsidiaries (Cont'd)

GECEN

GECEN has incurred significant accumulated losse$ 638,278,637 which caused accumulated lossesceed the share
capital at December 31, 2019. Such situation woestlt in the Company falling within the scope ettion 94(5) and
section 206 of the General Companies Law No. 19B80vever, on December 23, 2019 the Law on Socifdi&ity and
Productive Reactivation entered into force in trafework of Public Emergency No. 27541 and reladgdlations, which
suspended until December 31, 2020 the applicatisection 94(5) and article 206 of the General Canigs Law No.
19550, as prescribed by section 59 Title VII. Idiidn, ASA, as a holder of 95% of the shares,dxgsessed its willingness
to continue providing financial support to GECEN.

b) Financial information of subsidiaries with significant non-controlling interest

Non-controlling interest in subsidiaries is notrsfgant for the Group.

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Group’s assoigadolalban Energia S.A.

In 2008, ASA, with a 42% interest, together with\&g Indupa S.A.l.C. created Solalban Energia Sifed at building a
power plant with a generation capacity of 165 MWaled in the petrochemical area of the city of BaBlanca, Province

of Buenos Aires.

Changes in the investments in the Group’s assaciatehe year ended December 31, 2019 and 2018sdi@lows:

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
At beginning of year 387,612,54¢ 848,854,199
Allocated dividends (13,314,642)
Income/(loss) from interests in associates (144,591,117 (447,927,011)
Year end 243,021,42¢ 387,612,546

Below is a breakdown of the investments and theevaf interests held by the Group in the assoeiaizecember 31, 2019
and 2018, as well as the Group’s share in the irdoss of the associate for the fiscal years emtteDecember 31, 2019
and 2018:

Name of issuing|  Main % share interest Equity value Company's share of pofits
entity activity

12.31.201912.31.201§ 12.31.2019| 12.31.2018| 12.31.2019 12.31.2018

Associates

Solalban

ici 0, 0,
Energia S./ Electricity 42% 42%

243,021,429 387,612,54¢ (144,591,117| (447,927,011

243,021,424 387,612,544 (144,591,117] (447,927,011

Information required by Annex C, in compliance w&hction 1, Chapter IlI, Title IV of the CNV restdttext.
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NOTE 8: INFORMATION ON SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES (Cont'd)

b) Financial information of subsidiaries with significant non-controlling interest (Cont’d)

Summarized statement of financial position:

Total non-current assets
Total current assets
Total Assets

Total equity

Total non-current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

Total liabilities and equity

Summarized statement of income and statement op@mnsive income:

Sales revenue

Income/loss for the year

Total comprehensive income for the period

Statement of Cash Flows:

Cash flows provided by (used in) operating
activities

Cash flows (used in) investment activities
Cash flows (used in) financing activities
Cash RECPAM

Increase (Decrease) in cash for the year

The information above shows the balances recondétki financial statements of the associate (rosttare of the Group
in those amounts) adjusted by differences in adigipolicies for valuation of property, plant aaquipment under the

revaluation model.

NOTE 9: INVENTORIES

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
569,202,822 956,547,612
552,987,745 808,656,161

1,122,190,567

1,765,203,773

578,622,452 922,887,021
129,206,859 218,153,878
414,361,256 624,162,874
543,568,115 842,316,752

1,122,190,567

1,765,203,773

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
2,531,299,26 3,837,846,953
(344,264,56¢ (1,066,499,36(
(344,264,566 (1,066,499,360)
12.31.2019 12.31.2018
102,938,19 (29.395,98¢
(52,174,95€ (15,077,58¢
(31,722,70¢
(7,149,918
50,763,241 (83,346,202)

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Current
Supplies and materials 248,121,14 201,798,357
248,121,14 201,798,357
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NOTE 10: AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE ASSETS

31.12.2019 31.12.2018
Current
Works in progress 1,597,02(,442
Advances to suppliers 90¢€,38¢€,769
Impairmen (125,93¢€,608
2,379,470,603
NOTE 11: OTHER RECEIVABLES
Note 12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Non-current
Value added tax 141,555,58: 152,639
Minimum notional income tax 94,470,85¢ 145,326,784
Other tax credits 784,124 -
Sub-total tax credits 236,810,56 145,479,423
Related companies 34 18,154,80¢ 27,927,977
Other credits with C.T. Sorrento 2,124,83¢ 3,268,691
Credit provision 20 (1,859,20C (2,860,052)
255,231,00 173,816,039
Current
Value added tax 74,249,022 558,552,931
Turnover tax credit balance 17,883,29¢ 35,975,765
Tax- Law No. 2541 128,232,08¢ 91,405,500
Other tax credits 7,710,44¢ 21,857,366
Sub-total tax credits 228,074,85 707,791,562
Advances to suppliers 2,460,114,10( 338,490,381
Insurance to be accrued 106,015,52¢ 30,092,839
Related companies 34 10,279,48¢ 16,949,786
Advances to directors 34 4,980,324
Loans to Directors/Shareholders 34 59,952,77¢ 89,981,984
Shareholders 34 182,449,53" 333,880,119
Sundry 7,552,04¢ 39,954,046

3,054,438,326

1,562,121,041
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NOTE 12: TRADE RECEIVABLES

Note 12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Non-Current
Net receivables from CAMMESA 40 - 225,561,717
- 225,561,717
Current
Trade receivables 3,154,655,34i 1,596,931,249
Net receivables from CAMMES; 40 - 95,705,837
Sales not yet billed 1,527,706,00- 1,208,781,103
Allowance for bad debts 20 (2,750,107 (4,230,557)
4,679,611,24! 2,897,187,632

Long-term receivables are measured at present eplplging a market rate. The amount thus obtaireex$ ahot differ from

its fair value.

The movements of the provision for trade and otheeivables are as follows:

For trade receivables For_other
receivables
Balances at December 31, 2018 4,230,557 2,860,052
Increase/(Decrease) (1) 81,567 -
RECPAM (1,562,017) (1,000,852)
Balances at December 31, 2019 2,750,107 1,859,200

(1) The charge is shown under Selling expenses

Information required by Annex E, in compliance w&hction 1, Chapter Ill, Title IV of the CNV restdttext.

NOTE 13: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Cast 603,853 969,555
Checks to be deposit 660,717 -
Banks 1,480,118,18t! 278,295,45:
Mutual fund: 223,298,91¢ 565,542,96:
Cash and cash equivalents (bank 1,704,681,67 844,807,968

overdrafts excluded)

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, @asin, equivalents and bank overdraft facilitiestidet

12.31.2018

12.31.2019
Cash and cash equivalents 1,704.681,67(
Cash and cash equivalents (bank 1,704.681,67

overdrafts included)

844,807,96¢

844,807,968

NOTE 14: CAPITAL STATUS

Subscribed and registered capital at December@19 amounted to $ 64,451,745.
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NOTE 15: DISTRIBUTION OF PROFITS
Dividends

A tax is levied on dividends or profits distributedmong others, by Argentine companies or permagsgablishments to:
individuals, undivided estates or foreign benefieis according to the following rates: (i) dividlnderiving from profits
generated during fiscal years beginning on or aiéuary 1, 2018 until December 31, 2020 will bgiestt to tax at a rate
of 7%, and; (ii) dividends deriving from profits taned during fiscal years beginning on or afteruday 1, 2021 will be
subject to tax at a rate of 13%.

Dividends on profits obtained until the fiscal ygaior to the fiscal year beginning on or afteruany 1, 2018 will continue
to be subject to withholdings, for all beneficiariat a rate of 35% of the amount exceeding reda#aenings to be distributed
free of tax (transition period of equalization tax)

Pursuant to General Companies Law No. 19550, 5&teoprofit reported in the statement of comprehaengicome for the
year, net of prior year adjustments, transferstbélocomprehensive income to unappropriated reda@@enings and prior
year accumulated losses, is to be allocated ttet® reserve, until it reaches 20% of the capitatk.

Due to the issuance of the International Bond, &84t comply with ratios on a consolidated basksetallowed to distribute
dividends.

On March 7, 2019 the Meeting of Shareholders ofAlsi S.A. approved the partial reversal of optioeserve funds and
the distribution of cash dividends for $354,000,@0@ng the shareholders pro rata their shares.

NOTE 16: TRADE PAYABLES

Note 12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Non-Current
Suppliers 1,466,099,37 1,793,046,38!
1,466,099,37 1,793,046,386
Current
Suppliers 3,233,970,09 3,109,070,19:
Provisions for invoices to be receivet 259,567,20 349,093,66:
Related companies 34 2,609,749,36 1,095,862,98:
6,103,286,66 4,554,026,838
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NOTE 17: OTHER LIABILITIES

Non-Current

Other income to be accrL

Current
Related companies
Directors’ fees

Other income to be accru

Note 12.31.2019 12.31.2018
1,930,09 1,785,382
1,930,09 1,785,382
34 368,816 1,457,894
34 - 46,149,721
B, 293,17 451,004
661,99 48,058,619

Other long-term receivables are measured at preséurg applying a market rate. The amount thusiodtdoes not differ

from its fair value.

NOTE 18: LOANS

Non-current

Finance lease debts
Negotiable obligations
International bond
Foreign loan debt
Other bank debts

Current

Finance lease debts
Syndicated Loan
Other bank debts
Foreign loan debt
Negotiable obligations
International bond
CAMMESA

50

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
81,392,51 126,689,57(
7,999,312,21 5,289,020,20«
20,122,314,75 19,484,468,19!
3,218,400,19 3,509,911,23¢
148,765,72 145,514,26¢

31,570,185,39

28,555,603,466

52,401,71
399,189,28
1,552,705,93
729,093,84
1,696,090,24
805,004,56

55,833,302
1,509,058,60!
1,984,581,94-

944,519,20¢
857,919,37:
799,233,18:

9,340,75¢€

5,234,485,58

6,160,486,375




Free translation from the original prepared in Sgafor publication in Argentina

NOTE 18: LOANS (Cont'd)
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At December 31, 2019, the total financial debt antetio $36,805 million. The following table shovwe ttotal debt at that

date.

Loan agreement

Cargill

Credit Suisse AG London
Brancl

Credit Suisse AG London
Brancl

Subtotal

Syndicated loan
ICBC / Hipotecario /
Citibank

Debt securities
International Bond
Class | Negotiable

Obligation co-issuance
Classl| Negotiable

Obligation cissuanc
Class Ill Negotiable

Obligation co-issuance
Class VI Negotiable

Obligation:

Class VIII Negotiable

Obligations

Class X Negotiable
Obligations

Class Il Negotiable
Obligations

Class IV Negotiable
Obligations

Class Il Negotiable
Obligations:
Subtotal

Other liabilities
Supervielle loan
Banco Macro loan
Banco Chubut loan
Banco Chubut loan
Banco Chubut loan
Banco Chubut loan
Supervielle Loan
Banco Ciudad loe
BAPRO loan
ICBC loan
Banco Macro loan
Finance lease

Subtotal

Total financial debt

P Balances at Date of Maturity
Borrower Principal 12.31.2019 Interest rate Currency issue date
(Pesos) (%)
GMSA USD 15,000,000 976718615 LIBOR + 4.25% usbD 2/16/2018 1/29/2021
GECEN USD 24,848,563 1,506,999,470 13.09% usbD 4/25/2018 3/20/2023
GECEN USD 24,383,333 1.463,775.957 7.75% usbD 4/25/2018 3/20/2023
3,947,494,042
GMSA $ 396,500,000 399,189,285 TM20 + 8.00% ARS 12/27/2019 12/27/2020
399,189,285
GMSA/CTR USD 336,000,00C 20,927,319,31¢ 9.625% usD 7127/2016 712712023
GMSA/CTR USD 4,521,000 319,603,030 6.68% usD 10/11/2017 10/11/2020
GMSA/CTR USD 80,000,000 4,728,705,163 15.00% usD 8/5/2019 5/5/2023
GMSAICTR USD 25,730,783 1,516,165,641 8.00% uniil the first amortization date UsD 12/4/2019 4/12/2021
13.00% until the second amortization date.
GMSA USD 6,640,279 401,513,510 8.00% usbD 2/16/2017 2/16/2020
GMSA $ 312,884,660 327,337,502 BADLAR + 5% ARS 8/28/2017 8/28/2021
8.50% until the first date of amortization, 10.50%il
GMSA USD 28,148,340 1,668,374,179 the second amortization date, 13.00% until thelthil usD 12/4/2019 2/16/2021
amortization date.
CTR $ 108,000,000 109,334,756 BADLAR + 2% ARS 11/17/2015 11/17/2020
CTR $ 291,119,753 354,258,487 BADLAR + 5% ARS 7/24/2017 7/24/2021
ASA $ 255,826,342 270,110,184 BADLAR + 4.25% ARS 6/15/2017 6/15/2021
30,622,721,771
GMSA USD 1,015,426 61,259,205 9.90% usD 8/7/2019 2/4/2020
GMSA USD 3,333,333 200,672,521 9.00% usD 8/30/2018 1/12/2021
GMSA USD 170,340 10,239,812 10.50% usbD 7/18/2019 1/18/2020
GMSA USD 672,850 40,454,888 11.00% usD 10/18/2019 4/16/2020
GMSA USD 836,993 50,203,017 11.00% usD 11/25/2019 5/25/2020
GMSA USD 1,000,000 60,034,392 11.00% usbD 12/23/2019 6/23/2020
GMSA $ 135,000,000 139,532,671 64.50% ARS 11/15/2019 2/7/2020
CTR USD 5,018,18 307,701,313 7.90% usD 8/4/201" 8/4/202:
CTR USD 10,600,000 655,705,255 4.00% usD 1/3/2018 7/15/2020
CTR $ 74,725,000 75,250,259 TM20 + Spread 8% ARS 12/27/2018 12/27/2020
CTR USD 1,666,667 100,418,322 9.00% usD 12/28/2018 12/12/2020
GMSA/CTR 133,794,222

1,835,265,877
36,804,670,975
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The due dates of Group loans and their exposurgecest rates are as follows:

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Fixed rate
Less than 1 year 3,749,229,82 4,293,846,53!
Between 1 and 2 years 5,957,821,61 3,893,733,26:
Between 2 and 3 years 3,110,887,42 9,920,372
More than 3 years 21,340,738,81 19,476,484,34!

34,158,677,66 27,673,984,520

Floating rate

Less than 1 year 1,485,255,75 1,866,639,83!
Between 1 and 2 years 1,127,291,03 915,026,02¢
Between 2 and 3 years 33,418,53 1,571,403,93
More than 3 years 27,97 2,689,035,52(
2,645,993,31 7,042,105,321

36,804,670,97 34,716,089,841

The fair value of Company’s international bondBatember 31, 2019 and 2018 amounts to approxim@teR; 778 million
and $ 17,326 million, respectively. Fair value wadculated based on the estimated market pricchefGompany's
international negotiable obligations at the endaxdh fiscal year. The applicable fair value higmgnwould be Level 1.

The other loans at floating rates are measurediavdlue. Loans at a fixed rate do not differ gigantly from their fair
value, as they were issued at a near date.

Fair values are based on the present value obtiteactual cash flows, using a discount rate ddrfu@n observable market
prices of other similar debt instruments plus theesponding credit risk.

As a result of the issue of International Bonds, @ompany has undertaken standard commitmentsifotype of issue,
whose specific conditions are detailed in the pertt public prospectus. At the date of these caheield financial
statements, the Company is in compliance withathmitments undertaken.

Group loans are denominated in the following cuwiest

12.31.2019
1,712,148,02

12.31.2018
2,551,319,34!

Argentine pesos

US dollars

35,092,522,94

32,164,770,49

36,804,670,97:

34,716,089,841
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The evolution of Group's loans during the year thasfollowing:

Loans at beginning of year

Loans receive
Loans pai

Waiver of debt CAMMES:

Accrued intere!
Interest pai

Exchange differenc
Addition as a result of mercg
Capitalized expens

12.31.2019

12.31.2018

34,716,089,841
9,701,523,36!
(8,460,313,34¢

4,124,488,55!
(3,533,435,10¢
15,762,043,36:

(347,085,27¢

17,615,970,944
15,891,135,37.
(9,763,549, 71:
(501,570,81¢
4,002,295,43
(3,095,007,09:
21,839,772,64.
5,178,794,83!
(577,255,86¢

(15,874,495,90:
34,716,089,841

RECPAN
Loans at year end

(15,158,640,41!
36,804,670,975

a) Issuance of international bonds

On July 7, 2016, under CNV Resolution No. 18110,$MGeneracion Frias S.A. and CTR obtained authtioiz for the
co-issuance in the domestic and international ntarké simple guaranteed unsubordinated negotiabligaiions, not
convertible into shares. On July 27, 2016, Negdtgi&lbligations were issued for USD 250 million, oratg in 7 years. The
Negotiable Obligations are unconditionally andyfiguaranteed by ASA.

The Negotiable Obligations have been rated as Bib(iy's).

This issuance allowed financing investments underGompany’s expansion plans, as a result of trercaly the ES of
Wholesale Demand Contracts through Resolution M6/2D016 dated June 14, 2016, and also the Co-@Bquejects under
development, which in the aggregate represent wiorkisistalling 460 nominal MW. In addition, it elived for improving
the Co-issuers’ financial profile with the earlypagyment of existing loans at the date of issueiolbitg a term for financing
in accordance with the projects under financing alsd a considerable decrease in financing cduats, dchieving greater
financial efficiency and release of guarantees.

On November 8, 2017, under RESFC-2017-19033-APNAOIRV Resolution, GMSA and CTR obtained authorizatio
from the CNV for the International Bond reopeni@m December 5, 2017, Negotiable Obligations wesedd for USD 86
million, with a nominal value of USD 336 million.h& negotiable obligations have the same conditzsnthe originally
issued ones.

On March 8, 2019, GMSA and CTR obtained, throughVCResolution No. RESFC-2019-20111-APN-DIR#CNV
authorization for increasing the maximum amountapJSD 300,000,000 of the program for co-issuarfcRagotiable
Obligations.

International Bond:

Principal: Nominal value: USD 336,000,000; amount assigne@MSA: USD 266,000,000 (considering the effect of
merger Generacion Frias S.A.) and the value as$ign€TR: USD 70,000,000

Interest: Fixed rate of 9.625%

Amortization term and method: Interest on the International Bond will be paidchs@annually in arrears, on the following
dates: January 27 and July 27 of each year, coningeon January 27, 2017 to maturity.
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a) Issuance of international bonds (Cont'd)
International Bond: (Cont'd)
Principal on the ON shall be amortized in a lummsuayment at maturity, that is, on July 27, 2023.
Principal balance on the International Negotiabldigations at December 31, 2019 is USD 336,000,000.
As a result of the issue of International Obligatipthe Group has undertaken standard commitmentki§ type of issue,

whose specific conditions are detailed in the pertt public prospect. At the date of these conatdidi financial statements,
the Group is in compliance with all commitments ertdken.

b) Negotiable obligations:
At December 31, 2019 there are outstanding Clas¥Mland X Negotiable Obligations (issued by GMgA£&Iass |, Il and
Il Negotiable Obligations (issued by GMSA and CTR)ass Il and IV Negotiable Obligations (issued@®iR) and Class

Il Negotiable Obligations (issued by ASA) for tlaenounts and under the following conditions: In &ddj Class VII
(GMSA) Negotiable Obligations were settled durihg turrent fiscal year.

b.1) GMSA NO

On October 17, 2012, GMSA obtained, under Resaiutie®42 of the CNV, authorization for: (i) incorptipn of GMSA
to the public offering system; and (ii) creationao§lobal program to issue simple negotiable olitiga (non-convertible
into shares), for a total outstanding nominal vaifiap to USD 100,000,000 or its equivalent in otta@rencies, in one or
more classes or series.

In line with the preceding paragraph, on Septer@6e2017, GMSA and CTR obtained under RESFC-20194 T3 PN-
DIR#CNV Resolution authorization from the CNV fdwetcreation of a program for the co-issuance indbal market of
simple negotiable obligations, not convertible igt@res, for a total outstanding nominal valuepofauUSD 100 million or
its equivalent in other currencies.

Class VI Negotiable Obligations:

Principal: Nominal value: USD 34,696,397

Interest: 8% annual nominal, paid quarterly as from May2@®l7 to maturity.

Amortization term and method: one-off payment once 36 months have elapsed flisbursement of funds.

The negotiable obligations were paid up in cash ianklind, in the latter case through a swap of €l&#sNegotiable
Obligations for USD 448,262.

The proceeds from the issue of Class VI Negoti@tikgations were applied to investments in propgrtgnt and equipment
on various extension projects of GMSA and refinagaf liabilities, improving the Company’s indebtexts profile.

With the issue of Class X ON a swap of 80.86% efghincipal issued under Class VI ON was achieved.

After the swap, principal balance on those negtgiabligations outstanding at December 31, 201998 6,640,279.
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b) Negotiable obligations (Cont'd)

b.1) GMSA NO (Cont'd)

Class VIII Negotiable Obligations:

Class VIII negotiable obligations were issued orgést 28, 2017 and were fully subscribed in kind.

Principal: Nominal value: $ 312,884,660

Interest: Private Banks BADLAR rate plus a 5% margin. Payajlarterly as from November 29, 2017 to maturity.
Amortization term and method: one-off payment once 48 months have elapsed flisbursement of funds.

The proceeds from the issue of Class VIII negotiatligations were fully applied to the refinancofdiabilities, improving
the Company's indebtedness profile.

Principal balance on that Negotiable Obligatiorstartding amounted to $ 312,884,660 at Decembe2(3B.

Class X Negotiable Obligations:

On December 4, 2019, the Company issued NO ClasdiyXintegrated by the swap of NO Class VI undee following
conditions:

Principal: nominal value: USD 28,148,340

Interest: 8.5% annual nominal, payable as from the issuesattttment date until February 16, 2020, inclusiiren 10.5%
annual nominal, payable on a quarterly basis datijust 16, 2020 and the remaining 13% payable queaterly basis until
maturity on February 16, 2021.

Payment term and method: Amortization: The NO principal will be amortized three installments, the first one on
February 16, 2020 for 10% principal, the second\ogust 16, 2020 for 20% principal, and the thirdFabruary 16, 2021
for 70% principal.

The issue allowed the swap of 80.86% of the amtiorgly issued under Co-Issue GMSA-CTR Class |, ionprg the
financial debt maturities of the Company.

Principal balance on those ON outstanding at Deeer@b is USD 28,148,340.
b.2) CTR NO

On August 8, 2014 CTR obtained, under ResolutionIN@d13 of the CNV, authorization for: (i) incorpgion of CTR to
the public offering system; and (i) creation aflabal program to issue simple negotiable obligatithon-convertible into
shares), for a total outstanding nominal valuepfatUSD 50,000,000 or its equivalent in other endies, in one or more
classes or series.

Also, on September 26, 2017, GMSA and CTR obtaineder RESFC-2017-18947-APN-DIR#CNV Resolution
authorization from the CNV for the creation of agmam for the co-issuance in the local market ofpé¢ negotiable
obligations, not convertible into shares, for atautstanding hominal value of up to USD 100 miilior its equivalent in
other currencies.
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b) Negotiable obligations (Cont'd)

b.2) CTR NO (Contd)

Class Il Negotiable Obligations:

On November 17, 2015, CTR issued Class Il negatiabligations. Class Il ON were considered a prtdeiénvestment
within the scope of subsection k) of section 35.8f1the General Rules of the Insurance Activity NSBesolution
21523/1992), pursuant to communication No. 484thefNational Insurance Superintendency dated Noee®b2015.

Principal: nominal value: $270,000,000

Interest on Class Il Negotiable Obligations willfesd quarterly, in arrears. The first payment dat&ugust 17, 2017, and
the last payment date will be November 17, 2020.

Interest: private banks BADLAR rate plus a 2% margin.

Payment term and method:Amortization: Principal on negotiable obligationdlvee amortized in ten (10) consecutive
installments payable on a quarterly basis, equitaie 10% of the nominal value of the negotiabldigatiions, on the
following dates: August 17, 2018, November 17, 2@sbruary 17, 2019, May 17, 2019, August 17, 20d®/ember 17,
2019, February 17, 2020, May 17, 2020, August D202and November 17, 2020. At the date of issuhede financial
statements, principal amount due under Class llokigigle Obligations was $ 108,000,000.

Principal balance on that Negotiable Obligatiorstariding amounted to $ 108,000,000 at Decembe2(@8.

Class IV Negotiable Obligations:

On July 24, 2017, the Company issued Class 1V Nablet Obligations in the amount and under the dior described
below:

Principal: nominal value: $ 291,119,753
Interest: Private Banks BADLAR rate plus a 5% margin.
Interest on Class IV Negotiable Obligations willfesid quarterly in arrears, starting October 24,728nd until maturity.

Payment term and method Principal on Class IV Negotiable Obligations vii# fully amortized within 48 months from
the date of issuance.

The negotiable obligations were paid up in cash iankind, in the latter case through a swap of €Ik negotiable
obligations for $ 161,119,753. The remaining batawes fully paid in cash.

The proceeds from the issuance of Class IV nedet@iligations were applied to investment in fiesdets, debt refinancing
and working capital. The swap of Class Il NegadgaBbligations improved the Company’s financialfpeo

Principal balance on that Negotiable Obligatiorstariding amounted to $ 291,119,753 at Decembe2(@8.
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b) Negotiable obligations (Cont'd)

b.3) GMSA-CTR NO
Class | Negotiable Obligations (GMSA and CTR co-iggance):
Class | negotiable obligations were co-issued otokr 11, 2017 and were fully subscribed in cash.

Principal: total nominal value USD 30,000,000; amount assigto GMSA: USD 20,000,000; amount assigned to CTR:
USD 10,000,000

Interest: 6.68% annual nominal rate, payable quarterly @as fdanuary 11, 2018 to maturity.

Amortization term and method: one-off payment once 36 months have elapsed flisbursement of funds.

The Negotiable Obligations were paid up in cash.

The proceeds from the issue of the Class | Negleti@bligations were allocated mainly to investmeéntgroperty, plant and
ﬁggiilﬁ?;gnt on the various expansion projects at GMBA CTR and, to a lesser extent, to working chpitd refinancing

With the co-issue GMSA-CTR Class lll a swap of 8Pof the principal issued under Co-issue GMSA-CJIRss | was
achieved.

Principal balance on those negotiable obligatiartstanding at December 31, 2019 is USD 4,521,000.
Class Il Negotiable Obligations (GMSA and CTR co-isuance):
Class Il negotiable obligations were co-issued agust 5, 2019 and were fully subscribed in cash.

Principal: total nominal value USD 80 million; amount asgigrio GMSA: USD 72 million and amount assigned TiRC
USD 8,000,000

Interest: 15% nominal annual rate, payable quarterly as fkmwember 5, 2019 to maturity.
Maturity date: May 5, 2023
Amortization method: ten equal and consecutive payments on a quartasig from February 5, 2021 to their maturity.

The proceeds from the issuance of Class || Negeti@bligations were allocated chiefly to the refining of liabilities and
investment in fixed assets and, to a lesser extietite financing of working capital.

Class Il Negotiable Obligations will be: (i) guataed by Albanesi S.A.; and (ii) secured by pledge®perating turbines,
a mortgage on CTI, a reserve account funded bypevimds’ interest and the assignment of collectights over contracts
with CAMMESA under ES Resolution No. 220/07 and®&olution No. 21/17.

Principal balance on those negotiable obligatiartstanding at December 31, 2019 is USD 80,000,000.
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b) Negotiable obligations (Cont'd)

b.3) GMSA-CTR NO (Cont'd)

Class lll Negotiable Obligations (GMSA and CTR co-$suance):

On December 4, 2019, the Company and CTR issuecCId6s IIl for the amount detailed below, fully igtated by the
swap of the Co-lIssue GMSA-CTR Class | under thiefahg conditions:

Principal: total nominal value USD 25,730,782; amount assigro GMSA: USD 17,153,855; amount assigned to CTR:
USD 8,576,928.

Interest: 8% annual nominal, payable on a quarterly basi$ @atober 13, 2020 inclusive and then 13% anmaethinal,
payable on a quarterly basis until its maturityAgril 12, 2021.

Payment term and method:Amortization: NO principal will be amortized in twinstallments, the first one on October 13,
2020 for 10% of the principal and the second onil&&, 2021 for 90% of principal.

The issue allowed the swap of 84.93% of the amtomgly issued under Co-Issue GMSA-CTR Class |, ionprg the
financial debt maturities of the Company.

Principal balance on those negotiable obligatiartstanding at December 31, 2019 is USD 25,730,783.

b.4) ASA NO

On November 20, 2015 ASA obtained, under Resolution17,887 of the CNV, authorization for: (i) imporation of ASA
to the public offering system; and (ii) creationao§lobal program to issue simple negotiable okithga (non-convertible
into shares), for a total outstanding nominal vaifiap to USD 100,000,000 or its equivalent in ott@rencies, in one or
more classes or series.

Class Il Negotiable Obligations:

On June 15, 2017 the Company issued Class Il NdgetObligations under the conditions describedwe
Principal: Nominal value: $ 255,826,342

Interest: Private Banks BADLAR rate plus a 4.25% margin.

Amortization term and method: interest on Class Il Negotiable Obligations vii# paid on a quarterly basis, in arrears,
on the following dates: September 15, 2017; Decenibe 2017; March 15, 2018; June 15, 2018; Septerhbe2018;
December 15, 2018; March 15, 2019; June 15, 20&éptetber 15, 2019; December 15, 2019; March 15);2Dne 15,
2020; September 15, 2020; December 15, 2020; MEBcR021, and June 15, 2021; if other than a basiday, or if such
day does not exist, the interest payment datebeithe immediately following business day.

Principal on the Class Ill Negotiable Obligationdl e paid in three (3) consecutive installmeits,a quarterly basis, the
first two equivalent to 30% of the nominal valueloé Negotiable Obligations and the last one to 4@%ihe dates on which
42, 45 and 48 months shall have elapsed from tteeadassuance; i.e., on December 7, 2020, Margt2@81 and June 15,
2021; if other than a business day, or if suchdtms not exist, the payment date will be the imiatteti following business
day.

58



Free translation from the original prepared in Sgafor publication in Argentina

Albanesi S.A.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Ctid)

NOTE 18: LOANS (Cont'd)
b) Negotiable obligations (Cont'd)

b.4) ASA NO (Cont'd)

The issuance of Class Il Negotiable Obligations dly paid up with in-kind contributions as folls: a partial payment
of Class | Negotiable Obligations for $ 52,519,884l of Class Il Negotiable Obligations for $ 20%,2®8.

Principal balance on that class of negotiable albligns outstanding at December 31, 2019 is $ 255382.
c¢) Other loans
c.1) GMSA - Cargill loan

On February 16, 2018, GMSA obtained a loan fronmg@ldrimited for USD 25,000,000 repayable in 36tadfnents, with
a grace period of 12 months. Amortization will bénalf-yearly installments of principal and intdrasLIBOR 360 + 4.25%.

Principal balance on that debt at December 31, 208D 15,000,000.
c.2) GMSA - Syndicated loan

On December 27, 2019, GMSA obtained a 12-month faan Banco ICBC Argentina S.A. for $ 396,500,080nortized
in 9 monthly consecutive installments, being thstfone payable after 4 months from disbursement.

Principal balance on that debt at December 31, 20$%896,500,000.
¢.3) GECEN - Loan from UBS

On April 4, 2018, the Board of Directors resolvecapprove the request for a loan for (i) the eeglyayment of UBS AG
Stamford Branch loan (jointly with its amendmerttee “Existing Loan”), requested by Albanesi Ener§id.; (ii) the
construction, implementation and operation of a g@oplant of approximately 133 MW in Arroyo Secop¥nce of Santa
Fe, which comprises the acquisition by GECEN ofpagiother assets, two Siemens gas turbines of @ppately 54 MW
and all related ancillary systems and equipment hweilers for recovery of residual heat and a stearhine of
approximately 25 MW and all related ancillary sysseand equipment; and (iii) the construction, immatation and
operation of the Albanesi Energia S.A. 170 MW pebje the TimbUes region, Province of Santa Fectodpaid in advance
in accordance with item (i) above.

To that end, on April 23, 2018, GECEN together wkBSA, as borrowers, Credit Suisse AG, London Bharas

administrative agent, Credit Suisse Securities (WESLRC and UBS Securities LLC, as joint lead arraisgdJBS AG

Stamford Branch, Banco Hipotecario S.A., BACS BadedCrédito y Securitizacion S.A., Banco de Inv@rsi Comercio

Exterior S.A. and Credit Suisse AG Cayman IslandsBh entered into a loan agreement for up to thweered and ninety
five million United States dollars (USD 395,000,000

Principal was expected to be disbursed in two trascTranche A and Tranche B and repaid over a ¢émump to 5 (five)
years (Tranche A) and up to 6 (six) years (TrarBhePrincipal would accrue compensatory interessetsforth in the
Agreement.

On April 25, 2018, the amount of USD 65,000,000 digbursed under Tranche B of the loan.

At December 31, 2019, the Company does not havenamts to comply with in relation to the loan.
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c¢) Other loans (Cont’d)
¢.3) GECEN - Loan from UBS (Cont'd)
To secure the loan, the following guarantees weres:

(i Assignment in trust: AESA and GECEN, the Admsiniitive Agent and TMF Trust Company (Argentin&).S.
as trustee (the "Trustee"), entered into an agreefoethe assignment in trust and trust guaratdescure the obligations
undertaken by the borrowers with the Creditors @ntiite Trustee ("Agreement for assignment in tjustiereby, until full
compliance with the secured obligations, the follgvhave been assigned in guarantee: (a) the ftmbe received by
AESA and GECEN under the Supply Contract; (b) thetractual position of AESA under the main contsaaftthe Project;
and (c) the insurance policies taken out by AES& @ECEN in relation to the Project.

(i) Chattel mortgage: AESA and GECEN shall createhattel mortgage on the Gas Turbine and Boilere @ll the assets
have been imported and cleared through customs.

(iii) Pledge on shares: The shareholders of theelsand GECEN created a senior pledge on all af shares in favor of
the creditors under the loan.

In view of the macroeconomic context prevailingcsitMay 2018, on October 16, 2018, GECEN decideth thie consent
of creditors, to repay Tranche A of the loan agreetnwith the Tranche B effectively disbursed onriAp5 for USD
65,000,000 still pending repayment.

On March 7, 2019, a Forbearance agreement wasdriteo with the creditors of Tranche B in relattorthe loan agreement
to find alternatives for the repayment of the asting amount for USD 52,981,896.

From said agreement, supplementary agreementssiggred whereby the outstanding amounts should igeggefollows:

0] USD 24,383,333 payable within a term of four yearsjine quarterly installments of principal begimpin March
2021, and quarterly payments of interest since Ma@, 2019, with an annual rate of 7.75%. This egrent was
executed by GECEN and secured by ASA.

(ii) USD 12,800,000 will pay quarterly interest sincael20, 2019, accruing an interest rate of 13.09&6lyewhose
principal repayment was divided into two tranchgsUSD 5,000,000 to be paid in four quarterly itist&nts
beginning in June 2019, and (ii) USD 7,800,000¢hid in four years, in nine quarterly installngeat principal
beginning in March 2021. This agreement was exeldoyeGECEN and secured by ASA and GMSA.

A new supplementary agreement was executed on &c&# 2019 for the remaining balance of USD 15568, with the
following payment schedule:

0] USD 15,798,563 accrue an annual interest rate @9%8. Interest accrued from March 8, 2019 to Sep&n20,
2020 will be capitalized in December 2020. Printip#l be repaid in nine quarterly installmentsrsitag in March
2021. This agreement was executed by GECEN anaestby ASA and GMSA.

The agreements entered into also established ldaeseeof the security interest created in conneetith the loan agreement
executed on April 23, 2018.

The balance of principal at the date of presematitthese consolidated financial statements tdtalgD 49,231,896.
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NOTE 19: LEASES

This note provides information on leases in whiuh Group acts as lessor.

Amounts recognized in the statement of Financiaitfm:

12.31.201
Right of use of assets
Machinery 28,465,754
Vehicles 6,343,02¢

34,808,78:
Lease liabilities
Current 52,401,712
Non-current 81,392,51(
Changes in Group finance leases were as follows:

12.31.2019
Finance lease at the beginni 182,522,87:
Payments made for the ye (53,318,191
Interest paic (28,088,417

Accrued interest and exchange differe
RECPAM
Finance lease at closin

100,205,62:
(67,527,665

133,794,22:

NOTE 20: PROVISIONS
Provisions cover contingencies arising in the aaidircourse of business and other sundry riskscthat! create obligations

for the Company. In estimating the amounts andavdities of occurrence, the opinion of the Compartggal advisors has
been considered. They include the activity of thevision for trade and other receivables disclaedtie pertinent captions.

For contingencies

Balances at December 31, 2018 6,898,800
Increase/(Decrease) (5,829,605)
RECPAM (1,069,195)

Balances at December 31, 2019 -

Information required by Annex E, in compliance wghction 1, Chapter Ill, Title IV of the CNV restdttext.
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NOTE 21: SOCIAL SECURITY DEBTS

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Current
Salaries payable 6,789,22 2,327,061
Social security charges payable 76,437,46 73,692,31¢
Provision for vacation pay and Christmas bonus 16,209,78 14,685,28:
Provision for incentives 8,804,77 11,939,927
108,241,25 102,644,589
NOTE 22: TAX PAYABLES
12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Current
Withholdings to be deposited 40,735,88 17,739,41¢
Payment-in-installment plan 157,943,35 -
National Fund of Electric Energy 3,814,45 1,163,141
Value added tax payable 54,095,86 8,213,204
Turnover tax payable 1,612,91¢ 9,439
Other 1,706,53 784,658
259,908,99 27,909,856

NOTE 23: INCOME TAX

Deferred assets and liabilities are offset wherthaje is a legally enforceable right to offset ssets with tax liabilities;
and b) the deferred tax charges are related teathee tax authority. The following amounts, deteediafter offsetting, are
disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position.

The gross transactions recorded in the deferreddeaunt are as follows:

31.12.1¢ 31.12.1¢€
Deferred tax asse
Deferred tax assets to be recovered over morelthamonth 190.186 117.434.131
190.186 117.434.131

Deferred tax liabilitie:
Deferred tavliabilities to be settled over more than 12 mo (7.540.697.51¢
(7.540.697.51F

(7.540.507.32¢

(3.957.112.32;
(3.957.112.327)
(3.839.678.196)

Deferred tax (liabilities), net

31.12.19 31.12.18
Opening balanci (3.839.678.19¢ (1.905.338.14(
Charge to income statem (4.370.641.75" 797.186.37¢

Charge to other comprehensive income 669.812.62¢
Addition due to merg:

Closing balances

(2.041.961.64:
(689.564.79¢
(3.839.678.196)

(7.540.507.32¢
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NOTE 23: INCOME TAX (Cont'd)

The activity in deferred tax assets and liabilitwghout considering the offsetting of balanceatttorrespond to the same
tax jurisdiction, has been as follows:

Charge to other
comprehensive
income

Charge to income

Balances at
statement

ltems Balances at

12.31.201 12.31.201

Deferred ta>- Assets (Liabilities

Property, plant and equipmu (8,126,970,69( (1,904,031,06¢ 667,772,41% (9,363,229,34:

Assets held for sa (217,220,36¢ 217,220,36¢ -
Investment 19,445,92¢ (5,938,822 - 13,507,10¢
Trade receivable (7,319,845 8,649,68¢ - 1,329,841
Other receivable 29,568,37: 27,391,77¢ - 56,960,151
Loans (31,149,40¢ (20,455,582 - (51,604,99C
Provision: (225,424 4,759,322 2,040,211 6,574,10¢
Inflation adjustmer - (2,729,956,84: - (2,729,956,84:
Subtotal (8,333,871,435) (4,402,361,163) 669,812,622 (12,066,419,974)
Provision: (88,684,21¢% - - (88,684,21¢t
Deferred tax lossi 4,582,877,45: 31,719,40¢ - 4,614,596,86!
Subtotal 4,494,193,23¢ 31,719,40¢ - 4,525,912,64!
Total (3,839,678,19€ (4,370,641,757 669,812,622 (7,540,507,329)

Tax Reform and Law on Social Solidarity and Producive Reactivation

On December 29, 2017, the National Executive Bramatted Law No. 27430 on Income Tax. This lawoihiiced several
changes to the income tax treatment, among others:

Income tax rate: The income tax rate for Argentompanies will be reduced gradually from 35% to Jo¥iscal years
beginning on or after January 1, 2018 until Decem®ie 2019 and to 25% for fiscal years beginningoafter January 1,
2020.

Tax on dividends: A tax is levied on dividends ooffis distributed, among others, by Argentine camips or permanent
establishments to: individuals, undivided estate$oteign beneficiaries, according to the followirates: (i) dividends

deriving from profits generated during fiscal yebeginning on or after January 1, 2018 until Decengi, 2019 will be

subject to tax at a rate of 7%, and; (ii) dividemigsiving from profits obtained during fiscal yedmsginning on or after
January 1, 2020 will be subject to tax at a rat&38h.

Dividends on profits obtained until the fiscal ygaior to the fiscal year beginning on or afteruly 1, 2018 will continue
to be subject to withholdings, for all beneficiariat a rate of 35% of the amount exceeding redaaenings to be distributed
free of tax (transition period of equalization tax)

Pursuant to General Companies Law No. 19550, 5&teoprofit reported in the statement of comprehensicome for the

year, net of prior year adjustments, transferstbéocomprehensive income to unappropriated reda@@enings and prior
year accumulated losses, is to be allocated teta reserve, until it reaches 20% of the capita¢k.
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NOTE 23: INCOME TAX (Cont'd)
Tax Reform and Law on Social Solidarity and Producive Reactivation (Cont'd)
Index-adjustments to deductions: Acquisitions @estments made in the fiscal years beginning after January 1, 2018
will be index-adjusted based on the Domestic WradéeBrice Index (IPIM) published by the Nationadtltute of Statistics

and Census (INDEC). This will increase the deptemiahat may be deducted and its computable odsbig event of a sale.

On December 27, 2019, the National Executive Braamettted Law 27541 on Social Solidarity and Praded®eactivation.
As for Income tax applicable to companies, theofeihg amendments introduced by the law are highdigh

- It maintains the tax rate at 30% for 2020 (tl@tershould have been reduced to 25% in accordaitbhethe 2017 Tax
Reform).

- Tax inflation adjustment: The allocation of tle tinflation adjustment for the first and secondryeommenced as from
January 1, 2019 must be allocated in equal partegl6 fiscal years.

- Personal assets tax, shares and equity interatsrate rises from 0.25% to 0.50%.

Below is a reconciliation between income tax chergeresults and the amount resulting from appbcadf the current tax
rate in force in Argentina on the accounting prdiit the fiscal years ended December 31, 2012848

12.31.201 12.31.201
Pre-tax profit 5,032,159,36( (4,404,898 95¢
Current tax ral 30% 30%

Income/(loss) at the tax rate
Permanendifference
Income from interests in associe

(1,509,647,808
(218,877,07¢
(43,377,33¢

1,321,469,687
(307,837,66(
(134,378,10:

Change in the income tax rate 378,767,28¢ (719,799,70¢
Accounting inflationadjustmer 403,262,98¢ 573,583,24«
Tax inflation adjustme! (3,359,946,87¢ -
Statutebarred or unrecorded tax los (36,153,03% (15,572,117
(4,385,971,858 717,465,342
12.31.201 12.31.201
Current ta (15,374,89C (77,007,011
Deferred ta (4,370,641,757 797,186,37¢
plfference between the provision for income tax #relamount reportec 44,78 (2,714,026)
in the tax retur
Income tax (4,385,971,85¢ 717,465,34:

(a) Corresponds to the effect of the applicatiothefchanges in income tax rates on deferred tetsaand liabilities, in line
with the tax reform detailed above, based on thgeeted year of realization. The impact of the cleaimgthe rate was
recognized in income for the year, except in theeazf the adjustment to deferred liabilities getestdrom application of
the revaluation model for certain types of propepiant and equipment, as it is related to itenevipusly recognized in
other comprehensive income. This impact has bestodied in the statement of other comprehensivamec
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NOTE 23: INCOME TAX (Cont'd)

The deferred tax assets due to tax losses aremizegginsofar as the realization of the correspogdiscal benefit through
future taxable income is probable.

At December 31, 2019, accumulated tax losses amow18,072 million and pursuant to the tax law$oirce, they can be
offset against tax profits from future fiscal yeacsording to the following breakdown:

Year Amountin $ Available through
Tax loss for the year 20 237,312,67: 201¢
Tax loss for the year 20 362,285,54¢ 202(
Tax loss for the year 20 1,056,632,13: 2021
Tax loss for the year 20 10,118,184,67! 202z
Tax loss for the year 20 6,297,544,13t 202z
Total accumulated tax losses at December 31, 2( 18,071,959,16.
Unrecorded tax loss (13,142,59¢
Recorded tax losses 18,058,816,56

Unrecorded accumulated tax losses are specifitses from the alienation of AJSA and BDD sha$gecific tax losses
from the alienation of shares can only be allocatgainst the net profit resulting from the dispaxfahose assets.

NOTE 24: DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN - LABOR COMMITMENTS W ITH PERSONNEL

A detailed description of the estimated cost aadility for benefits after retirement granted toptayees of CTR, GMSA
and GROSA is included below. These benefits are:

« A bonus for all the employees retiring under thigedéntial regime of Decree No. 937/74, when reagls5 years
of age and 30 years of service, consisting in 1&rises, augmented by 2% per each year of serviceeshing the
first 5 years.

« Abonus for service length, consisting in paying salary after 20 years of employment (17 yearsyéonen) plus
another one every 5 years up to 35 years’ ser@geyéars, for women) and two more salaries upochieg 40
years of service (37 years, for women).

The liabilities related to accumulated bonusesstawice length and to the employee benefits plamstioned above were
determined considering all the rights accrued leylianeficiaries until closing date of the year ehBecember 31, 2019,
based on an actuarial study performed by an indiperprofessional at that date. The actuarial nteéipplied by the Group
is the Projected Benefit Unit method.

The amounts and conditions vary according to thlective bargaining agreement.

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Defined benefit plan
Non-current 42,337,83 35,882,64:
Current 10,518,31 9,888,894
Total 52,856,15 45,771,537
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NOTE 24: DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS - LABOR COMMITMENTS WITH STAFF (Cont'd)

Changes in the Company’s obligations for benefi@ecember 31, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Present value of the obligations for benefits 52,856,15 45,771,537
Obligations for benefits at year end 52,856,15 45,771,537
The actuarial assumptions used were:
12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Interest rate 5.5% 5.5%
Salary growth rate 1% 1%
Inflation 41.7% 28.0%

At December 31, 2019 and 2018 CTR, GMSA and GRO&Aat have assets related to pension plans.

The charge recognized in the comprehensive statesfi@gmcome is as follows:

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Cost of current service 6,845,684 28,845,331
Interest charge 11,486,64: 9,246,111
Actuarial loss through Other comprehensive inc 8,160,843 1,493,21¢
Total cosl 26,493,16¢ 39,584,664

Changes in the obligation for defined benefit plaresas follows:

12.31.201 12.31.2018
Balances abeginning of ye:¢ 45,771,537 26,267,80¢
Cost of current service 6,845,684 28,845,331
Interest charge 11,486,64: 9,246,111
Actuarial lossthrough Other comprehensive incc 8,160,843 1,493,21¢
RECPAN (16,807,16% (17,397,36¢
Payments of benef (2,601,387 (2,683,565
52,856,15¢ 45,771,53i

Balance at year e

Estimates based on actuarial techniques involveshef statistical tools, such as the demograpbies used in the actuarial
valuation of the Group active personnel. To detaenmortality for the Group active personnel, thetaliy table “RP 2000”
has been used. In general, a mortality table shimwgach age group, the probability that a peisdhat age group will die
before reaching a predetermined age. Mortalityeslalre elaborated separately for men and womeen ghat both have
substantially different mortality rates.

To estimate total and permanent disability duenip @use, the table “Pension Disability Table 19888 been used.
To estimate the probability that the Group actieespnnel will leave the job or stay, the table “EBA has been used.

The liabilities related to the above-mentioned ighesere determined considering all the rightsraed by the beneficiaries
of the plans until closing date of the year endedddnber 31, 2019.
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NOTE 25: FINANCIAL AND NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIA BILITIES

The following tables show the financial assetsfamehcial liabilities per category of financial tngments and reconciliation
with the line exposed in the Statement of Finanidition, as applicable. As the captions Tradeathdr receivables and
Trade and other payables contain both financiatunsents and financial assets or liabilities, sastadvances, receivables
and tax debts), the reconciliation is shown in Nioancial assets and Non-financial liabilities.

Financial assets and liabilities at December 3192ihd 2018 are as follows:

At December 31, 2019

Financial assets/
liabilities

Financial
assets/liabilities at fail

Non-financial assets)

Total

at amortized cost value thrl%igh profit ot liabilities
Asset:
Trade receivables, other receivables and
other: 5064,281,06 2,929,558,02 7,993,839,090
Other financial assets at fair value through
profit or los: - -
Cash and cash equivalents 1,481,382,75! 223.298,91¢ 1,704,681,676
Non-financial assets 129 863 51,839,796,26 51,839,926,126
Total 6,545,663,82 223,428,78 54,769,354,28 61,535,809,828
Liabilities
Trade, tax and other payak 7,733,075,54. - 259,908,99¢ 7,992,984,54:
Loans (finance leases exclud 36,670,876,75: - - 36,670,876,75.
Finance leas: 133,794,22. - - 133,794,22:
Non-financial liabilities - - 7,540,697,51! 7,540,697,51!
Total 44,537,746,51 7,800,606,51 52,338,353,031

Financial

At December 31, 2018

Financial assets/
liabilities

assets/liabilities at fail

Non-financial assets)

Total

at amortized cost value thrl%igh profit ot liabilities
Asset:
Ztrsgs receivables, other receivables and 3.666,925,067 1,194,113,27 4.861,038,336
Oth_er financial assets at fair value through 472,025.49 472,025,496
profit or los:
Cash and cash equivale 279,265,00¢ 565,542,96: - 844,807,96¢
Non-financial asse - 199,768 50,185,651,59. 50,185,851,36.
Total 3,946,190,06 1,037,768,22 51,379,764,86 56,363,723,162
Liabilities
Trade, tax and other payak 6,545,333,35: - 27,909,85¢ 6,573,243,20°
Loans (finance leases excluded) 34,533,566,96 ) 34,533,566,968
Finance leas: 182,522,87: - - 182,522,87:
Non-financial liabilities - - 4,015,236,17: 4,015,236,17:
Total 41,261,423,19 4,043,146,02 45,304,569,219
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NOTE 25: FINANCIAL AND NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIA BILITIES (Cont'd)

The categories of financial instruments were deiteethbased on IFRS 9.

Below are presented the revenues, expenses, mofittosses arising from each financial instruncategory.

At December 31, 2019 Flnanmgl assets at F|nanC|aIlI|ab|I|t|es at Non—flnanmal Assets/Lnabﬂntnes at Total
amortized co: amortized cot instrument fair value

Interest earned 278,506,04" - - - 278,506,04:

Interest paid - (3,972,188,11: ) ) (3,972,188,11:

Changes in the fair

value of financial - - - (92,765,480) (92,765,480)

instrument

Exchange differences, R R

net 745,418,00: (15,245,537,30¢ (14,500,119,30:

Asset R R

recovery/impairmel (47,333,302 (47,333,302

Other financial costs ) (282,792,96¢ 15,983,546,69 ) 15,700,753,72!

Total 976,590,741 (19,500,518,388' 15,983,546,69¢ (92,765,480) (2,633,146,433)

At December 31, 2018 Fmanmlal assets at Fmanua! liabilities at Non—flnanmal Asset§IL|abllltles at Total
amortized cost amortized cost instruments fair value

Interest earned 167,301,46¢ - 167,301,46¢

Interest paid (3,378,444,02( - (3,378,444,02(

Changes in the fair

value of financial - 1,271,519,314 1,271,519,314

instrument

Exchange differences, }

net 594,177,137 (23,348,672,46: (22,754,495,32¢

Asset }

recovery/impairmel 3,230,230,12: 3,230,230,12:

Other financial costs

Total

(408,255,911

12,112,014,32:

11,703,758,41.

3,991,708,72€

(27,135,372,394

12,112,014,32¢

1,271,519,314

(9,760,130,031)

Determination of fair value

ASA classifies fair value measurements of finanaiatruments using a three-level hierarchy, whiskeg priority to the
inputs used in making such measurements. The daievhierarchy has the following levels:

- Level 1: (unadjusted) quoted prices in active kats for identical assets or liabilities;

- Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices includ&ithin Level 1, that are observable for the assdtability,
either directly (i.e., prices) or indirectly (i.@eriving from prices);

- Level 3: Inputs on the assets or liabilities based on observable market inputs (i.e. unobsexwaputs).
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NOTE 25: FINANCIAL AND NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIA BILITIES (Cont'd)

These charts show financial assets and liabildfethe Group measured at fair value at Decembef19 and 2018 and

their allocation to the different hierarchy levels:

At December 31, 2019 Level 1 Level 3 Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 223,298,91¢ 223,298,911
Other financial assets at fair value through profitoss -
Investment in shares 129,863 129,863
Property, plant and equipment at fair value 39,266,954,01 39,266,954,01
Total

223,298,918 39,267,083,87¢ 39,490,382,793
At December 31, 2018 Level 1 Level 3 Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 565,542,96: 565,542,96:
Other financial assets at fair value through profitoss 472,025,49¢ 472,025,49¢
Investment in shares 199,768 199,768

Property, plant and equipment at fair value

43,882,912,92 43,882,912,92

Total

1,037,568,45€ 43,883,112,694 44,920,681,152

The fair value of financial instruments traded ativie markets is based on quoted market pricdseadlate of the statement
of financial position. A market is regarded as\a&fiif quoted prices are readily and regularly ald# from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing serviceregulatory agency, and those prices represenaleenial regularly occurring

market transactions on an arm's length basis. Tbéed market price used for financial assets hglthe Company is the

current bid price. These instruments are includeldevel 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in an active market is determined by usalgation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximize the use ofreable market data where it is available and reljitde as possible on
the Company's specific estimates. If all significiaputs required to fair value an instrument aveesvable, the instrument
is included in level 2. No financial instrument®ald be included in Level 2. If one or more vareblsed to calculate the
fair value are not observable in the market, tharftial instrument is included in Level 3. Thesstrinments are included in
Level 3. These instruments are included in Levéll8s is the case of the revaluation of certaiegaties of property, plant
and equipment.

Specific valuation techniques used to determindahesalue of property, plant and equipment ingud

a) The fair values of real properties and land hawnladjusted by a method using coefficients thatg@a changes in
the purchasing power of the currency to conforraiavfalue at December 31, 2019.

b) The fair values of facilities and machinery andines have been calculated by means of the disedwa#sh flows
(See Note 6.a).

The fair value determination of property, plant aglipment is significantly affected by the dolexchange rate. This
situation, valuation processes and results areissc and approved by the Board of the Companleasitonce a year.
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NOTE 26: SALES REVENUE

Sale of electricity Res. No. No. 95, as amendags ppot

Energia Plus sales

Sale of electricity Resolution No. 220
Sale of electricity Res. No. 21

Total

NOTE 27: COST OF SALES

Cost of purchase of electric energy

Cost of gas and diesel consumption at the plant
Salaries and social security charges

Defined benefit plan

Other employee benefits

Rental

Fees for professional services

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Insurance

Maintenance

Electricity, gas, telephone and postage

Rates and taxes

Travel and per diem

Security guard and cleaning service
Miscellaneous expenses

NOTE 28: SELLING EXPENSES

Duties and taxes
Provision for Turnover tax
Bad debts

Albanesi S.A.

12.31.2019

12.31.2018

920,775,873
2,355,015,549
6,663,457,368
4,260,218,544

1,486,094,785
2,640,305,775
5,547,718,675
3,063,088,296

14,199,467,334

12,737,207,531

12.31.2019

12.31.2018

(1,531,101,83¢

(1,956,129,40:

(184,639,427 (627,207, 74¢
(507,242,53¢ (447,087,01¢
(6,845,684 (28,845,337
(23,767,90¢ (24,655,914
(22,537,38¢ (19,801,941
(11,330,49¢ (24,855,59:
(2,319,911,74( (2,078,823,55:
(107,237,01% (99,595,191
(931,860,06: (794,740,35(
(22,014,92¢ (20,710,87¢
(44,267,75¢ (42,367,48¢
(1,849,151 (2,812,47€
(15,488,78¢ (15,127,90€
(11,978,07¢ (18,203,63¢

(5,742,072,790

(6,200,964,417)

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
(89,488,701 (37,469,417
(33,075,271
(81,567 74,970
(89,570,268 (70,469,714)
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NOTE 29: ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and social security charges
Other employee benefits

Rental

Fees for professional services
Insurance

Directors’ fees

Electricity, gas, telephone and postage
Rates and taxes

Travel and per diem

Miscellaneous expenses

NOTE 30: OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Sundry income
Waiver of debt
Total Other operating income

NOTE 31: OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Miscellaneous expenses
CAMMESA penalty (Note 43)
Total Other operating expenses

Albanesi S.A.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Ctid)

71

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
(80,461,907 (39,834,56¢
(696,850
(12,360,631 (14,968,75¢
(434,618,163 (420,023,57:
(305,058 (165,188
(128,988
(5,893,155 (7,963,165
(14,923,532 (5,892,195
(14,498,437 (7,205,491
(5,647,875 (12,798,28¢

(568,708,758

(509,677,053)

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
10,781,39: 6,634,140
385,058,122
10,781,39: 391,692,262
12.31.2019 12.31.2018

(108,822,844
(435,807,681

(544,630,525)
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NOTE 32: FINANCIAL RESULTS

Financial income

Interest on loans grani
Commercial interest

Total financial income

Financial expenses
Loan interest

Commercial and other interest
Bank expenses and commissions
Total financial expenses

Other financial results
Exchange differences, net

Changes in the fair value of financial instruments
Impairment / Recovery of assets

RECPAM
Other financial results
Total other financial results

Total financial results, net

NOTE 33: EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic

The basic earnings per share are calculated bgidiithe income attributable to the holders of @@mpany's equity

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
11,647,71 19,485,771
266,858,32 147,815,69"

278,506,04 167,301,466

(3,473,186,031
(499,002,082
(20,541,010

(3,313,872,97¢
(64,571,042
(36,773,10¢

(3,992,729,123

(3,415,217,129)

(14,500,119,303
(92,765,480
(47,333,303

15,983,546,69.
(262,251,959

(22,754,495,32(
1,271,519,31
3,230,230,12:

12,112,014,32:
(371,482,80:

1,081,076,64"

(6,512,214,368)

(2,633,146,433

(9,760,130,031)

instruments by the weighted average number of argiahares outstanding during the fiscal year.

Income (Loss) for the period attributable to theneve
Weighted average of outstanding ordinary shares

Basic and diluted earnings (losses) per share

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
607,739,08 (3,290,962,036)
64,451,74 64,451,745

9.4 (51.06)

There are no differences between the calculatidhebasic earnings per share and the dilutedreggmier share.
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NOTE 34: TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PAR TIES

a) Transactions with related parties and associates

Purchase of gas
RGA (1)

Purchase of energy
Solalban Energia S.A.

Purchase of wines
BDD

Purchase of flights
AJSA

Purchase of parts and spare parts
AESA

Sale of energy
RGA
Solalban Energia S.A.

Leases and services agreements
RGA

Recovery of expenses
RGA

AESA

AJSA

Pipeline works
RGA

Work management service
RGA

Interest generated due to loans granted
Directors/Shareholders

Related company

Related company

Related company

Related company

Related company

Related company
Related company

Related company

Related company
Related company
Related company

Related company

Related company

Related parties

@ For purchases of gas, which are consumed for dilsgst the plant.
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12.31.2019

12.31.2018

$

Profit / (Loss)

(4,969,658,053)

(42,438,340)

(687,910)

(91,020,893)

(1,470,568)

102,218,255
519,248

(586,529,084)

(2,288,038)
40,035,256

(1,796,239)

(173,732,513

15,656,962

(7,401,585,845)

(531,665)

(3,337,065)

(124,545,174)

131,519,789
11,629,240

(657,221,920)

(102,982,228)
16,599,035
1,228

(119,076,577)

(159,239,008

19,485,771
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NOTE 34: TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PAR TIES (Cont'd)

a) Transactions with related parties and associatesn(l)
12.31.2019 12.31.2018
$
Profit / (Loss)

Guarantees provided/received

RGA Related company - (2,459,291
AJSA Related company 362,533 563,803
Fees

Directors Related parties - (48,778,541
Exchange differenci

RGA Related company (7,149,481 (9,223,012

b) Remuneration of key managerial staff

The senior management includes directors (execwng non-executive). Their fees at December 319241id 2018
amounted to $87,180,124 and $67,338,371, resplctive

12.31.2019 12.31.2018
$
Profit / (Loss)
Salarie (87,180,124 (67,338,371
(87,180,124) (67,338,371)
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NOTE 34: TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PAR TIES (Cont'd)

c) Balances at the date of the consolidated statenwdritsancial position
Captions Type 12.31.2019 12.31.2018
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Other receivables
TEFU S.A. Related company 18,154,80¢ 27,927,971
18,154,80 27,927,977
CURRENT ASSETS
Other receivables
Minority shareholders' accounts Related parties 182,449,53; 333,880,11¢
AESA Related company 10,279,48¢ 16,949,78¢
Loans to Directors/Shareholders Related parties 59,952,77¢ 89,981,98¢
Advances to directors Related parties - 4,980,324
252,681,79¢ 445,792,21¢
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables
BDD Related company 174,294 -
Solalban Energia S.A. Related company - 476,013
AJSA Related company 165,478 24,607,051
RGA Related company 2,609,409,59: 1,070,779,91.
2,609,749,36 1,095,862,982
Other liabilities
BDD Related company 368,816 1,457,894
Directors’ fees Related parties - 46,149,721
368,81 47,607,615
d) Loans granted to related parties
12.31.2019 12.31.2018
Loans to Albanesi Inversora S.A. (1)
Opening balances 183,658,654

Loans added as a result of the merger, and eltedns
in the consolidation

(183,658,654

Balance at year end

(1) Company absorbed by ASA as from January 1, 2018nmdnherger through absorption.

12.31.201 12.31.201
Loans to Directors/Shareholders
Opening balances 89,981,984 57,430,025
Loans granted 43,393,50C 69,743,607
Loans added as a result of the merger through
absorption
- 23,059,38¢

Loans repaid (57,710,006) (50,134,685)
Accrued interest 25,201,523 19,485,771
Interest forgiven (9,544,561) -
RECPAM (31,369,665) (29,602,120)

59,952,77¢ 89,981,984

Balance at year end
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NOTE 34: TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PAR TIES (Cont'd)
d) Loans granted to related parties (Cont'd)

The loans are governed by the following terms amditions:

Entity Amount Interest rate Conditions
At 12.31.201
Directors/Shareholde 46,852,181 BADLAR + 3% Maturity date: 1 ye:
Total in pesos 46,852,181

Receivables from related parties arise mainly fteansactions of services provided and fall duénenrhonth following the

transaction date. No allowances have been recdodelese receivables from related parties in dth®years covered by
these condensed interim consolidated financis¢stahts. Trade payables with related parties ar@gelyfrom gas purchase
transactions and fall due in the month following tihansaction date. Transactions with related gmidre conducted in
conditions similar to those carried out with indegent parties.

NOTE 35: WORKING CAPITAL

The Company reports at December 31, 2019 a defidit2,027,613,354 in its working capital (calceldias current assets
less current liabilities), which means a decredsg 968,611,861, compared to the deficit in workoapital at December
31, 2018 ($ 2,596,225,215).

It should be noted that EBITDA(*) at December 3012 amounted to $ 10,130 million, in line with @ciions, which
shows compliance with the objectives and efficieotthe transactions carried out by the Group.

(*) Amount not covered by the Audit Report.
NOTE 36: SEGMENT REPORTING

The information on operating segments is preseirtegiccordance with the internal information furm@dhto the chief
operating decision maker (CODM). The Board of Dioes of the Company has been identified as thedsighuthority in
decision-making, responsible for allocating researand assessing the performance of the operatymests.

Management has determined the operating segmesd baseports reviewed by the Board of Directosesed for strategic
decision making.

The Board of Directors considers the businesssisgde segment: the electricity segment. It congzrithe generation and
sale of electricity and the development of enemngjgets, execution of projects, advisory, serviebvery, management and
execution of works of any nature.

The information used by the Board of Directorsdecision-making is based primarily on operatingdatbrs of the business.

Considering that the adjustments between the @@mounting standards and IFRS refer to non-operatems, such
information is not substantially affected by thekgation of the new standards.
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NOTE 37: OTHER COMMITMENTS
A. GMSA

Some of the contractual obligations relating toghpply of electric energy to large customers ef AT at December 31,
2019 and periods in which those obligations mudtiitied are detailed below. These commitmentsatiginated in supply
contracts (energy and power) entered into betweBts/& and large users on the Forward Market in acocd with
regulations set forth by the Energy Secretariatufkesolution No. 1281/06 (Energia Plus). Theyardgracts denominated
in United States dollars, entered into with privatistomers.

Total Up to 1 year From 1 to 3
year:
Sale commitmerfis
Electric energy and power - Plus 1,222,475,078 942,227,786 280,247,292

(1) Commitments are denominated in pesos and have \maed considering estimated market prices, basedhe
particular conditions of each contract. They rdfite valuation of the contracts with private cuaséos in force at
December 31, 2019, under ES Resolution No. 1281/06.

B. GROSA

On April 27, 2011 the Ordinary Shareholders' Megtiri Central Térmica Sorrento S.A. unanimously appd a lease
contract with GROSA, the purpose of the agreememb irent both the building and the assets addeketd®ower Plant,
including the generator, equipment and other abklfixed assets and spare parts. The contraceffedtively valid as from
November 15, 2010 (with a 9-month grace period) laasl a set term of 10 years, with a renewal odtory additional
years. The first fee installment was invoiced orgést 1, 2011.

On December 23, 2015 the reorganization proceadfi@gntral Térmica Sorrento S.A. was initiated.sT$ituation does not
affect the lease agreement mentioned above olldhtrie power generation business.

On November 10, 2016, a mediation hearing was dl@sthout reaching an agreement in connection witheviction of
the property under a lease agreement mentiondatipreceding paragraph. GROSA estimates thahigidy unlikely that
the eviction will take place as Central Térmicar8oto S.A. has no right to be granted this order.

In the case “Central Térmica Sorrento S.A. ¢/ Gacién Rosario S.A. s/Medidas Precautorias” (Cefitéainica Sorrento
S.A. v. Generacién Rosario S.A. on precautionargsuees), an attachment was levied on the fund CAERtMESA should
settle with GROSA for $ 13,816,696, plus interest$ 6,900,000, which was recorded by CAMMESA in Hettlement
dated December 12, 2017. In reply to this resohytom April 17, 2018 the attachment decreed ag@RDSA was replaced
with a bond insurance policy. The sums subjeché&dourt-ordered attachment were returned to thepgaay on June 28,
2018.

Furthermore, payment of monthly rentals throughdiadl consignment was requested in re. “Generafiérario S.A. ¢/
Central Térmica Sorrento s/ Consignacion” (“Gen@ra®osario S.A. v. Central Térmica Sorrento on Sigmment”).

NOTE 38: EXECUTION OF CONTRACTS TO PURCHASE MACHINE RY

BLC Asset Solutions B.V.

On February 21, 2018, GMSA signed an agreementBlith Asset Solutions B.V. (BLC) for the purchaseegliipment to
be installed at the electric power generation gldmtated in Rio Cuarto, Province of Cérdoba, anBzeiza, Province of
Buenos Aires, for expansion through cycle closatebe two power plants. The purchase agreemenfat financing by

BLC for USD 61.200.000, according to the irrevoeabbmmitment signed on July 22, 2019. At the datsigning these
consolidated Financial Statements, machinery anmogit USD 29.5 million was received.
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NOTE 38: EXECUTION OF CONTRACTS TO PURCHASE MACHINE RY (Cont'd)

BLC Asset Solutions B.V. (Cont'd)

In agreement with GMSA, BLC Asset Solutions BV (BL&xpresses its will to amend the documents so asschedule
the payments related to the Contracts for the Rseelbf Equipment. Under such commitment, an additipear was added
for the payment of the mentioned equipment, with élpiration date being March 2023, which signifitareduces the
payments for 2020.

Siemens Industrial Turbomachinery AB

On June 14, 2016 a Deferred Payment Agreement mtasee into with Siemens Industrial Turbomachin&B;, by means
of which, upon compliance of the preceding condgieset forth in the agreement, the Company obtatoedmercial
financing for 50% of the amount of the contrachsid for the CTMM plant enlargement, equivalent Ei<S.77,000,000.

The commercial financing granted will be repaidristallments, with the first installment being phigin August 2017.
Payments shall be made in SEK.

On September 13, 2016, four Deferred Payment Ageatstwere executed with Siemens Industrial Turbdwinacy AB for
the turbines to be installed in CTE and CTI wheradnce fulfilled the preceding conditions fixedtire agreements, the
Company will be granted a commercial financing @¥bof the amount of the agreement signed for thergement of CTI
and the work of Ezeiza, equivalent to SEK 438,960,0

The commercial financing granted will be repaidhistallments, with the first installment of twotbfe agreements mentioned
being payable in September 2017 and the last itivi2020. Payments shall be made in SEK.

Future contractual obligations related to the amttwith Siemens Industrial Turbomachinery AB aneven below by
calendar year:

Commitments (1) SEK Total 2020
Total financing
usb
Siemens Industrial
Turbomachinery AB for the
CTE 263,730,00 5,582,598 5,582,598

purchase of two turbines
Siemens SGT 800

(1) The commitment is stated in US dollars, on theshakthe time of payment according to the particatanditions of the
contract.

In July 2019, the last installment of the deferpayment agreement signed for CTMM was paid. Addélty, with the
proceeds from the issuance of Negotiable Obligatibat took place on August 5, 2019, the defersdrent agreements
signed for CTl and CTE, Stage II, were prepaidsfeotal of SEK 142,370,364. The payment of suckemgents implies the
release of the guarantees associated with thoseragnts.

78



Free translation from the original prepared in Sgafor publication in Argentina

Albanesi S.A.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Ctid)

NOTE 38: EXECUTION OF CONTRACTS TO PURCHASE MACHINE RY (Cont'd)
Pratt & Whitney Power System Inc

Generacion Frias S.A. signed an agreement witht Br&thitney Power System Inc. for the purchasehs ET4000™
SwiftPac® 60 turbine, including whatever is necegdar its installation and start-up. The purchageeement sets out 4-
year financing for USD 12 million by PWPS, uponyisional acceptance by Generacion Frias S.A. Thisumt is disclosed
under current trade payables for the equivaleft748,680,000.

Financing will accrue annual interest at a raté.6%7% and will be calculated on a monthly basi8®tlays/360 days annual,
with interest capitalized on a quarterly basis.

NOTE 39: LONG-TERM MAINTENANCE CONTRACT — CTMM, CTI , CTF, CTE, CTRi AND CTR POWER
PLANTS

GMSA and PWPS entered into a global service agreetheng Term Service Agreement), for the powendaCTMM,
CTland CTF. As set forth in the agreement, PWRStprovide on-site technical assistance on a pegntdasis, a remote
monitoring system to follow up on the efficient flemance of the turbines, 24-hour assistance frbendngineering
department in the USA, original spare parts inn@ety manner and repairs for planned and unplannaidtenance. In
addition, GMSA entered into an equipment leaseagent whereby PWPS must make available to GMSA uBd&V
conditions replacement equipment (Gas GeneratoéPdwrbine) for 72 hours, in case of unplannedipof equipment
out of service. PWPS thus guarantees availabilitpai less than ninety five percent (95%) to thevBoPlants for a
contractual year. Also, the Power Plants have twim repair shop with tools and stocks of sparésgarperform on-site
repairs without having to send the equipment tostigp in the USA. The gas turbine equipment caseloé by plane, thus
reducing the transportation time.

GMSA signed with Siemens SA and Siemens Industiiabomachinery AB a global service and spare pgnéement for
the CTRIi, CTMM, CTI and CTE power plants. As settlioin the agreements, Siemens must provide ontsdkenical
assistance on a permanent basis, a remote mogiteygiem to follow up on the efficient performamddhe turbines, 24-
hour assistance from the engineering departmeiginat spare parts in a timely manner and repairsplanned and
unplanned maintenance. In addition, the agreenstabkshes that Siemens will make available to GM@ACTRIi, CTMM,
CTl and CTE replacement equipment (engine gas geangif necessary. Siemens thus guarantees aagesavailability of
not less than ninety six percent (96%) to the almo@stioned power plants for each biannual measurepagiod. In addition,
the Power Plants have their own repair shop withstand spare parts in stock to make on-site rep@ompliance with the
energy sale agreement with CAMMESA under Resolution220/07 (for power plants CTRi and CTMM) andsBigtion
No. 21/16 (for power plants CTl and CTE) is thusugunteed.

CTR signed a global Long Term Service Agreementtierpower plant with the companies GE Internali®N& and GE
Energy Parts International, LLC. As set forth ie tigreement, GE shall provide on-site technicadt@asee on a permanent
basis, a remote monitoring system to follow up loa ¢fficient performance of the turbines, 24-hossistance from the
engineering department, original spare parts iimaly manner and repairs for planned correctiventemiance. GE thus
guarantees CTR an average availability of nottless ninety five percent (95%) per contractual yeaaddition, CTR has
its own repair workshop with tools and spare parstock to make on-site repairs. Compliance withgower sale agreement
with CAMMESA under Resolution 220/07 is thus guaesal.

Compliance with the energy sale agreements isghaganteed.
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NOTE 40: AGREEMENT FOR THE REGULARIZATION AND SETTL EMENT OF RECEIVABLES WITH THE
WEM

As instructed by the Government Secretariat of ey CAMMESA, through Note NO-2019-66843995 APNEBHA,
CTR, GMSA, GROSA and CAMMESA entered into an Agreeinfor the Regularization and Settlement of Reatdirs
with the WEM (“the Agreement”), whereby CAMMESA #etl the Sale Settlements With Maturity Dates t®letermined
(Liguidaciones de Venta con Fecha de Vencimienidefinir - LVFVD) pending payment, after discountitige debts
incurred with the WEM under financing agreementstuom agreement and assignment of credits agresragatuted by
the generators, and applying a 18 % reductiondadimaining balance.

In this regard, the parties agreed on a net surlifdems corresponding to the pending LVFVD, ddesing the restatement
of interest at September 30, 2019 as well as teetsfof the reduction mentioned above, which an®tm$ 150,682,077
for GMSA, $ 38,626,126 for CTR and $ 150,061,546G&OSA, before applying withholdings, if any. LUgsbn October
4, 2019, the offsetting was performed and the LVB/@utstanding balance was collected.

In compliance with the commitments undertaken @Gbmpany abandoned all claims filed and irrevocaldived to file any
(administrative or legal) claims against the natlogovernment, SGE and/or CAMESSA in connectiorhwiite pending
LVFVD.

NOTE 41: STORAGE OF DOCUMENTATION

On August 14, 2014, the CNV issued General Resoiutio. 629 that introduces amendments to its réigakinvolving
storage and preservation of corporate books, aticgurecords and business documents. The Groupslaeppreserves its
corporate books, accounting records and relevesinbss documents at its principal place of busifessged at Av. L.N.
Alem 855, 14th floor - City of Buenos Aires

Furthermore, it is informed that the Company stentiorking papers and non-sensitive informationfigsal years not yet
statute-barred to its storage services supplier:

Entity responsible for warehousing of informatiobemicile
Iron Mountain Argentina S.A. — Av. Amancio Alcor2482, City of Buenos Aires
Iron Mountain Argentina S.A. — San Miguel de Tucum@®1, Spegazzini, Ezeiza.

A detail of the documentation sent for preservatioravailable at the registered office of that gntas well as the
documentation referred to by article 5, clause,&8gtion | of Chapter V, Title I, of the REGULADNS (N.T. 2013 as
amended).

NOTE 42: ADVANCE LOSS OF PROFIT INSURANCE COVERAGE

All-risk insurance with advance loss of profit (AR{Ccoverage

The Company has taken out all-risk insurance caeefar all the risks of loss or physical damageethbr it is accidental
or unforeseeable, including machinery failures lasd of profit as a result, up to 12 months, diyeahd totally attributable
to any cause. The aim of this policy is to coverltsses caused by the interruption of the aa#vitis a result of the accident,

both as regards the profit that is no longer oletdiand the expenses the Company continues to bepitelits inactivity,
such that the insured may be in the same finasitigtion as if the accident had not occurred.
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NOTE 42: ADVANCE LOSS OF PROFIT INSURANCE COVERAGE (Cont'd)

This insurance covers all physical assets of apg gnd description, not expressly excluded fromtéxé of the policy,
belonging to the insured or in his/her care, custccontrol, for which the insured has assumessaansibility for insuring
against any damage, or for which the insured mgyiae an insurable interest.

On April 15, 2019, the all-risk insurance policy alf generators of Albanesi Group was renewed ffurdner 18 months,
with a reduction of 5% in the annual premium raterfo loss ratio upon renewal.

Contractors’ all-risk and assembly insurance

Works for installation or enlargement of the capadeveloped by the Company are insured by a Cototrsi all-risk and
assembly insurance, which covers all accidentalndoreseeable damages occurred during the execofiarcivil work,
including damages caused by acts of God, providatithey are not expressly excluded from the policy

The policy includes delay in start-up (DSU) or aus& loss of profit (ALOP) insurance of up to 12 iy providing
coverage for the expected commercial profit mafgirsales of energy and power, discounting thealdei costs during the
period of repair or replacement of the damagedpsaent.

Once all pieces of equipment are in operationnthe assets will be covered by the All-risk insueatitat Albanesi Group
has taken out, and which covers all power plantpigration.

NOTE 43: SUPPLY CONTRACT WITH CAMMESA: AGREED UPON DATE FOR COMMERCIAL
OPERATION OF THE POWER PLANTS

On September 30, 2016, GMSA, as seller, and CAMMESAbuyer—, on behalf of the WEM, entered into Supply
Contracts for the available power and energy seddly CTE and CTI. July 1, 2017 was the Agreed Upate set for the
commercial operation of the two power plants.

Authorizations for commercial operation of CTE &l were granted on September 29 and August 107,2@%pectively.

On June 28, 2017 GMSA made a filing before CAMMES® the ES, to inform them that CTE and CTI haéesedl certain
facts that could be considered as a force majergter an act of God, which in turn adversely etffd the possibility of
obtaining the authorization for commercial openatity the Agreed upon Date set on the Supply Conthadhis regard,
GMSA explained, argued, and produced the pertieeiience supporting the existence of certain factuot attributable to
GMSA, which implied that the authorization for comrtial operation was not obtained at the Agreedupate as set forth
in the Supply Contract.

Under Resolution 264/2018 dated Wednesday, Ju2®X8, the Energy Ministry established that the fimsashall be
discounted from the sum receivable by the penal@ederating Agent in 12 equal and consecutive nipiistaliments,
and that the Generating Agent may opt to discdwpenalty amount in up to 48 equal and consecimstallments, applying
to the balance an effective annual rate of 1.7%riited States dollars, and the number of instalk:iehall not exceed the
contract term.

Without prejudice to the above, CAMMESA has rejddBMSA’s arguments and has set the penalties iarfmints of USD
12,580,090 for CTE and USD 3,950,212 for CTI.

The balance of these penalties at December 31, 2@18f the present value, equivalent to $ 577488 is disclosed under
trade payables.
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NOTE 43: SUPPLY CONTRACT WITH CAMMESA: AGREED UPON DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR THE
COMMERCIAL OPERATION OF THE POWER PLANTS (Cont'd)

In view of the foregoing, on July 10 and July 2818 GMSA made the pertinent presentations to CAMKE®&King use
of the option to discount the penalty amount inta@8 monthly and consecutive installments, apgiymthe balance the
effective annual rate of 1.7% in United Statesatslithe number of installments should not excheabntract term and the
first installment payable shall be discounted asifthe July 2018 transaction, maturing in Septerabés.

The results of this transaction, as disclosed unttesr operating expenses, in the Statement of Gamepsive Income, are
exceptional, unique and do not relate to GMSA’'srmiae of business, therefore they are not considieo be within
EBITDA.

NOTE 44: AGREEMENT OF THE ARGENTINE FEDERATION OF E NERGY WORKERS WITH GMSA, CTR
AND AESA

On June 8, 2017, GMSA, CTR and AESA subscribechaemtion memorandum of agreement with the Argerfimderation
of Energy Workers (Federacion Argentina de Traba&jeslde Luz y Fuerza) where they acknowledge #hatrirelationships
between them will be ruled by a company-specifighaing agreement.

The collective bargaining agreement shall haveratthn of 3 years counted as from January 1, 2@t8saall apply to the
CTMM, CTI, CTRi, CTLB, CTF, CTR and CT Timbues th&al power plants.

NOTE 45: ECONOMIC CONTEXT IN WHICH THE COMPANY OPER ATES

The Company has been operating in a complex ecanemvironment whose main variables have recentiy ladfected by
a strong volatility, both nationally and internatadly.

The following circumstances occurred locally in 201
« In the first half of the year, a 2.5% drop in thB&Swas recorded in year-on-year terms.
¢ Cumulative inflation between January 1, 2019 anddber 31, 2019 was 53.8% (General Consumer Rrifsx).
« The significant peso devaluation since August bdstd an unexpected withdrawal of deposits in d®ffeom the
financial system, thereby eroding the Central Baaderves, and to an increase in the referencegiteate, which
during the year reached over 80%. At year endrdfexence interest rate was close to 60%.

On December 10, 2019, a new national governmentirestnation took office. In view of these circumstzs, the
government decided to implement certain measurkeighware summarized below:

e Set up of a regularization system for tax, socgusity and customs debts for micro, small and medsized
enterprises.

« Suspension of the employers’ contributions ratdication schedule.

« Power to the National Executive Branch to determim@datory minimum salary increases to workerkérptrivate
sector (with temporary exemption of the employand employees' contributions to the Argentine Iratgl Social
Security System of the salary increases resultioig this power or collective bargaining).

e Suspension, for the financial years starting oaftar January 1, 2021, inclusive, of the tax ratfuction stated by
Law No. 27430, keeping the 30% rate and the 7%foatéhe dividends for those years.
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NOTE 45: ECONOMIC CONTEXT IN WHICH THE COMPANY OPER ATES (CONT'D)

¢ Regarding the tax inflation adjustment, it was dedithat the amount determined for the first arwbise year
starting on or after January 1, 2019 has to beatén as follows: 1/6 during those fiscal years tiedremaining
5/6 in equal parts in the immediate next five figears. Likewise, such provision does not pretkatcalculation
of the remaining thirds corresponding to previoaarg, calculated pursuant to the previous versi@eotion 194

of the Income Tax Law.
« Decree on the increase in the withholding tax gomoets (except for hydrocarbons and mining) ancheaTax on

Personal Assets.
e The Value Added Tax on basic food basket produets ig-established and the variability of pensiamefies was

suspended.

NOTE 46: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
a) Resolution ES No. 31/2020

ES Resolution 31/2020 was published on Februarg@Z0, repealing SRRYME Resolution No. 1/2019.

Firstly, the Guaranteed Availability for Power isaimtained of thermal generators and adds that gezation of the
generating park will be evaluated for 50 hours eacimth in which the maximum thermal requiremereisorded, that is,
in the 50 hours in which the highest dispatch efithal generation is recorded in the month.

Secondly, it maintains the same remuneration itemisnow in effect: available power (actual povaerilability and DIGO)
and energy (energy generated, operated energyn@ngyegenerated in the maximum thermal requirerheuats).

The following table shows the Base Price for thev&g according to the technology and scale (PrezBat3:

1. Power prices:

a. Base Power (for those generators not guaranteeing\ailability)

PrecBasePot
Technology/Scale

[$/MW-month]
CC large P > 150 MW 100,650
CC small B150 MW 112,200
TV large P >100 MW 143,500
TV small P< 100MW 171,600
TG large P >50 MW 117,150
TG small P< 50MW 151,800
Internal combustion engines > 42 MW 171,600
CC small B15 MW 204,000
TV small P< 15 MW 312,000
TG small P< 15MW 276,000
Internal combustion engines42 MW 312,000
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NOTE 46: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Cont'd)
a) ES Resolution No. 31/2020 (Cont'd)

1. Power prices: (Cont'd)

b. DIGO Guaranteed Power

Period PrecPotDIGO
[$/MW-month]
Summer:
December January- Februar 360,000
Winter:
June- July - Augus 360,000
Rest of the year:
March- April - May - Septembe- October- Novembe 270,000

Further, they add a DIGO power remuneration foerdmal Combustion Engines < 42 MW.

All thermal units will be remunerated in accordandgth their average monthly availability when naotder maintenance.
The DIGO unavailability will be recorded for any nvlaw or due to the failure to consume fuel alteckin the economic
dispatch.

In addition, power remuneration will be affectedthg use factor. If the use factor of the genenatinit is lower than 30%,
the remuneration of the Base Power or DIGO wilbffected by 60%.

Finally, generators will receive a monthly remutierafor the average power effectively deliveredhia Maximum Thermal
Requirement hours at the price of the Power in HofiMaximum Thermal Requirement: 37,500 $/MW (288D/MW).

2. Energy prices

a. Operation and maintenance

Natural gas Fuel Oi,l/
Technology/Scale Gas Oil
$/MWh $/MWh
CC large P > 150 MW 240 420
CC small B150 MW 240 420
TV large P >100 MW 240 420
TV small P< 100MW 240 420
TG large P >50 MW 240 420
TG small P< 50MW 240 420
Internal combustion engines 240 420

b. It will receive $ 84/Mwh for Operated Energy.

Resolution applied as from the transaction in Fakbri2020. All values stated in Argentine Pesoshis Resolution are
updated every month 60% CPI / 40% WPI, taking ttaed¥l transaction as basis.
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b) Resignation of full Director and Appointment of new Directors and Composition of the GMSA Board of
Directors.

On December 27, 2019, the Company was informetdenfésignation of Engineer Roberto José Volontéladirector in
the Company, which was accepted by the Board oédiors Minutes dated February 19, 2020, wherebpatinary
Shareholders' Meeting was called for March 6, 2@2a8ddress this resignation and consider the appeint of new Board
Members.

In the Shareholders’ Meeting dated March 6, 2088,rtumber of Full Directors was set at 9 (nine) ar(flve) Alternate

Directors. In this line, Mr. Ricardo Martin Lépeawsappointed as Full Director and as Alternate ddamrs Messrs. Dario
Sebastian Silberstein and Osvaldo Enrique AlbeadaCwho join the current Board. Thus, the Compmsibf the Board of
Directors in office until the Shareholders’ Meetigdressing the Financial Statements at Decemh&020 will be formed
as follows: President Armando Losén (Jr.), Vicesitent 1: Guillermo Gonzalo Brun, Vice Presideni@ian Pablo Sarti;
Full Directors: Carlos Alfredo Bauzas, Oscar Caniii Luise, Sebastian Andres Sanchez Ramos, JotgeaHschneider,
Juan Carlos Collin, and Ricardo Martin Lépez; Alte Directors: Jose Leonel Sarti, Juan Gregorlg, Romina Solange
Kelleyian, Dario Sebastian Silberstein and Osv&ldaque Alberto Cado.

NOTE 47: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TRANSLATION INTO ENGL ISH LANGUAGE

These financial statements are the English traoslaff those originally prepared by the Compangpanish and
presented in accordance with accounting princigaerally accepted in Argentina. The effects ofdifferences between
the accounting principles generally accepted inefstina and the accounting principles generally piszkin the countries
in which the financial statements are to be use Imat been quantified. Accordingly, the accompagyinancial
statements are not intended to present the finlgmosition, statements of comprehensive incomengaa in equity or
cash flows in accordance with accounting princigleserally accepted in the countries of usersefitiancial statements,
other than Argentina.
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Summary of activity at December 31, 2019 and 2018

1. Brief description of the activities of the issgicompany, including references to relevant sitaatsubsequent to year
end.

In accordance with the provisions of CNV Generasdtation No. 368/01 and subsequent amendmentsregemt below
an analysis of the results of operations of AlbaSes. (the Company) and its financial position,igfhmust be read together
with the attached consolidated financial statements

Fiscal year ended
December 31:
2019 | | 2018 | | Variation | | Variation %
GW
Sales by type of market
Sale of electricity Res. No. No. 95, as amengéds spot 243 233 10 4%
Energia Plus sales 566 673 (107) (16%)
Sale of electricity Resolution No. 220 1,421 803 618 77%
Sale of electricity Res. No. 21 580 193 387 201%
2,809 1,902 907 48%

The sales for each market (in millions of peseos)shown below:

Fiscal year ended
December 31:

2019 | | 2018 | | variaion | | variation%

(in millions of pesos)

Sales by type of market

Sale of electricity Res. No. No. 95, as amendag ppot 920.8 1,486.1 (565.3) (38%)
Energia Plus sales 2,355.0 2,640.3 (285.3) (11%)
Sale of electricity Resolution No. 220 6,663.5 5,5647.7 1,115.8 20%
Sale of electricity Res. No. 21 4,260.2 3,063.1 1,197.1 39%
Total 14,199.5 12,737.2 1,462.3 11%
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Results for the fiscal years ended December 319 20 2018 (in millions of pesos):

| 2019 | | 2018 | | variation | | variation %
Sales of energy 14,199.5 12,737.2 1,462.3 11%
Net sales 14,199.5 12,737.2 1,462.3 11%
Cost of purchase of electric energy (1,531.1) (1,956.1) 425.0 (22%)
Gas and diesel consumption at the plant (184.6) (627.2) 442.6 (71%)
Salaries and social security charges (507.2) (447.1) (60.1) 13%
Defined benefit plan (6.8) (28.8) 22.0 (76%)
Maintenance services (931.9) (794.7) (137.2) 17%
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (2,319.9) (2,078.8) (241.1) 12%
Insurance (107.2) (99.6) (7.6) 8%
Sundry (153.2) (168.5) 15.3 (9%)
Cost of sales (5,742.1) (6,201.0) 458.9 (7%)
Gr oss income/(loss) 8,457.4 6,536.2 1,921.2 29%
Rates and taxes (89.5) (37.5) (52.0) 139%
Bad debts 0.2) 0.1 0.2) (100%)
Provision for Turnover tax - (33.1) 33.1 100%
Selling expenses (89.6) (70.5) (19.1) 27%
Salaries and social security charges (80.5) (39.8) (40.7) 100%
Fees for professional services (434.6) (420.0) (14.6) 3%
Directors’ fees - (0.1) 0.1 (100%)
Travel and per diem (14.5) (7.2) (7.3) 101%
Rates and taxes (14.9) (5.9) (9.0) 153%
Sundry (24.2) (36.6) 12.4 (34%)
Administr ative expenses (568.7) (509.7) (59.0) 12%
Income/(Loss) from interest in associates (144.6) (447.9) 303.3 (68%)
Other operating income 10.8 391.7 (380.9) (97%)
Other operating expenses (544.6) 544.1 (100%)
Operating income 7,665.3 5,355.2 2,310.1 43%
Commercial interest, net (232.1) 83.2 (315.3) (379%)
Interest on loans, net (3,461.5) (3,294.4) (167.1) 5%
Bank expenses and commissions (20.5) (36.8) 16.3 (44%)
Exchange differences, net (14,500.1) (22,754.5) 8,254.4 (36%)
Impairment / Recovery of assets (47.3) 3,230.2 (3,277.5) 100%
Gain/loss on purchasing power parity (RECPAM) 15,983.5 12,112.0 3,871.5 32%
Other financial results (355.0) 900.0 (1,255.0) (139%)
Financial results, net (2,633.1) (9,760.1) 7,127.0 (73%)
Pre-tax profit/(loss) 5,032.2 (4,404.9) 9,437.1 (214%)
Income tax (4,386.0) 7175 (5,103.5) (711%)
Net profit/(loss) for the year 646.2 (3,687.4) 4,333.6 (118%)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment insidibries (2,671.1) 8,169.3 (10,840.4) (133%)
Impact on income tax 669.8 (2,042.0) 2,711.8 (133%)
Defined benefit plan 8.2) (1.5) 6.7 447%
Other comprehensive income for the year (2,009.4) 6,125.9 (8,135.3) (133%)
Total comprehensiveincome for the year (1,363.3) 2,438.5 (3,801.8) (156%)
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Sales:

Net sales for the year ended December 31, 2019 meabto $14.199 billion, compared with $12.737idillfor fiscal year
2018, showing an increase of $1.462 billion (11%).

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019)2BW of electricity were sold, thus accounting §48% increase
compared with the 1,902 GW sold in 2018.

Below is a description of the Company's main reesn@and their variation during the year ended Déegr81, 2019, as
against the previous year:

(i) $2.355 hillion from sales under Energia Plus, anting for a decrease of 11% compared to the $208#6n sold in
2018.

(i) $ 6.663 billion for sales of electricity in the feard market to CAMMESA under the framework of Regioin No.
220/07, representing a 20% increase with regatte$5.547 billion for 2018. This variation is kamsly attributable
to the effect between an increase in the energattised, due to the closing to the combined cyctbé CTR’s plant
as from August 4, 2018, a higher exchange ratetaedesult of applying SRRyYME Resolution No. 01R2ahat
establishes new remuneration mechanisms.

(i) $920.8 million for sales of energy under Resolutitm 95, as amended, plus Spot, accounting fofa @&crease with
regard to the $1,486 billion for fiscal year 2088, a result of the application of SRRyME Resolufitm 01/2019
which established new remuneration mechanisms.

(iv) $4.260 billion from sales under Resolution No. @f,39% from the $3.063 billion sold in fiscal ye2318. This
variation is explained by the greater sale of eiety, in GW.

Cost of sales:

The total cost of sales for the year ended Dece®be2019 reached $5.742 billion, compared witt286 billion for fiscal
year 2018, thus accounting for a decrease of $458li@n (or 7%).

Below is a description of the main costs of salethe Company, in millions of pesos, and their parfance during fiscal
year 2019.

(i) $1.531 billion from purchases of electricity, whimtcounted for a 22% drop compared with the $18i%6n for fiscal
year 2018, due to lower sales of GW under Enerlyis. P

(i) $184.6 million for gas and diesel consumption atglant, representing a decrease of 71% as agh@$627.2 million
recorded in fiscal 2018.

(i)  $931.9 million for maintenance services, a ris& @ compared with the $794.7 million recorded stéil year 2018.
This change was due to the variation in the dellehange rate and the start-up of new turbines.

(iv) $2.319 billion for depreciation of PP&E, up 12%rfrdhe $2.078 billion recorded in fiscal year 20TBis variation
resulted mainly from the higher depreciation valmeer the buildings, facilities and machinery hagdidue to their
revaluation in 2019 and 2018.
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(v) $570.2 million for salaries and social security ttitmitions , up 13% from the $447.1 million recadde 2018.

Gross income/(loss):

Gross income for the year ended December 31, 2@E%$8.457 billion, compared with income of $6.5860lm for fiscal
year 2018, accounting for an increase of 29%. iBhilkie to the variation in the exchange rate awgep@and energy income
from the new turbines authorized.

Selling expenses:

Selling expenses for the year ended December 319 athounted to $89.6 million, compared with the .68%illion for
fiscal year 2018, accounting for an increase of $18illion (27%).

Administrative expenses:

Administrative expenses for the year ended Deceriie2019 amounted to $568.7 million, compared wlith $509.7
million recorded in fiscal year 2018, accounting & increase of $59.0 million (12%).

The main components of the Company’s administragienses are listed below:

(i) $434.6 million in fees and compensation for semicccounting for an increase of 3% compared vhieh$420.0
million recorded in fiscal year 2018.

(i) $14.9 million in rates and taxes, which accountadaf 153% increase compared with the $5.9 millmmfiscal year
2018.

Operating income/(loss):

Operating income for the year ended December 319 2as $7.665 billion, compared with income of $5.Billion for the
year 2018, accounting for a 43% increase.

Financial results:

Financial results for the fiscal year ended Decemn3tie 2019 amounted to a total loss of $2.633drillicompared with the
loss of $9.760 billion recorded in fiscal year 20iBich accounted for a decrease of $7,127 billion.

The most noticeable aspects of the variation are:

(i) $3.461 billion loss corresponding to financial net&t, up 5% from the $3.294 billion loss recorde@018 as a result
of an increase in the financial debt generatechligstment projects.

(i) $15.983 billion gain on PPP (RECPAM) as a resulthef application of adjustment for inflation, repeating an
increase of $3.871 billion compared with $12.11kdsi gain for fiscal year 2018, as consequenddehigher inflation
recorded in 2019 compared with 2018.
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(i) $14.500 billion loss due to net exchange differesn@ecounting for a decrease of $8,254 billion carag with the
$22.754 billion loss recorded in the previous fisesar. Despite the exchange rate rise in fiscal @919 compared
with the previous fiscal year, there is a decraaskolding results mainly due to the effects of tlestatement of
exchange gains/losses for fiscal year 2018 by apphe CPI.

Pre-tax profit/(loss):

The Company reported pre-tax income of $5.032dilfior the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019¢hvhccounted for
a $9.437 billion increase compared with the los$4#04 billion recorded in the previous fiscal yea

The income tax charge was a $4.386 billion losgHerfiscal year ended December 31, 2019, reprieseatioss of $5.103
billion compared with the 717.5 million income five previous fiscal year.

Net income/loss:

For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Companoyded net income amounting to $646.2 millionpaoting for an
increase of $4.333 billion considering the 1os$®%686 billion recorded in fiscal year 2018.

Comprehensive income:

Other comprehensive loss for fiscal year 2019 wagw$2.009 billion, accounting for a 133% decreesmpared with
fiscal year 2018, and included the revaluation rojperty, plant and equipment and its effect on inedax as well as the
pension plan.

Total comprehensive loss for the year amounted 1868 billion, representing a 156% decrease condgareomprehensive
income of $2.438 billion recorded in fiscal yead 80

Adjusted EBITDA

2019

Adjusted EBITDA in millions of pesos @ @ 10,222.6

Adjusted EBITDA in millions of USdollars® @ 208.9

(1) Figures not covered by the Auditors’ Report
(2) Figures do not include the Group’s share in GECEhEsme/loss, which has been excluded from theutation, as
mentioned in paragrpah 7.
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2. Equity figures presented comparatively with pihevious fiscal year:

(in millions of pesos)

Non-current Assets
Current assets
Total assets

Equity attributable to the owners
Equity of non-controlling interest

Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

3. Income statement figures presented comparatwihythe previous fiscal year:

(in millions of pesos)

Ordinary operating profit/(loss)
Financial result

Ordinary net income/(loss)

Income tax

Income from continuing operations
Income/loss for the year

Other compr ehensive income/(10ss)
Total comprehensive income

4. Cash flow figures presented comparatively whit previous fiscal year:

(in millions of pesos)

Cash flows provided by operating activities

Cash flows (used in) investment activities

Cash flows (used in) / provided by financing ati&s

Incr ease/(decr ease) in cash and cash equivalents

12.31.2019 | ‘ 12.31.2018 | ‘ 12.31.2017
51,849.0 48,005.7 26,387.0
9,689.5 8,358.0 5,447.7
61,538.4 56,363.7 31,834.7
8,319.0 10,095.0 6,207.6

881.1 964.1 324.6
9,200.1 11,059.2 6,532.2
40,621.3 34,350.3 19,720.5
11,717.1 10,954.2 5,582.0
52,338.4 45,304.6 253025
61,538.4 56,363.7 31,8347

12312000 | | 1231208 || 12312017
7,665.3 5,355.2 2,500.2
(2,633.1) (9,760.1) (2,888.4)
50322 (4,404.9) (388.3)
(4,386.0) 7175 813.9

646.2 (3.687.4) 4257

646.2 (3.687.4) 4257
(2,009.4) 6.125.9 2.9)
(1,363.3) 24385 4227

12.31.2019 ‘ | 12.31.2018 | ‘ 12.31.2017

5,895.1 1,447.8 51215
(2,899.3) (5,060.7) (10,016.0)
(2,014.1) 41252 3,482.2

9818 512.3 (1412.3)
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5. Ratios presented comparatively with the previges:

12312019 | | 12312008 || 12312007
Liquidity (1) 0.83 0.76 0.98
Creditworthiness (2) 0.16 0.22 0.25
Tied-up capital (3) 0.84 0.85 0.83
Return on equity (4) 0.06 (0.42) 0.11

(1) Current assets / Current liabilities

(2) Shareholders’ Equity / Total liabilities

(3) Non-current assets / Total assets

(4) Netincome/loss for the year (without other comer&tive income) / Average Shareholders’ Equity

6. Brief remarks on the outlook for fiscal year 202

Commercial and operating sectors

Company’s management expects to continue operatidghormally maintaining the various generatinguto maintain
high levels of availability in 2020. The fact @ftioducing more efficient group machines to theckleity System would
imply obtaining higher levels of dispatch, and thasreasing the generation of electricity.

Financial situation

In fiscal year 2020, the Company aims at optimidisdinancing structure, ensuring the proper opensof power plants,
and obtaining financing for the closing to cyclejpcts awarded under Resolution No. 287/17.
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7. Additional Information (*)

For the purpose of providing information in the txt of the transaction of the international Negllé Obligation
issue, a summarized statement of financial poséiwhincome statement deconsolidating the subgi@ianeracion
Centro SA, known as Non-restricted Subsidiary,exsvinutes of the Board of Directors meeting daAedust 27,
2018, which means its creditors have no recouragspASA or any of its subsidiaries.

o - Albanes SA. Write-off Balances with related

Statement of Financial Position (in millions of partiesand equity value Total

Pesos) Consolidated GECEN written-off

Assets

Nor-current Asse 51,84¢ (3,648 994 49,19t

Current asse 9,68¢ (12) - 9,677

Total Assats 61,538 (3,660) 994 58,872

Equity

Owners of the pare 8,31¢ 637 (637 8,31¢

Non-controlling interes 881 - 32 912

Total Equity 9,200 637 (605) 9,232

Liabilities

Non-current Liabilitie: 40,62: (4,071 994 37,54«

Current liabilitie: 11,710 (226 60% 12,09¢

Total liabilities 52,338 (4,297) 1,599 49,640

Total liabilities and equity 61,538 (3,660) 994 58,872

Albanes SA. Write-off

Statement of Income (in millions of Pesos) Consolidated GECEN Equity value written-off Total

Sales revent 14,19¢ - - 14,19¢

Cost of sale (5,742 - - (5,742

Gross profit/(loss) 8,457 - - 8,457

Selling expenst (90) - (90)

Administrative expens (569 1 - (568

Income from interests in associates (145) - 192 48

Other operating incon 11 4) - 7

Operating income 7,665 (©) 192 7,855

Financial results, net (2,633 (410) - (3,043)

Pre-tax profit/(loss) 5,032 (413) 192 4,812

Income ta (4,386 21C - (4,175

Income(loss) for the year 646 (203) 192 636

Income(loss) for theyear attributable to:

Owners of the company 60€ (192) 192 60€

Non-controlling interes 38 (10) - 28
646 (203) 192 636

(*) Information not covered in the Auditors’ Repor
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Shareholders, President and Directors of
Albanesi S.A.

Legal address: Leandro N. Alem 855 - 14th Floor
City of Buenos Aires

Tax Code No. 30-68250412-5

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the attached consolidated financial statements of Albanesi S.A. and its
subsidiaries (the Company), which consist of the consolidated statement of financial
position as of December 31, 2019, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended, as well as a
summary of the most significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The balances and other information corresponding to the fiscal year 2018 are an integral
part of the audited financial statements mentioned above; therefore, they must be
considered in connection with these financial statements.

Board's responsibility

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for the preparation and reasonable
presentation of these consolidated financial statements under International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted by the Argentine Federation of Professional Councils
in Economic Sciences (FACPCE) as professional accounting standards and incorporated
into the regulations of the National Securities Commission (CNV), as approved by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). Further, the Board of Directors is
responsible for the existence of adequate internal control to prepare consolidated financial
statements free of any material misstatements due to error or irregularities.

Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements, based on our audit. We performed our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing, which were adopted in Argentina by the FACPCE (Argentine
Federation of Professional Councils in Economic Sciences) through Technical
Pronouncement No. 32 and and its corresponding circular letters on adoption. These
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements, and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
any material misstatements.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
other information disclosed in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement in the consolidated financial statements due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor must consider internal control relevant to the
Company’s preparation and reasonable presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant estimates made by the Company's
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements mentioned the first paragraph of this
report present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Albanesi
S.A. at December 31, 2019, as well as the consolidated comprehensive income and
consolidated cash flows for the fiscal year then ended, in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards.

Report on compliance with current regulations
In accordance with current regulations, we report, in connection with Albanesi S.A., that:

a) the consolidated financial statements of Albanesi S.A. have been transcribed into the
Inventory and Balance Sheet book and as regards those matters that are within our field
of competence, they are in compliance with the provisions of the General Companies Law
and pertinent resolutions of the National Securities Commission;

b) the separate financial statements of Albanesi S.A. arise from accounting records carried
in all formal respects in conformity with legal provisions which maintain the security and
integrity conditions based on which they were authorized by the National Securities
Commission;

¢) we have read the summary of activity on which, as regards those matters that are within
our field of competence, we have no observations to make;

d) at December 31, 2019, there is no debt accrued in favor of the Argentine Integrated Social
Security System.
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e) as required by section 21, subsection e), Chapter III, Part IV, Title II of the rules issued
by the National Securities Commission, we report that total fees for auditing and related
services billed to the Company during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019 account
for:

e.1) 48 % of the total fees for services billed to the Company for all items during that
fiscal year;

e.2) 13 % of the total fees for auditing services and related services billed to the
Company, its parent companies, subsidiaries and related companies during that year;
e.3) 8 % of the total fees for services billed to the Company, its parent companies,
subsidiaries and related companies for all items during that year;

f) we have applied the money laundering abatement and anti-terrorist financing
procedures comprised in the professional standards issued by the Professional Council
in Economic Sciences for the City of Buenos Aires.

City of Buenos Aires, March 10, 2020

PRICE WATERHOUSE & CO. S.R.L.

(Partner)

Raul Leonardo Viglione
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Report of the Syndics’ Committee
To the Shareholders of
Albanesi S.A.

1. In accordance with Section 294 of Law No. 19558,dtandards issued by the National Securities Cesiomi
(CNV) and Regulations of the Buenos Aires Stocklaxmge, we have examined the consolidated financial
statements of Albanesi S.A. which comprise theestant of financial position at December 31, 201l the
related statement of comprehensive income, statemfiehanges in equity and cash flow statementHeryear
then ended and complementary notes. The balandestlaer information corresponding to the fiscalry2@l18
are an integral part of the audited financial stegiets mentioned above; therefore, they must beidenes! in
connection with these financial statements.

2. Our examination was carried out in accordance stdimdards applicable to syndics. These standagdsree
that the examinations of the financial statemertpdérformed in accordance with current auditingddads,
and include the verification of the fairness of #ignificant information contained in the documesxamined
and their consistency with the information on cogbe decisions, which are known to us, as disclasdde
Board and Shareholders' meeting minutes, as willeasonformity of those decisions with the law dgdaws
insofar as concerns formal and documentary aspgctfulfill our professional duties, we have revisithe
work done by the external auditors, Price Waterad€o. S.R.L., who issued their unqualified repmrtthe
same date of this report. An audit requires thatahditors plan and perform the work to obtain saable
assurance that the financial statements are fremtdrial misstatements or significant errors. Aditincludes
examining, on a selective test basis, the judgrhesitanents supporting the disclosures in the fir@nc
statements, assessing the accounting standardstheegignificant estimates made by the Compang,the
overall financial statement presentation. We haseassessed the administrative, financing, margedimd
operating business criteria as these matters flimthe exclusive competence of the Board of Etives and
Shareholders' meeting.

3. Furthermore, with regard to the Annual Report fa fiscal year ended December 31, 2019, we havieder
that it contains the information required by Sett6® of the General Companies Law No. 19550, La@326
as amended and, as regards those matters thatlzireaur field of competence, the figures shower#in agree
with accounting records of Albanesi S.A. and ottentinent documentation.

4. We have verified compliance by the Directors inagfwith the qualification bonds as of the datprefsentation
of the financial statements at December 31, 20%9¢called for by item 1.4 of Appendix | to Technical

Pronouncement No. 16 issued by the Argentine Faderaf Professional Councils in Economic Sciences.

5. Based on the work done with the scope describedealvze report that:
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a. In our opinion, the financial statements of Albdrg&#\. present fairly, in all material respects,financial
position at December 31, 2019, its comprehensigente, changes in its equity and the cash flowHer t
year then ended, in conformity with professionalcamting standards in force in the Autonomous Gfty
Buenos Aires, and CNV regulations;

b. As regards those matters that are within our coemoet, we have no comments to make in connectidn wit
the Annual Report of the Board of Directors, arateinent referred to future events being their estotu
responsibility;

c. Regarding the independence of the external auditibesquality of the auditing policies applied lhet
auditor and the accounting policies of Albanesi.SiAe report of the external auditors includes the
representation of having applied auditing standardsfect in Argentina, which comprise independenc
requirements, and has no qualifications as regtrdsapplication of such standards or professional
accounting standards in force in Argentina, anchawee no observations to make in connection with the
accounting policies mentioned above;

d. The provisions of CNV Resolution No. 797/2019, redd to the presentation of the report on compéanc
with the Code of Corporate Governance, have bebrflfilled.

e. As provided for by CNV regulations, we report tha have read the report of the external auditoosy f
which it follows that:

i. the auditing standards applied are the ones apptowéne Professional Council in Economic Sciences
for the City of Buenos Aires, which comprise indegence requirements, and

ii. the financial statements have been prepared untignhtional Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS),
adopted by the Argentine Federation of Professi@ulncils in Economic Sciences (FACPCE) as
professional accounting standards and incorporatiedthe regulations of the National Securities
Commission (CNV), as approved by the Internatids@aounting Standards Board (IASB).

f.  We have applied money laundering abatement andeanirist financing procedures, as establishethby
professional standards issued by the Argentinergéde of Professional Councils in Economic Science

6. In the exercise of the legality control falling fiit our field of competence, during the year weehapplied the
other procedures described in section 294 of theef@ Companies Law No. 19550 that we considered
necessary under the circumstances, and we havieseovations to make.

City of Buenos Aires, March 10, 2020.

For the Syndics’ Committee
Marcelo P. Lerner



